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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”) has
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 1998. The Group is one of the world’s leading
container manufacturers and having comprehensive depot
operation networks in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
four factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers, tank
containers, offshore containers, customised specialised
containers and other specialised containers and container
parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots and
logistics company, and is currently running nine container
depots, seven at the major ports in the PRC — Dalian,
Tianjin, Qingdao, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and Xiamen,
and two in Hong Kong. We also operate a logistics
company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
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owners of the Company 4,576
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents) ERGRAR(EE) (E) 0.19
Net asset value per share (US cents) BREESFEGEWD 20.58
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PiN/NE] i SY g sy 497,592
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR MRS 48,787
Total borrowings (Note) me ‘) 27,584
Current ratio BN & 2.34to/ b1
Gearing ratio BEREAELE 0.06
Net debt to equity ratio B FHEERRES L E N/A
Interest coverage ratio MERFI = 26.9
Return on equity (%) AR A Wt 25 2 (%) 0.9

Note: Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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PRODUCTION OUTPUT

Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

FEHRE

Mr. TEO Siong Seng ‘R & 4
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FREREFTTHARE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the operating results of Singamas Container
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”/“we”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The last twelve months have been truely transformative for
Singamas. Following the very substantial disposal in mid-
2019 (the “Disposal”), the Group saw a turnaround during
2020, a reflection of our successful shift towards the “New
Singamas”. While the Disposal inevitably led to revenue
drops year-on-year, solid performance during the second
half of 2020 compensated for losses during the first half,
and overall, the Group has been able to achieve a positive
bottom line result for the whole year despite the COVID
Pandemic.
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COVID-19 caused production to be abruptly suspended
in early 2020, China recovered relatively quickly from
the outbreak of the virus, and we made sure to resume
production as quickly as was possible in order to satisfy
the strong export demand. This demand increased
considerably from mid-2020 onwards, owing to port
congestions at numerous countries around the world
caused by the COVID outbreak. With a large number of
containers held at overseas ports, domestic demand for
new boxes increased significantly, and has continued to
date. This strong demand is expected to continue through
to the latter part of the year. With these positive market
conditions, along with the advantages of the streamlined
business model, the Group is looking forward to a
favourable 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded total consolidated revenue of US$274,305,000
(2019: US$712,209,000). This significant decrease was
the result of the aforementioned Disposal, along with
a production suspension early this year owing to the
outbreak of COVID-19. Consolidated profit attributable
to owners of the Company totalled US$4,576,000 (2019:
loss of US$110,230,000). Excluding the extraordinary
items recorded during the year, namely a gain on disposal
of US$8,457,000 related to the disposal of Tianjin Pacific
Container Company Limited in mid-2020 and an expected
credit loss of US$17,450,000 in relation to the receivables
from immediate holding company and its subsidiaries, net
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

profit from core operations amounted to US$13,569,000,
reflecting the positive impact of the ‘New Singamas’
business model on the Group’s business operations.
Basic earnings per share was US0.19 cent, compared
with basic loss per share of US4.56 cents in 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacturing

The second half of 2020 brought a stronger demand
for dry freight containers. This, along with promising
growth from the specialised container business, including
product diversification and a rise in demand in clean
energy, modular housing, medical and health related
products, resulted in a turnaround in the latter half year.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, manufacturing
business recorded revenue of US$246,677,000 (2019:
US$683,925,000), accounting for 89.9% of the Group’s
total revenue (2019: 96.0%). Segment profit before
taxation and non-controlling interests amounted to
US$3,009,000 (2019: segment loss of US$99,622,000).

The average selling price of a 20’ dry freight container
increased to US$2,059 (2019: US$1,779); a reflection of
the increase in market demand, which have also led to
an increase in the costs of raw materials such as corten
steel and floorboard. Labour costs also rose, with skilled
workers required for production in short supply due
to the exceptional circumstances. Although the “New
Singamas” business model centres around the specialised
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container segment, the Group has taken advantage of the
extraordinarily strong demand for dry freight containers
during the year, and therefore the majority of revenue was
still derived from this segment (75.8% dry freight vs 24.2%
specialised).

The Group’s specialised container business continues to
improve. Demand has continued to show healthy growth
as more customers become aware of the versatility
that the Group can offer. Among the most popular
conventional products are energy storage containers,
power generator containers and electrical equipment
containers. The Group’s in-house R&D team remains
committed to innovation and in 2020, together with
experts from the Chinese Academy of Sciences and
China Customs, developed a mobile Polymerase Chain
Reaction (“PCR”) laboratory for COVID-19 testing. A
total of ten laboratories have already been produced
and delivered to hospitals and customs in Shanghai and
Qingdao. Other recently developed specialised containers
include 5G equipment containers created to support
data network infrastructure, environmental containers for
sewage treatment, and different types of modular housing
products which are able to serve specific purposes.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Logistics Services

The logistics services business performed relatively
stable during the review year. Although throughput
remained robust, strong exports in China resulted in fast
turnaround in boxes and less repair items performed.
Revenue amounted to US$27,628,000, representing
a decline of 2.3% from the previous year (2019:
US$28,284,000). Segment profit before taxation and non-
controlling interests amounted to US$4,861,000 (2019:
US$5,463,000). In regard to the number of containers
handled, approximately 510,000 TEUs were handled
(2019: 660,000 TEUSs), while repairs totalled 112,000
TEUs (2019: 147,000 TEUs) and average daily storage
was 32,000 TEUs (2019: 25,000 TEUs).

The Group’s investment in Xiamen logistics, meanwhile,
continued to deliver stable returns, with dividends of
US$1,817,000 in 2020 (2019: US$1,872,000). The Group
will continue to review its operations and streamline the
business in order to maximise efficiency and enhance
its business portfolio, with the aim of maintaining stable
returns in this segment.
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PROSPECTS

Entering the new year, Singamas will continue to seize
opportunities based on the surge in demand for dry freight
and specialised containers, particularly in relation to dry
freight containers owing to continued port congestion
issues. The Group remains committed to fully realising its
transformation into the “New Singamas”, leveraging its
knowledge and expertise in the production of specialised
containers in order to create a more robust business.
With container usage becoming more widespread
across a variety of sectors, the Group will continue to
diversify its products and customer base, with a particular
focus on three key areas: i) renewable energy; creating
solutions for solar, wind and hydro power generation, ii)
environmental protection; as an area that has seen much
encouragement from the PRC government, the Group
has endeavoured to develop containers addressing these
concerns, and iii) medical application; as well as providing
mobile laboratories for use in the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has been developing mobile laboratories with
medical capabilities for functions such as CT scans and
negative pressure isolation, enabling rapid response from
frontline medical staff.

Alongside the development of its three principal areas
of interest, the Group will further enhance its specialised
containers business by actively seeking out new avenues
for collaboration. Such arrangements will primarily see
the involvement of well-established industry partners and
will allow us to further enhance our product offerings and
capacity to innovate.

APPRECIATION

| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all those
who have continued to support the Group over the past
twelve months, be they business partners, customers
or stakeholders. | also wish to personally thank every
member of the Singamas team, without whom we
would not have been able to realise our goal for a “New
Singamas”. In addition, the Group achieved a turnaround
in 2020, which would not have happened without the
team’s hard work and dedication throughout the year. We
look forward to an even brighter 2021.

TEO Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Frequently Asked Questions
—RiE M

1. Upon disposing a majority of the Group’s dry freight
container manufacturing operation, what is the
Group’s sales mix like now and what’s your target
split moving forward? What will be the key factors
impacting your performance moving forward?

- The Group’s sales mix in 2020 was
approximately 75.8% dry freight containers
and 24.2% specialised containers in terms of
revenue.

- Moving forward, with the increased usage of
customised specialised containers in various
industries and the Group’s new production
lines for specialised containers ramping up,
we expect the sales proportion of specialised
containers to increase.

- Global container demand, trade volume and
vessels delivery will still affect overall results
yet impact will be much smaller moving
forward as the Group diversifies income
sources through investments in research
and development (“R&D”) of new specialised
containers.

- In view of the demand of customised
specialised containers is less fluctuate and
in general the profit margin for producing
specialised containers is better than the
traditional dry freight containers, we target to
have an optimal split of 50:50 of dry freight
containers and specialised containers in 3 to
5 years.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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Your customer focus has shifted from traditional
shipping and leasing companies to container
trading clients, as well as new sectors like power
and industrial companies. What is Singamas’ view
towards market demand from these sectors in
2021 and beyond?

- We expect to receive more dry freight
container orders from container trading
companies as they require higher flexibility in
terms of volume and delivery, as well as more
specific production requirements. These are
orders that could be difficult for conventional
large scale container producers to take as
it would drag down their efficiency. Having
said that, traditional shipping and leasing
companies remain our important customers
which we would try best to secure the orders
from these companies.

- As mentioned in our Chairman Statement,
we expect demand for dry freight containers
to stay high in 2021 owing to continued port
congestion issues.

- For specialised containers, we have been
able to attract satisfactory orders by providing
container solutions to suit customers’ needs.
Diverse use of specialised containers in non-
sea freight purposes including housing,
energy storage, power generation, electrical
equipment, data centre, sewage treatment
and medical applications etc. provides
enormous business opportunities to the
Group. Rapid growth in electricity generation
through renewable and “green” energy, the
rise of big data industry, and environment
concerns are all favourable factors for the
growth in demand for customised specialised
containers in 2021 and beyond.
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Frequently Asked Questions

—RER

3 How has average selling price (“ASP”) of the
Group’s containers been affected following the very
substantial disposal? What do gross margins of the
various types of containers look like?

ASP of the Group’s containers has not been
affected by the very substantial disposal
transaction in 2019. ASP of dry freight
containers in fact was increased during the
year, mainly due to the urge in container
demand resulting from overseas port
congestions.

Prices of ISO specialised containers, like
flatrack, open top and bulk containers in
general were increased in line with the
dry freight containers. For the customised
specialised containers, as there is no
standard specification for each batch of
orders, price setting for each order is based
on the complexity of the specification along
with the labour hours and material cost
required for the production.

With the disposal completed in 2019 and
specialised containers taking up a more
substantial portion of the Group’s sales,
Singamas will be less impacted by demand
and competition of dry freight containers
moving forward. Although dry freight
container ASP can be volatile, those of
our customised specialised containers are
expected to be relatively stable.
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What is the order book looking like in 2021 for
dry freight containers and specialised containers
respectively?

- Demand for dry freight containers are still
strong, we currently have approximately 3
months of orders on hand. For customised
specialised container production, it is
normally on project basis from product
design, technical drawings, and production
until delivery, the whole process may last
from few weeks to few months. We are
continuously receiving orders for customised
specialised containers without seasonal
trends.

Any specific plans for the logistics services
business? Is the Group looking at any target M&A
or investment opportunities?

- The logistics services business, performed
relatively stable during the review year.
Although throughput remained robust, strong
exports in China resulted in fast turnaround
in boxes and less repair items performed.

- The Group’s logistics services business plays
an important role in addressing the needs
of our customers while at the same time
serving as a supplemental revenue stream.
We therefore remain wholly committed to
developing this area of business.

- The Group is actively looking for investment
opportunities to expand the logistics
business but there is no specific targets at
the moment.
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Frequently Asked Questions
—RIZ R

6. Does the Group have plans to dispose of any more
of its current operation to further consolidate its
business? What are the remaining tasks to be done
internally in terms of streamlining overall operation
and increase efficiency?

- The Group reviews its business model
regularly to adjust business strategies suiting
latest market developments. With the “New
Singamas” still on its way to expanding
its product range and clientele, we have
no room to further consolidate our current
operation.

- Subsequent to the very substantial disposal,
the Group had retrenched staff from different
levels to streamline overall operation. We
will review the cost structure, especially for
the newly developed products, regularly
to improve cost efficiency and minimise
wastage. Besides, the new Huizhou factory
which is dedicated for producing specialised
containers will continue to bolster R&D
capabilities and in turn improve overall
efficiency.
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How do you expect your R&D function to support
the Group’s long term growth?

Seeing the success achieved from the
introduction of our various specialised
containers, Singamas will dedicate more
resources to bolstering the Group’s R&D
capabilities, as well as to developing more
innovative specialised containers that cater
for the needs of our customers.

Our R&D function is mainly based in
Baoshan, Shanghai with experienced staff
focusing on product development. Supported
by the technical and marketing team, our
engineers work with customers directly for
product design, technical drawings and
producing prototype for meeting customers’
specific needs. Besides the team in Baoshan,
all of our factories have local R&D teams to
serve local requirements. With the growth
of specialised containers, number of our
R&D staff is growing in line with the business
needs. We believe high product quality
together with best customer services would
win ongoing orders and gain reputation.

Frequently Asked Questions
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Frequently Asked Questions

—RER

8. Understand the expected credit loss in relation to
the receivables from immediate holding company
and its subsidiaries recognised in FY2020 affected
the Group’s financial performance. Will there be
similar extraordinary items in FY2021? What is the
management’s view towards the Group’s prospects
for the years to come?

Further adjustment may be required on the
effective date when the trade receivables
from immediate holding company and its
subsidiaries modified as new financial asset
in accordance with the Deed (please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated
4 November 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2020 for
details). Actual adjustment amount depends
on the global interest rate, credit rating and
business performance of PIL and any other
factors on the date of asset modification.
However, with the improved core business,
we are confident the Group’s financial
performance will continue to improve in the
following years.

Moving forward, the management will
continue to work hard on the Group’s
transformation into the ‘New Singamas’,
expediting our transition into a leading
specialised container manufacturer.

We expect to be deriving benefits from
the wide range of industries that employ
specialised containers, which will effectively
make our business less affected by trade
volume and volatile markets.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERSEEEASRN

The directors of the Company (“Director”) at the date of

this annual report are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Mr. Teo Siong Seng *°

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung "

Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca *

Mr. Tan Chor Kee 2

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng #

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David #o*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ilvan #o

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong

#  Audit Committee Member
Management Committee Member

°  Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer
and Company
Secretary
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAEHN

Brief biographical details of the Directors at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B. Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 66,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997 and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and he is also the younger brother of
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, former director of the Company. Mr.
Teo started his shipping career with Pacific International
Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL") Group in Singapore since
1979. PIL is the controlling shareholder of the Company
as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Teo was appointed as the
managing director of PIL in October 1992 and appointed
as executive chairman of PIL in April 2018. PIL activities
include shipowning, liner shipping, ship agencies, freight
forwarding, container manufacturing, marine services,
container depot/terminal operation, warehousing, logistics
park, real estate and travel. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of COSCO SHIPPING Energy
Transportation Co., Ltd. and COSCO SHIPPING Holdings
Co., Ltd.; both companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He is also currently a non-executive and non-independent
director of Keppel Corporation Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Wilmar International
Limited, both companies are listed on the main board of
Singapore Exchange (“SGX”). He is the Immediate Past
Chairman of Singapore Business Federation, Honorary
President of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce &
Industry, a director of Enterprise Singapore and Business
China. Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The United
Republic of Tanzania in Singapore.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 63, was appointed on 1
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 41 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Technical Director of
Unicon International Ltd., a container surveying company
with major interests in the Far East.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 52, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company on 2 July 2015. She was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013
respectively. She is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. She was appointed as the director of
Modex Holding Limited, an associate of the Company,
which specialised in leasing and trading of offshore
containers, on 10 October 2014. Ms. Chung joined the
Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than 29 years of
combined experience in public accountancy, sourcing and
manufacturing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAEHN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 68, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013. Mr.
Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a first
class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 43 years of experience in shipping particularly
in equipment management, costs control, corporate
planning, logistics operations, agency and liner business.
Mr. Tan is currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, DBA, MBA (Distinction), M.Acc,
B.Acc (Hons), FCA (Singapore), aged 47, was appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 June
2019. He graduated with B.Acc (Hons) (second upper
honours) and master’s degree in accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore. He holds
MBA with Distinction from the University of Leicester, the
United Kingdom, and Doctor of Business Administration
from The University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Kwa has
been appointed as director of PIL on 15 February 2020.
He has been the Chief Financial Officer of PIL since 1
October 2017. Prior to joining PIL in 2015 as General
Manager (Finance), he had held a number of senior
positions in finance and accounting in manufacturing and
logistics businesses. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant
of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 72, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has assumed the position of independent non-executive
director of Grandland Shipping Limited with effect from
1 January 2016. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December 2016.
He has also been appointed as Independent Director of
Sincere Navigation Corporation, a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect from 28 June 2019.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in
Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May
2014. He has also retired from the Senior Advisor to
Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 30 June 2016 and
retired as a director and honorary chairman of Credit
Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited with effect from 10 July
2020. Grandland Shipping Limited, Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited and Sincere Navigation Corporation are
third parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Cheng has also been
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for a two years term as Member of
the Maritime and Port Board (“MPB”) and Chairman of the
Promotion and External Relations Committee under the
MPB with effect from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2018. He
is also the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime
Museum. In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the
Distinction of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by
the French Government.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAEHN

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, aged 62, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. He had been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market
of the Stock Exchange, from 13 December 2001 to 1
March 2020. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of GBA Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. GBA Holdings Limited is third party
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, MBA, aged 62, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 October 2019. Mr. Ho graduated from McGill
University, Montreal, Canada in 1984. Mr. Ho is currently
an independent director of Dukang Distillers Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of SGX and
an independent director of NorthCape AS, a Norwegian
financial advisory company. He possesses extensive
experience in assets management and banking industry.
He has also previously served as independent director
of Centraland Limited (from April 2011 to November
2011) and Li Heng Chemical Fibre Technologies Limited
(from September 2009 to February 2017), both of which
were SGX main board listed companies which had been
privatized and withdrawn from SGX listing in 2011 and
2017 respectively.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. For the
particulars of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, please refer to
the circular accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Mr. Wu Bing Hong Vice President
Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27
May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 48, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu
is in charge of various divisions of the Group including
Marketing Department in Shanghai, Quality Management
Department and Research & Development Center. He
also assists in overseeing the operation of the Group’s
factories. Mr. Wu graduated from Guangzhou Ji'nan
University with major in Business Administration and
graduated from Hubei University of Technology with a
Bachelor Degree in Administrative Management. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in 2001. He has over 28 years of
experience in container manufacturing and corporate
management.
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Corpora’re Governance Report

Dasasseipa

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as set out in Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for the deviation disclosed
below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
not separated. The Board considers that this structure
has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership
which is conducive to making and implementing decisions
efficiently and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate
that the Company is not, or, was not during the year
in compliance with the code provisions of the Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/
“Directors”) believes that appropriate corporate
governance practices are essential for the Company
to enhance its accountability and transparency so as
to achieve a balance of the interests of shareholders,
customers, employees and investment partners of
the Company in all material respects. Accordingly, the
Company aims at maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

ARRAZEBEEERRINEREERTER

Key corporate governance principles and corporate

governance practices of the Company are summarised  #atzn T -
below:
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2238 | FAKX BE(E) TEERER
A. DIRECTORS
5=
A1 The Board
Exg
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company's affairs.
EXEGRATAERERAANER  UYEBAEREREBRRAIEK -
The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company, and whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
EREGRTHRNEZAAABTHREMZNENER  URFHREFEANERARBEITHRE -
A.1.1  |Regular board meetings should be C e The Board held six meetings in 2020. The Board would meet more

held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person
or through electronic means of
communication, of majority of directors.
EEeTHEREEFELARD .
R REIHEBEERHHRE - FEB
BFEAEEHSE -

frequently as and when required.
EFER_T_TFEMTAREH -
FREEINGE ©

FREBER c#FeAd

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
No alternative Director was appointed during 2020.
EFEEHBRNTESFT  MEFPTESR BB IIERTE
FHEK  —_E_TFAVBEEEMEESSE -

e The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date and details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
below:

BE_T _THFT_A-T-AULFEREEZAMESEAE

rEEHFEEE S -_SFE A=+ BHULFENESSSH
o
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EEHE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng RN 6/6
(Chairman and Chief (FEFEE
Executive Officer) TTIABE)
Chan Kwok Leung RG2S 6/6
(Chief Operating Officer) (HEEERE)
Teo Tiou Seng SR B 6/6
(resigned on 11 March H=T=—F
2021) = A+—H&MTD
Chung Pui King, Rebecca MR 6/6
(Chief Financial Officer and (B BRI 54 a7
Company Secretary) RAfE)
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SEEARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
AlA Number of
(cont’d) attendance
(B Name of Directors EEME HERE
Non-executive Directors FH{TESE
Tan Chor Kee PR At £ 6/6
Kwa Wee Keng EE 6/6
Independent Non- BYFHITES
executive Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B Eg 6/6
Lau Ho Kit, lvan E IR 6/6
Ho Teck Cheong =g 6/6
e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone
conference or by means of a similar communication equipment
or by their alternate in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles”). An updated and
consolidated version of the Company’s Articles (both English
and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of the
Company (http://www.singamas.com) and Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk).
BERAA  ABERMA(ERMA]) - EFFURS - EB
EERIBUBMEIMEES S IHEBTEER/LRE -
RARERMB 2 HEHEE RN (R RAXIR) - EFHRER
zﬁj(hﬁttp://www.singamas.com)&;%?&ﬁfr(http://wvvw.hkexnews.hk)
HBuk o
A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity C e All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter
to include matters in the agenda for in the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
regular board meetings. issued.
PREFEARSIELEIEEIA REESSTHERBEERN  CHFAREMMEESRREE
EEGTHERERE - AN FRIATAERERIE
A1.3 |~ Atleast 14 days notice for regular C e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each
board meetings. regular board meeting and gives reasonable notice for other board
OHEEgEHezRELEE D meetings.
TR o REBAORESSTHERAN L TORBHEXBM  WiET
HihEEZggRaRRE B -
— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
OREMESSSRERLHARE
AN
A.1.4 |Minutes of board meetings and C e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the

meetings of board committees should
be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting and should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.
KEAZEHSENEREFESS
MHEETZEGNGACHE  FHME
MEFFHARBEM  BARGHAE
B EAEENSENRRERH -

Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management
Committee meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is
responsible for taking minutes of Remuneration Committee
meetings.

AANEEREEESE BERXLEY REZEGKEEZS
EEERE MFMEZESSBRCHABAIN—(IIRELRE W
ERRERE-

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all
Directors/Board Committee members within a reasonable time after
each Board and Board Committee meeting.
BREZGRHEBTZERRERE R ERRALESE
ﬁ%gi%Té BEgHI ABREREBES HETZES

B o

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made
available for inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at
the registered office of the Company.
EEgRHBTZE eSS RERIHES ' HETZS8
ERERARRGZMFEEER -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
A1.5 |— Minutes of board meetings and C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record
meetings of board committees contain sufficient details of matters considered and decisions
should record in sufficient detail the reached including concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
matters considered and decisions the Directors.
reached. EEghHBETZEEN SR LT OTHEREAIIAEESIEL
EEGRABETZEENgEERC HIERAERIRE - AR BESFERHNEMEERRENRY
8 - %%ﬁ@%ﬁiﬁﬁ%)ﬁiﬁ&L BR -
BEVREER A A o
e Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board
— Draft and final versions of minutes minutes.
for all directors to comment and to EEERENESTSERLHVRRERR -
keep records within a reasonable
time after the board meeting. e Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a
EESSRERE  EREAER reasonable t|me after the Board meeting.
BALERGE %uﬂﬁﬁ’]@ﬁn&ﬁ‘ EEEEBARE  NEBERRAREEZLHENKEERERT
BERBEXZRES  YRHESE M
BEREER - E-férﬂnﬁwﬁﬁua
B2 H e
A1.6 |— A procedure agreed by the C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if
board to enable directors, upon needed and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent
reasonable request, to seek professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
independent professional advice in EX0ERNBARNRGEAEER  NETERTEERT - EFIRA
appropriate circumstances, at the SXBUEEER WAARRRZNER -
company’s expense.
EXFRZBERF  EEFR
SRER  AJEEENBEATSE
KBUEXER  BERAAAX
i o
— The board should resolve to
provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to
assist them perform their duties to
the company.
EEGRBRSINGEFREHEE
VEEZR BB rEITE
HARMELE -
A.1.7 |~ If a substantial shareholder or a C e |Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions

director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by
the board which the board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
physical board meeting rather than
a written resolution.
EETERIIESTEESTGH
%%§W$Iﬁ¢ﬁﬁ§$@%ﬁ
BANFMEER  BEAEBEEL
BOTEZGER(MIFESEARR)A
NEHE -

Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should
be present at that board meeting.
EXGHPAREREETHE ALY
BEERNGZNB L IERTES
EZEEEANEZSSE -

so that all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
can note and comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval
is granted.

FEEHE-MUEMRERAXEE  AELBREE(REE I

HTER)ENTEREE  IREBRRBRNER)® - THE
FEH

e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in
the resolution, if applicable

EREAMABRANBHFBEZFRAREND(ER) -

e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director
being a connected person, in general, would be considered
at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, may consider, if appropriate,
granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions.
—REAT  ERFERRIEEC HEATETIEARSA
F%% 2eREEE %%(@?ﬁﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%)ﬁé@%iﬂ%%
REEBERLTRA LR ERERS
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TEERBRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
A.1.8 |Arrange appropriate insurance cover C e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers

in respect of legal action against the
direotors.

NAERESFA R GEMEREETH
T’F BOVIRIRECHE -

L|ab|||ty insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.

RAHBAREERSRAELHEENEERSRAEEER

o
fl\

for ensuring that directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate information
which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable.
Eﬁﬁ%aﬁ&%é%&ﬁﬂﬁz 1755

B - MAEBEATNVAERS WI&
E%Tsﬁ °

A2 Chairman and Chief Executive
TR RATHAAE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.
EEENREERBNEBNBETEENETREERY - URFRENNZES MI9E -

A2.1 |— Roles of chairman and chief E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the
executive should be separated and Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles
should not be performed by the of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated. The
same individual. Board considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
FREETHRAZNACERR and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
o WAER— ARBIRE - implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

RINEEERBEEANAZESTE IR AFITHERE  mE
- Division of responsibilities between f&%fﬁﬂ(?@%ﬁﬁﬂjiT\ DREN BT  EEeRAMERE
the chairman and chief executive Eﬁﬂ?ﬁft&ﬁ?ﬁ BB AEMANRERREBERIR —H
should be clearly established and IR
set out in writing.
FTREETHAR CEBRENS T
fEBRREWIAZESIEH -

A.2.2 | The chairman should ensure that all C e With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management
directors are properly briefed on issues and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
arising at board meetings. Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
TEERRESSSRLAMAESEY and receive adequate documents and information about the Group
HEMEBEATEIE - in a timely manner.

ERTES EBRERAFTNWENGDT FERIERDEE
EYRZASENELTSSRRECEL  URKADERBEHEAR
EEAXHREESR -

A.2.3 | The chairman should be responsible C e The Board papers including supporting analysis and related

background information are normally sent to the Directors at least
three working days before the regular Board meetings.

ESEEANMEREEIMREBAEREN  —BREFET
HeRdR TR =EE XA RERES -

Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the
communication between the Directors to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and
further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
approprlate

NEIMEBERMAEREERHNEDR RRESHEARBLE
zi/ifsaZ%IEjﬂ% SEIfE - SR — SR E R RS (iR
BEE
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER

A2.4 |- The chairman should provide C The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is

leadership for the board. responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board.
IRNACREEEEE - EEEFFHATERLE  EEFREREANERESY -

— The chairman should ensure that The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction
the board works effectively and of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for
performs its responsibilities, and the high-level oversight of management
that all key and appropriate issues BRI R EAAES SR ASEREBRE TR YAER
are discussed by it in a timely Z—%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬂ’llf’ﬁ
manner.

TREERESTS R EE - All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any
BETEERE  WREMA matters in the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the
EEMREEBEETHR ° Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into account

the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in

— The chairman should be primarily the agenda.

responsible for drawing up and TREFNEZASETEIMNIEERIABRRERN -EEQERE
approving the agenda for each HIRA Tﬁziﬁm§$"§%§ e R ERIEEMEEREZNEIR
board meeting. He should take (WB)FIAZERA -
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the With the support of the executive Directors and the Company
other directors for inclusion in Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly
the agenda. The chairman may briefed on all key and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
delegate this responsibility to EHTEZRRAAWERD T @ EERNERIEESYEEN
a designated director or the ERBEENREEEHE -
company secretary.
ITEERITZAEETUHAETR
§$ Epimpiifi ’ jﬁE}: ‘i
AT REMESREMAZE
WEMEE - TEAMEESEE
HRETNHNERH R AIWE -

A.2.5 |The chairman should take primary C The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company
responsibility for ensuring that good Secretary, takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate
corporate governance practices and governance practices and procedures of the Company.
procedures are established. ERERIRERATNENG TEERYARAIRFLEERTE
IRFEAFTEEMR BRAFAGER REEBFCEEHE -

%%ﬁ%am%ﬁ&kf

A.2.6 |— The chairman should encourage all C The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various

directors to make a full and active
contribution to the board’s affairs
and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the
company.
ITRESEMBESEE2NRAE
EGER - WAKER - BRE
$Eﬁ$ﬁA“TE&ﬂE°

The chairman should encourage
directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow
sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board
consensus.

EFJ“"%E}JHTH iﬁ’]%%i’ﬂ
EHASRIMEE  LTE
BERTREF® - LA&EEH%
CHARATHRALRBRESRS

matters of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their
views concerning the management of the Group.
FTRREEFTRGERTRASETRAHBNEERSBAEE
EREHEEEEASENER -
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
A.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent
hold meetings with the independent non-executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In
non-executive directors without the addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met
presence of other directors. with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
FREEVGFHRBIIIENTESTR of the other Directors on 11 December 2020.
T—RABEMEZHENEE TR EERE S IENITE SRR EARRE RS - B
EEerHes)  EFSTREBYIIPTEEN_T_TF
TZAT-—HETEEAMNEMEENBERTRITEE
A.2.8 |The chairman should ensure that C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.
FEREEREEE S P RRFER R
RS  ARBRIRRE R A FE
FREAESEY -

all shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate,
through the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars,
notices, media releases or other means in compliance with
the legal and regulatory requirements. The Company has
made such information available on the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) as well as on an independent website
provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose
is to provide our shareholders an alternative channel to access the
Group’s information easily and reach the potential shareholders
globally.

RARBMOMMERRIBUAEE ST ER - WEZZEER
ZEEBEATEPHRRERFR B BE  EEBEMLET
FEREERENAMEN - RATREHZEEN LHRAAA
&) 49U (nttp://www.singamas.com) * [R]85 75 _E & 7A — 38 37 A9 vk 4
JE 7 (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) It B #) 2 755K
HEINECERRER S IFRAEENEHREBRIEE2
HOBERR -

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with
shareholders in the Company’s general meetings during the year,
the Company continuously enhances shareholders’ communications
by holding press and analyst conferences during any reporting
period or year. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently Asked
Questions” section in its annual report providing its shareholders
with more clear and concise information that may be of common
concern. Besides, the Company has responded to letters and
telephone enquiries from shareholders and potential shareholders
throughout the year under review.

REBEFA  BREARABRRAS FRHE—(EARFREEELHEN
FRIN  ARRERHEEINERRBRAOES - MAERMEEL
FREGR ARV ERTEERSTEGE - M - AR A
ERFERANRE[—RIER G - FEUIRMHEBM R ERE HE
BEERGERE - B4 AARREBFAEAERSERE
PRER R B R A R NI E A -

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can deposit a written request at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83
King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Company Secretary. The written request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those shareholders.

RREFERRAEZERF
RIRRAERHE T DRE%I AR A2 ERRFKIRENIR - AJ4E
EMFRXEARANTMPERE - EER2E75-83%MA
FRAE1918 - IR A RIMER - ZEMBHRERLGE L&
RIBEBHH—RIEE  VAHAEEBEERRFZRATHZHERX
HEK - B AT H Bl — B FIRRERE -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX R (E) PEERER
A28 e Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General
(cont’d) Meeting (“AGM”)

()

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote
at the AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the
Company who have a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can
submit a written request to move a resolution at the AGM. The written
request must state the resolution, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form
(which between them contain the signatures of all the shareholders
concerned). The written request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP
Tower, 75-83 King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the
Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not
less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
a relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, may request the Company to circulate, to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
(@) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at
that meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s
Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, identify
the statement to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and be received by the Company not less than seven
days before the meeting to which it relates.
RBRRBAFASE(RRAFAENREEZZEF
INTALAMARARRREBARKUNERRBFERG FBZRE
R AEZaALKERENBBMBAYAIRRREAFRG FXRR - B
TNLORFTBRFBRIIEN2.5% @ KT DR50%FH AR [ HH
BAZOREMBRR - ZEEHARBERBZRAR  BHEBAHARK
REFRAMSHERNEEN(EELBAERKRREZNAER
E)  ZEHERRATEARANEMPERE - FHELSE75-83
GBS HRAE19E - REFRARMEN - WHEETDRAE
RKZBRREAFAGRIT 2 AEMA K (BB BHHBRRAFAE
BACREEZFK BETNOREBHREREEZMBRREZ
HMIOREN2.5% 3 KNP RE0EFHFE AR BMEBARRENRE A
ERARN R M B RKIIRRA GBS 2 REEM—HT 251,000
FHRME  ATEARN@QBFEZRREAEG FEEBHERELHN
RFPTMEE (b ﬁ@*ﬁﬁ&&ﬁ%%ﬁ’“t&%ﬁm%f% itk
ERJBFELRR Tzuzﬂ%ﬁf%}%%ﬁég& B75-83%% sv RPN
J*19$§ 5 BAFE TE R 2 Rt Iﬁhiﬁjﬁfﬁﬁx% CRREK
TOREAGRBITAITREEARAR

e Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the contacts
under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries. Shareholders have the
right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing
and sent by post to the registered office of the Company or by e-mail
to info@singamas.com for attention of the Company Secretary.
KRR
H&%J‘élﬂ$ BirBFELE - BERTRELFELE

?ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂxﬁéz;@ﬁﬂ MR R E AN LA BER E sk
%?HWEE@$/AETZE@E§§M H&%)TEMETF$AE?
(http://www.singamas.com)[ & & & B & | R &9 Bk 48 757 XU 1E
Ao RRTARRAEETSHELEN - ﬁﬁ*ﬁé"@m AEmEF
fEH - WER TARIWE R AR A5 Mt 3 5 5E 5 E

info@singamas.com °

sl

HH?H%%%%
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TEERBRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
A.2.9 | The chairman should promote a culture C e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively

of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive directors.
FREREAR  BEAmRH XL -
RESERHEINTER)HES
SEHANER @ WHERNITEFHA
FMITER RBERFERMR -

encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and
be fully engaged in the Board'’s affairs so as to contribute to the
Board’s functions.

FREREABANXE  TEBHBBFTIRARFHEFTREER - U
RE2ESEEEENEY  UHEFSNBEELER -

Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved
through discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee
meetings and other Board activities/programmes.
BRENEFESR SEFZECLRREMESSES 3
B ARR D EBGENITESN A RNERM RNITE S HIFH
TEEZHRER -

should be identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the
names of directors.
NAMBEHBEFUHANH A ABA
o EZSABEYIERITES SN -

A.3 Board composition
ERgEKX
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business and should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised.
EFSRREQFEBMABEEMSSH  CRESENBHLAAE - EFETHITEFEFRNTEFNESEZR
R - LAEEE B BUDIE L 7 HIE -

A.3.1 Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors

including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors,
the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications.
EFMERBBAPERESTHNRBE(BIEERE ITESF - 3
BWITESERBUHRITES) REESTSNEK -

The Board consists of a total of eight Directors, comprising
three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. One-third of the Board are
independent non-executive Directors of which more than one have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Details of the composition of the
Board are set out on page 21.

EEgR/\UEREX  BEZUHTES  MUIFRTESR
SUBUFATES - ZH —BEEGKERBUIFNTES
EFHBE— BN TESEBEEEXEER  HABEEN
B HEAMBERER - ERSEXFBIENE21E -

The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying
their roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors.

RAREECEBIERABRAAW FRHEHNEETGHES
B WHREAEMBE  UNEREISEEIFNTES -

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships among
the Directors are set out on pages 21 to 27.

BEEEAAEHREERNBEERIENENTAER7E -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
A.3.2 | The company should maintain on its C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of
website and on the Stock Exchange the Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles
website an updated list of its directors and functions, and whether they are independent non-executive
identifying their role and function and Directors.
whether they are independent non- B2 EEZREEEHR AR R RBRMEM - WHAEAGK
executive directors. g FARTIRERETEUIFNITES -
NEEEEPu AR ERF e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of
RRREEHFNESGKRERE - W Stock Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees
REABMBEE  UKFHERETE to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those
SIEHMITES - independent non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant
Board Committees.
RARMREBE KRB BELEHETEE T ZEQRESR
B BRRRTHBIIIRTESLTIERESTSETZE SN
BFEEZAG -
A4 Appointments, re-election and removal
L - EERESR
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for
orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
ﬁ%$§&ﬁ$%£ﬁ\@%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%§’ﬁ%%iﬁ&ﬁ%%%%&ﬁ%o%ﬁ%%ﬁ%i@%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
2 o
A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of
appointed for a specific term, subject the non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director
to re-election. and the Company, the term of appointment is three years but
FMITESNEEEBEEEH I subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM
AR EIERSR under the Articles.
BEEIENITERRBLIFATERFRARNBE L 2 R HE
FHA=F  HREBEZERMBAMEE  ERARAZREAFRE
FIREE A EEEE -
A4.2 |— All directors appointed to fill a C e Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the

casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after
appointment.
FrEREMBERERMBEEN
EEREEXZARNERRR
KRG FEXREER -

— Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three
years.
BLEF(BREAETENNESR)
EEmmRE  ZEOB=F—R-

time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every
three years but shall be eligible for re-election.

REEREMAY REERRAFAE L ERAB=22—NE
FHEARERT  MEREFTAZVE=FRRRAFREG LR
=R - BRMEEREREE-

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
Any such new Director shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be
eligible for election at the same general meeting.

BEERME B0 AR R IS FABEHERRS =R AER
EEEKRE c MEEE2EHEARARA T RAREAES (NEEM
RRZH)XEARNATERRBAFAS(WBERAEETIKNE) AR
IF > WEBERRE—RRAG L2 -
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A4.2 e Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it has a

(cont’d) balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements

(&) of the business of the Company.

ARAIETHEMNESE AN  BREFSHABRESARAEBMT
BER - THERER 2 ATEK -

e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director on its website.
BREMEEENATSONESER BT  EEHENARAREHA -

A4.3 - If an independent non-executive C e As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan has been
director serves more than 9 years, serving as an independent non-executive Director of the Company for
his further appointment should be more than 9 years. Each independent non-executive Director who was
subject to a separate resolution to be subject to retirement by rotation was appointed by a separate resolution
approved by shareholders. in the Company’s AGM. Each independent non-executive Director who
EBUPTESEADEBNG  H was eligible for re-election at the AGM had made a confirmation of
ELEBTERUBIAZRFAAR independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REZEB - BEAFHEH  RELE-—EREARABUFNITESCHAN
FoRNARAZERAERG L BUARRERZBLINTESY

- The papers to shareholders WBIARREM GURBRRAFAG LEEBEA B IENTES

accompanying that resolution should HERR EMARAESASMEHRTEREB L ELER -

include the reasons why the board

believes he is still independent and e The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information on re-

should be re-elected. election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests and (where

BEMZRBR —RBLRENXH appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for re-election. If

HEHEESSAMNRRZBAT an independent non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, the

TMEBBIATREEEENREA - information would be included in the circular to advice shareholders the
reasons why the Board believes the relevant Director is still independent
and should be re-elected.
ARAIRRAFRSBHNEEEEETNHAEN  BERESERET
BFMEESNFARRE B R(NER) B - BB FRTESEL
BBRNAF  E—SEHBEABRRAN  MRRREHEFER/EAES
MBBEIATREESENRA -

e Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan will retire by rotation and his further appointment shall
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders in the
forthcoming AGM. His information will be included in the circular of the
forthcoming AGM stating the reasons why the Board believes Mr. Lau is still
independent and should be re-elected.

FRREEENBRRER  HEDTEBEAUBUARREAREER
RAFAG FHRREZRL  AEENE—SERBIARERERRE
FREBAN  ARRRBUEFSRARIAXTENBBLA T REESE
HRE o
A5 Nomination Committee

REZEE®

Corporate Governance Principle

EERRA

In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under Sections A.3 and A.4

in the Code.

REZECRTBAR  ARDZRLEEATIEAIRALLRMNRA o
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A.5.1- |= The company should establish a C e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
Ab5.4 nomination committee which is 2012 for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing

chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-
executive director and comprises
a majority of independent non-
executlve directors.

NAERIIRBREES  HES
ﬁ?ﬁf&é%i##ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ"&?ﬁ
& KB ENBIIERITEEG
REZH -

The nomination committee should
be established with specific written
terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and dutles

NRIEEMAREZEGAE
Q%%ﬁ ] % 2 35 B S B A
=T o

It should perform the following
duties:

REZEQEETATEE:

(@ review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the
board to complement the
company’s corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRNEFTIHERE
ANBURAERK (B IERAE - Mk
MBI m) Wttt Al AR
AARIRBMBHEEGEL
WE R NEE

(o) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;
meAEE AR ERES
AT - WHEREEEALT
E%%%Eﬁ?ﬁﬁtfﬂ%%@%@t

the nomination of Directors, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director and making recommendations
to the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).
ARRERZE—ZF=A-T+tHRIRERLZEGHEURELE
BEMEREAR FRRREENES IREBLBIIIRPTES
MBUMERRABZIRNESTSRLER - AHREZESWE
E R RIS 5 BB B P A UL (http://www.hkexnews.hk) & K A &
A8k (http://www.singamas.com) ©

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one
executive Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr.
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David.

REZESNRAKERE—BNTEEREZTFIR - RILBE
H(ER) EMBBIIENITESE - BIR AT £ RIS A -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

BREFR REZESIFGRNEFTQERLEANES -

In 2020, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of
individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is

summarized below:
RZEZTF REZEEEE X EEAKENEEREE

RAAT -
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEERE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) SR (/&) 11
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2 n] 1/1
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B 5 [ 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to
the Board and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated to the
Board for information.

REZEGUREHLAACERABITERE - REZEGARE
ERRBEREGHLE RBAERESSEY -
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A5.1- (c) assess the independence of e The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
Ab5.4 independent non-executive Committee during the year under review:

directors; and
i%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%%%ﬁ
[ &

(d) make recommendations to the
board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors
and succession planning
for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief
executive.
MEELEEREFEZEARE
B(LERFE RITH AR 4
ErEmEESREES -

(cont’d)
(8)

— The nomination committee
should make available its terms of
reference explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the
Stock Exchange website and the
company’s website.
REZEEGERTCARMBEUEA
A EAREBESE - B
%ﬁ@u&%%@%%%ﬁm%

— The company should provide
the nomination committee o
sufficient resources to perform
its duties. Where necessary, the
nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice,
at the company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities.

AAEARAZEGRHARE

ﬁMEﬁE%ﬁ k%yém
TRENNERE =P AV
%%%iv%ﬁﬁ&ﬁiﬁ

EOEER  RRZEENTHERAMT

(@

made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assessed
independence of independent non-executive Directors;

ARRERELTESIAL  EERENEZAEZRAES
ﬁ%ﬁ@%&%%ﬁ%vu&ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%Z@j

reviewed the terms of reference of Nomination Committee;

mEiREZ B SN BERE

reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;

RAEFRRE S TLEE

reviewed the nomination policy; and

R IRBEE Rk

reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and
assessed the balance of skills and experience of the Board
as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the busmess of the Company.

MO EEENAR  BERZITL - WHHEFSREME
?Mﬁ@ MEHZ T ABERBIRARANEEE

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1
September 2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, details of which are summarised
as follows:

ETEE_T —FNA BERMEFTEXE L TCHER &

JEEE REMKBZ LMK 7§ - HFER

(@)

LanT

In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be duly considered in the
selechon of candidates.

BREAKZBESSNAER  UEZESGHTEEE
f BREERBERMER - FHe - Xm&ﬂtﬂﬁ BEER
5 - BE - MBARBFR o

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and

candidates will be considered against objective criteria.

%ﬁé%% SERSAR AR BRA - WARBIREE E K
A o

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee will review and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.
%%é%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁT%%g B3]+ LARER
EEERESTEBRIT AR  WiEH eEHRRILE
EIZEEE -
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Ab.1- e The Board has also adopted a nomination policy effective from
Ab.4 26 March 2019 (“Nomination Policy”) setting out the criteria and
(cont’d) procedures when considering candidates to be appointed and re-

(%)

appointed as Directors.
EEE T NF=A-TXBRITDERMEABE - 71&ERN
ZERBEEANZERENZERESTH ZLERIRIEF °

Nomination criteria
REAER

All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based
on the following criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:
FIEEENNZERENZERATERFTHIREAZSTEE

() Iptegrity

(b) Independent mindedness
BUIMER

(c) Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs
of the Company and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors
BEZEEABIFEARARKEE  THAEAREFESY
ST EIE:

(d) Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
responsibilities effectively )
FAENERERESD - WA B ERS KBS

(e) A good track record of experience at a senior level in
corporations/organisations__
AR/ BELARNEERRERENBTRIFER

() Financial knowledge

HEEI% LR

These criteria are for reference and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

FHGEHERE2E  UTAEEREFMAERE - B TEREME

B RAZEGRATRABTMERREENAL -
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Ab.1- Nomination procedures

A54 ST

(cont’d)

=]
(%) The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting

of the Nomination Committee for consideration of a proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it
to consider and make recommendations to the shareholders for
election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies or as additional Directors. Proposed candidates
will be asked to submit the necessary personal information in
relation to the candidates as required in Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary. In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting,
a circular will be sent to shareholders. The names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as required
pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to shareholders.
According to the Articles, the shareholders may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set out in
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting,
Put Forward Proposals at Annual General Meeting and Propose a
Person for Election as a Director” of the Company and available on
the website of the Company.
REZEGMEROMNRRZE SR HREZESZRIEEN
REA - BRELZEGAMNESTRAEEAE  UHEZGER
RrARFEBERNREAG LBETAES  HESSLZARES
WERRRERAERTIZREE - BB ABHSWERIERIRE
LETRANE1B51QGEANET 2 BBRIEEAFMRHEAER - 24
ZEGUNRRBLE - JUERFRBEARMBINEREXMG - A
RECHAEEESREEREAG F2ENREAER - KQF
SRR L@ - FHREANSS  ESFE(BEEERIEH
Kh) - B 2R REMRBERNEE - RARRHIE
R TREBHOER - RBSEZMA - REINAIRE2E
BEEMAZE  BREFBHIINARANRREBARREARE - KR
REAFASRLEZEZRIERENALTZ2BEZ RN - WEE
i /N F i
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AB.5

Where the board proposes a resolution
to elect an individual as an independent
non-executive director at the general
meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of
the relevant general meeting:—
FEEERNREARG HIE2RER
BEEEALTARBIIIFNTES §H
AR BR K & i & P BE Y &) BOAR R 3 e
R/ SREHBA KGR - EZFIEA -

1. the process used for identifying
the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be
independent;
AAmEZAALHRE  &EF
ERAEBMEZEALTHIEAL
RMMIRRzE ALTEELAL
WRE

2. if the proposed independent non-
executive director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, why the
board believes the individual would
still be able to devote sufficient
time to the board;
MREEBIIFRTES BT
BELREU L) ETARINES -
EEERRELAALTIHARAR
MSRBITESEINREA

3. the perspectives, skills and
experience that the individual can
bring to the board; and
ZENTAIRESGH RN EE
AT REERER R

4. how the individual contributes to
diversity of the board. )
ZERANTHAREEEENES
Ttk e

C

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan will stand for re-election as the independent
non-executive Director of the Company in the forthcoming AGM of
the Company according to article 92 and 92A of the Articles.
RRERMBIFE 2R I2AMK « BIn] & & KN AR A EERE A
FRGEEBETARRABIFNTES -

The Company’s circular of AGM set out the information in
considering the re-election of Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, having due
regard to the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy and
assessment of Mr. Lau’s independence.
RARIBRREAFAGBRHEEEREZEAELENGRA - K
@Fﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬂ(%&%%@ﬁi%%fszﬂz%@X&%‘”’Mﬁ%‘Jf‘ﬁiZ%
i" o

A.6

Responsibilities of directors
BEEE

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and

development.

BREFARABREERAFNEENRE  ARARNEEN N - EREHNER -
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A.6.1 Every newly appointed director C e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive
of the company should receive briefing and related materials of the Group’s business activities,
a comprehensive, formal and induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
tailored induction on appointment. requirements.
Subsequently he should receive any FEFRZTRSES EXEERREHEEN  ERBERELEHE
briefing and professional development ¥BEN EFERARBBEN  REMEEEK -
necessary to ensure that he has
a proper understanding of the e All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly
company’s operations and business provided with comprehensive reports on the management’s
and is fully aware of his responsibilities strategic plans, updates on lines of business, financial information,
under statute and common law, the etc.
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory FBERBEFRTES) TR EERHRBIETRENEZE
requirements and the company’s RS EREEBRER - BBERS -
business and governance policies.
HENMEZEANESHREZZARE e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
S2HE - EARFAEMBEMORES updated on Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
M EBNEESITEONEREE requirements.
R - ARRMPIE QAR EERE RAWMEBERRAAEEIIS A LR REMETE ERKHN
BEBHEENIRE  URTE2MER RIEHR -
BIEERRERE - LKA AE
REMEERTEARANFNEBRE
BER TR -

A.6.2 |The functions of non-executive C e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have

directors include:
FMITESO BRI -

— bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board

meetings;

DQEBERRE  EHSLRE
BE - AAIXRR HEMW - &
B EEZRERBRTEMESEE
O RHBUYNER

— take the lead on potential conflicts
of interests arise;
EHRBEN R BRI BEERR
SI8ER

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
EBRHEEREZES FMEE
g RELZEERHEMEREZE

BKE Rk

- scrutinise the company’s
performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring performance
reporting.
FHBEQRNRE D EDR
EHMREBBEMBER  WERE
BAFKRRNEE -

been actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors
review with management in respect of the Group’s strategic
development and direction, emerging risks and opportunities
available to the Group.

EMITERSRANBEEANBAE N EGEEITHBE - EFHE
BEARENEEECAEENREBR LM - URKEHT
BEHEMEH IS o
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A.6.3 |Every director should ensure that he C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year.
can give sufficient time and attention to Please refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.
the company’s affairs and should not FREZESEERZHEEXRSARE - HERHFR E3CEAAA
accept the appointment if he cannot I8 o
do so.
BREFEBEREMN D EHEM RS e Al Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track
BUREBEARMNER  TAITEES record, whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every
ZAE Director has given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of their extensive knowledge and experience in
their respective business undertakings to the Board for the fullest
performance of its functions.
TRESHEFHAENTEMNBNERINTERLE - BENF
RERARNANNE N BEREFEEHARA 2 BB 2 Mk
FRERE - BUIFRTEEMABNREZEEBHRNEZE
EAHERES  BRHEESTEBITHBE -
A.6.4 |Board should establish written C e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees.
EERERAHEERTEEES
oI NBEZ T LR EFRIRSR -

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

ROFEEHRM ETARANEETFEN EHBTAZTFHETES
gi%E@T&‘%EE?E'J(H%EE?EJJJ)%Kﬁﬂ?ﬁ%$%%§%§%ﬁi%?
/\‘ °©

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors
have complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered
by this report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RRARMMBERELEEERNE  MESFELAREMBEZ
SEHEIR 2 AT - B SFIRESPRIPTRE R SFA o

Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating
to securities transactions for relevant employees are set out in the
“Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the
Company.

2 BARME »
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A.6.5 |All directors should participate in C e As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors
continuous professional development are updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing
to develop and refresh their knowledge Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
and skills. This is to ensure that their time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors
contribution to the board remains are encouraged to attend external forums or training courses on
informed and relevant. The company relevant topics which may count towards continuous professional
should be responsible for arranging development training.
and funding suitable training, placing EREESRHERII 2 —5Hh  EFETRHREFEBLELMARAKR
an appropriate emphasis on the EMEREERTCEHERER  UBR2BEFETERN
roles, functions and duties of a listed E o RARNAEBEBESHFEINABRNREAZREZ BASHEFI
company director. RI2 - EARBEEREREI D -
FIEERELEBESERR ¥R
W E M R - AR EE e Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous
TEAE2AEBANRINEMENERLT professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
HEZSELER - ARIEBERH and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
AEMBIWIREEELE - URE remains informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December
PEELIMRAREENAC - Biae 2020, all Directors namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Chan Kwok
BfE- Leung, Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, Mr. Tan Chor Kee, Mr. Kwa
Wee Keng, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, Mr.
Ho Teck Cheong and the then director Mr. Teo Tiou Seng had
confirmed that they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during the year ended 31 December 2020 by participating
in appropriate continuous professional development activities either
by attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors duties and responsibilities.
BEFE EREDESEFTERR  UABRIEFHEMB R
B ERHAEEERAGIMEARTAMBENBEATHESS
EHER HE-Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE  2EEE(H
FERMELE - REBIREAE - EMRALLT REBESE  WEE
Sed - MEESLAE - RS AE  MEELXERER/ERMNR
ABEE)HER  FREFIEIREXMEEARNRAEBRES
B RBEEEENSE A 2R E HETERREINEHD
BAESFRIZ SFRNRCEA L5 2 HTE ©
A.6.6 |Each director should disclose to C e The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their

the company at the time of his
appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant
commitments. The identity of the public
companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved should
also be disclosed. The board should
determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.

BREFEREIXZERRRRIRE
ERARARABEERLAHE
RMEAREMERRE  HEEF
Ef] R e RFKRE LN E IR E
B8 e 89 2 322 @) i 4B A8 B9 42 8 DA I
BTRHEEABBEHS RAORRE -
%%@WEE%?&%W%%N’E&*}K

B

appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments, identifying the public companies or
organisations involved.
EEREXZERECRARNRABREWREREFEL—HER
RBAAINAABEEBLOEE RME - R E A S RRE -
REZE AR QB MR BT -

=4
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A.6.7 |Independent non-executive directors C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board
and other non-executive directors, as Committee meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the
equal board members, should give the independent non-executive Directors and the general meetings
board and any committees on which during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.7, A.5.1-5.4, B.1.2, C.3.1
they serve the benefit of their skills, and E.1.2 for details.
expertise and varied backgrounds FREEELLR ESCETZESSHR  TREBUIEHT
and qualifications through regular BEEEHEMBRARGZIHBERHEISARE - FFBRL2HEA11
attendance and active participation. A2.7 - Ab51-54.-B1.2 C.3.1%E.1.218
Generally, they should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a e Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
balanced understanding of the views of quantltanvely and qualitatively.
shareholders. 2ESELELEMNVEERNBEREEMH EENT
BYIERTEEREMIERITEEIE
AEEMEESRERSMANESS e All non-executive Directors attended the Annual General Meeting
KE  EERHBEEFEERERE held on 30 June 2020 and the extraordinary general meeting held
FZEENEMNLZESNERLIER on 11 December 2020.
g% - AEE  FEMZRT FIBEHFATESAERE _Z_SF X XA=THRTHRREAFEAX
AR REBELER - M FE ERIZFIEF+ AT -ABTHRREIARE -
HERRAE  HRAFARRNERSE
RNIEHTHE
A.6.8 |Independent non-executive directors C ° Please refer to A.6.7 above.
and other non-executive directors F2M EXEABTIE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and
informed comments.
BUMITEEREAMIERNTESA
FRRMHBY  FRJMERERED
ERYEQRHIERE RBOREH E®
1
A7 Supply of and access to information
BRI R ME R
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRA
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make
an informed deC|S|on and perform their duties and respon3|blllties.
%%%%h1 WERER  EFRARZEAFESHRNCEREEERNBERTIELRE - TRBETEBRERE
A.7.1 Send agenda and full board papers C e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three

to all directors at least 3 days before
regular board or board committee
meetings.
EEerHesnaERERgEX
ﬂiﬁ%‘ﬁ&%kﬁ&%%‘“%% NIz
ERTESFENHETZESER
HAB) = RATR M ©

working days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings
to enable the Directors/Board Committee members to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board
Committee meetings.

?%EE%§$/E$§T§E@Jﬁ%@t%$@/ﬁ$§?§ SeeRt
RECZHARZEEZERRS EMW’EHM%E : E. E&X#ﬁﬁé%
g/ HETZEerHe%BRMTOR-EEXARREE S

HETZEEKE -
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

A.7.2 |- Management has an obligation C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer
to supply the board and its of the Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on
committees with adequate and corporate governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and
reliable information in a timely financial matters, as appropriate.
manner to enable it to make ARRZARMERERVBBELEMEEESEHSE U
informed decisions. MEEES KIEERSHENBEEEENESZRHEER (M
EREBEEXRNESERAET BE) -

ZEGRHAILAENERE

B U ESENTEEREFEE e The Directors have separate and independent access to the

BHYIE R TELRE - Company’s senior management to keep themselves abreast of
business activities, financial performance, internal audit and internal

- The board and individual control progress in the Group.

directors should have separate BENATEBYMERBAARNSREREAR  USHEETHE

and independent access to the AEENEREE BHERE  RPBEZRAPETER -

company’s senior management

for making further enquiries where

necessary.

EEghENESTREATER

DRl MEBRABNBELRE -

NERFEBIEE—FEH -

A.7.3 |~ All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
access to board papers and Directors and committee members. Senior management of the
related materials. Company has taken appropriate steps to respond promptly and
FMEESRHEREHESS XN fully to any queries raised by Directors.

RAEBEH - EERLZEGRENEHNEFEXNHREHLE  c BEERIED
B SREEBASSRIEESFBARRIEL 2 EACIE -
— Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.
HREZRHOHEBE  RANAE
R AR IR K 2 H &) B fE o
B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EERAREBABNFHRESSTZ
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
37 e 45 BR K R AR AR
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent.
NAEREEEEME B REMEFMERNET  BREERAMAERENERF  UHETERRTESTIHE 28
EEFWTBOBR
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about
consult the chairman and/or chief proposals relating to the remuneration packages and other human
executive about their remuneration resources issues of the Directors and senior management, including
proposals for other executive but not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as
directors and should have access to well as policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
independent professional advice if FTHNEE S RES RS REEABCTHERREMANER
necessary. FRABEFEETRRNETSSE  SEAFEE  URBERBEES
BN E & S s H A 1T E B A BRATBR)BHAERNER -
BREBATERHITHES - 1F
FE FHEESRISKEBIEHE e The emoluments of Directors and Senior Management have been
BR o determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the
profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions during
the year.
ARRAZEEREREEAEMSERBEMNACZAHE - 23H
KFERBERARNBEHZRBERKER  WR2REFANRARZEF
AR TIHRIEMERE -
B.1.2 | The remuneration committee’s terms C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

of reference should include:

FHREeERARE T mERE

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
BRAREERSREEABNS
BE RTINS SR R R - RBLER N IE
M B AR A2 Fr I 5T % B R
R MEBEFROES

- review and approve the
management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
HEEFEMAICENHRAR
@*ﬁ%ﬂ‘&ﬂt)&ﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁ@ﬂ%

A

— either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, or to make
recommendations to the board
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and
senior management;
INTREZ— BEZEHERX
- BEEMBTEERSR
BAEBMFHHEFES  kmMES

HEFIRITEERERER

E:OERTSS i

0
g
> T g it

\

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and

structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management.

No Director and senior management can determine his own

remuneration.

EEEERUFMNEEGHEUREHARAEEFRARERAS

Tﬁ@w‘%ﬁ%ﬁ&%%zgﬁ cBENRGREBABH T EETHE
VELEN o

The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David (Chairman) and Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ilvan and a non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Tan Chor Kee.
FINEEGREKNEREMLBE L IFNTES - 2 AEEHE L
F(ER)RBIAGESA - UR—UFRTESTRELSEE -

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREFR FTHRESTFENESTSERLHR FEE -

In 2020, the Remuneration Committee met twice and attendance
of individual members at Remuneration Committee meetings in the

year is summarised below: i
RZZZTF  FHWEZESSEMA: FTHEZESEKNEND

EREERAT -
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEERE HERE
Cheng Fu Kwok, David BREHE (/%) 2/2

(Chairman)

Tan Chor Kee PoR 2 B 2/2
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan RIS 2/2
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TEERBRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
B.1.2 — recommend to the board on the e The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
(cont’d) remuneration of non-executive to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable

()

directors;
RERTESHTFIMESTSIR
S

consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZRERDRANOEM - AN
HHEERBEARSEERE M
AL B0 1R PR 1R 1

review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;
HRET K BE A B B2 2K Bl AR IR B S ok
ZEMAZEEEE

review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for
misconduct; and

WA RBERE BT RKE MR
EXkBREBEBESMIRAEE
ZHE &

ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.
WREMESSNEEMBEAT
S2HEETEHEASTHHH -

to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board
for information.
HFNEEGUERMARERUBITARE - FNEEGARE
EERENESRLRARIESSEN -

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review:

EOESEA  FMZE SN TERAMT

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2020;
%@:2:%@%&@%2%%@@&@%%@%&ﬁ%m
2

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

EHRMERRRNITEERDREEABNFIFE :

(c) reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior
management; and

FHRAERARSREBASHLNMMESER &

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-
based bonus policy.

EFNRPEA D RIRFERE 2B PR -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
FNEESEMT o EKREEN  AAEBETEEMNBITEERS
REBABNEFMNGTE  BEFESBENG  RASEMNREES
H(RERARIEBBREENEE) - WHIERITESH T
MEFSERHERRZERBNARMI AN - B HOE
1 B B A B SR B A B A B B0 1R R R o

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration
payable to members of senior management for the year under
review are set out on pages 220 to 223 and page 309 of this annual
report. )
REEEN  ERSEEERAMASNTEEERASKED
N BEHAR A FRE 2208 £ H223H K F309E °
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
make available its terms of reference, on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
explaining its role and the authority FTNEZEe 2 BEHED EHNAR R KB
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
website and the company’s website. include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
FTMNEE R EABRAAL KA RS policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and the
uh FARAEESE MEBEAGCK management, and determining with delegated responsibility, the
EEESERMES - senior remuneration packages of all executive Directors and the
senior management and to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives of the Board resolved from time to
time.
FNEZE e T EREOERALRESRSREEABZHM
ﬁ%&%%ﬁ%%@%ﬁ@%'IQ%§$ATMW%g¢%E
BEFH  HEERTENEAT SBEERTEERSRER
ABRHFMFSE  UMIERTESNFHAESTSREES -
B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support
be provided with sufficient resources to and implements the approved remuneration packages and other
perform its duties. human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration
TNEEERERATEERARET Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to
ﬁﬂ&,\ independent advice at the Company’s expense if considered
necessary. B
Aﬂﬁﬁ%%é%ﬁﬁﬁi%&ﬁﬁ%%Mxéﬁﬁﬁz Mﬁ
BREMADEREBRE - FHNEEGTANERSERTER
SRBFUFEER BABAREXNM -
B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of C e Please refer to notes 14 and 51 in the Notes to Financial Statements
any remuneration payable to members for details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
of senior management by band in the ERRREBAGNFIEB2HMBMERMEE14R51I5 -
annual reports.
NAEEHERANRTMNEREES
RETREANBBBIS S -
C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
SEPSEE
CA Financial reporting
B T P ¥R
Corporate Governance Principle
EESRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects.
EEQRTY  BEWMREEMTZARNKE  BAKAIR °
C.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business
explanation and information to the activities and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each
board to enable it to make an informed board meeting.
assessment of financial and other EENERESeeRIRRESESE I XK EHEER
information put before it for approval. FENPHER -
ERERMAEZTRMAONMEER
ﬁﬂv%%$@ﬂ%ﬁhxémﬁm
EOHBEREMER - ERBRED
AT e
C.1.2 |Management should provide all C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board,

members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties.

ai@ﬁﬁtﬂ ﬁé% B B 1Rt B X
CMAIEREATMRE - BER

TREAIE &%EAI%HFE’JM&

NBEERITABE -

S S my
U>}>\<F'_\_

for the purpose of providing a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.
%Aﬁﬁ*ﬁfﬂz,saz%k{%ﬂ BHER  FREIIBBEALAIR
CBBRARAI RN A ERSGRER G WEEFERE
%$Eﬂ'ﬁﬂ“ﬂzﬁ 2

51
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CEERHE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
C.1.3 |~ The directors should acknowledge C e All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing
in the Corporate Governance the preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
Report their responsibility for which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
preparing the accounts. and of the results and cashflow for the year.
ERREGEE RS PAR TREEARREFEERYGEV AR M BRENEE -
MERUKRENEE - WEEBRARMRMFAREENTBEAMAR - UREERRS
MEBEMR
— There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting e In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
responsibilities in the auditor’s December 2020, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
report on the financial statements. policies and applied them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong
ZEE I B SRR & Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity to
HEBEF MM R REEM’E the International Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments
L - and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the
accounts on the going concern basis.
—  Unless it is inappropriate to assume EREHE_TS_SFT A=+ HALFEZUBREN &
that the company will continue %Egﬁﬁﬁlim%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ’]’;ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ CWEERHARABBMBEREE
in business, the directors should Bl - IS BEIERE R R A - I B RS IR R — D K
prepare the accounts on a going 1,i_;p+ kﬁf%ﬂ’]gﬁﬁ BUARD RSB L BER -
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as e With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which
necessary. is under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a
FR #fﬁj BAR R EIH B LR professional accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the
WAEE - BA é%%ﬁ %E’] iR financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
B LA ﬂ?—ir BRERER B requirements and applicable accounting standards.
FEREFREUARKIREE RARMBHAAEXGHMER  AEMBREEE  E&%F
R F%J?Egérj %$E§1%‘§lﬁﬂ‘%qﬁ&i’%mfﬁﬁa’“ﬁfﬁ/ﬂﬁ& Az
= STZ4ER
— Where the directors are aware
of material uncertainties relating e The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements
to events or conditions that may of the Group is in a timely manner.
cast significant doubt on the EEWRREB M EMERER T AT -
company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, they should be e The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
clearly and prominently disclosed reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
and discussed at length in the set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 100 to 112 of
Corporate Governance Report. this annual report.
%%$%ﬂ%§*ﬁik?ﬂﬂﬂﬂ$ﬂ¢iﬁi RARZEE R E I BBERPIE2 RREEZANHNILF]R
BRI EREZERARFEL F100EEFE112B 2 BB ER o
B S i%ﬁ‘ﬂ{m%%ﬂé%
EERHE %T&Eg)}#i 5 a5 e The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may
TEARAE cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
EEWTANBEAREARANBELC LR NERNEREBNE
fAIERTAREE -
C.1.4 |The directors should include in the C e The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion

separate statement containing a
discussion and analysis of the group’s
performance in the annual report, an
explanation of the basis on which the
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.

EEREFHRANRROTEBRR

E’J?ﬂi?ﬁ(kﬁﬂ M ARSI RERESE
FRBEENER(EEEXNLER

RBFTI B IRHOSRAE o

and analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on
pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.
EEGENLFRECEZF1BEZIFERE AR HBEAITE
= AT F5 4B B R SR IR VBT L A
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, C e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all
in annual and interim reports, and other shareholder communications.
financial disclosures required by the EEEXMARFEAP - HERZRBERKRIELEMW - T
Listing Rules. It should also do so for RS RIZRATE o
reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements. e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
THRESCREFERS AP HRE under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to
LIRE EMARREETHEEZENEM present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
B ERA - WARKRBELFE - Group’s position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key
B RAR SIBEMEEETE o AN - HIR officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and
EEMEEERINMES RIREE in consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and
Bl 38 & % 5 1 & B R 1E D R B A BR sensitivity of transactions and proposed transactions and advise the
U Board accordmg

EFESANBRETIERRAURRONZEZEEZR é%—giﬂlm&
SFEBEMMSNERNAEER R EATSNFE - RAWER
NAWEBETEASBEEZERETSE B3 %%IE&X%%
BNEEMREBRERZARAELER  WiRtAE %Ahﬁj@m g

c.2 Risk management and internal control

[\ B B TR N ) B B A
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the issuer’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The board should oversee management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the
board on the effectiveness of these systems.
EERAETARETETAENER B ESMBEEZMNEREERIZE  TRARBETARIREFSERBRHEA
REERADEEZS EESREEEEEHRRERERABEZERFARET ,aﬁm&j%%i CERERONEEGIR
HEBERFEEHRTER o

C.2.1 |The board should oversee the C ° Please refer to C.2.3 and C.2.4 below for the details.
Company’s risk management and HME2E T XEC23K%C.2.478 »
internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and
its subsidiaries’ risk management and
internal control systems has been
conducted at least annually and report
to shareholders that it has done so
in its Corporate Governance Report.

The review should cover all material
controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls.

EEgR ii“"ﬁtﬂ“TEl’Jﬂ BER
P ERES 12 2 Iﬁeamteaa
B It
m%r;%e/ GERBAY  WHE(REE
YRR H (A AR R PE IR S Se A R BB IR
& e ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁﬁi%%%%
FE - BEMBEE - EEEERE
REE -

C.2.2 |The board’s annual review should, C e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of
in particular, ensure the adequacy resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s
of resources, staff qualifications and accounting, internal audit and financial reporting staff as well as their
experience, training programmes and training programmes and budget and considers as adequate
budget of the company’s accounting, §$ ERMARA G  AHEEZLVBERNEIRER - &
internal audit and financial reporting Z“‘%ﬁﬁﬁm@ﬂ%’] IERBTITHMEZEIREREAEER
function. XzEé TFRRETFERS  URRERH -
é%ALﬁﬁfr A EHERA

B NEEZ LT ERBE E
ANEE BIABREH - LA &E
ég%fﬁ’ﬁ%alf BrREHBRERER
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TtEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX f(E) PEERER
C.2.3 |The board’s annual review should, in C e For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board, with the

particular, consider:
EEREFRINFHEESNEET
PIEIE -

(@)

the changes, since the last
annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant risks, and the
Company'’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the
external environment;

B EFRae  BXERNEE
RBEERENEE  UKAAE
@E%%%ﬁ&%&%%%ﬁm

CEARE

the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control
systems, and where applicable, the
work of its internal audit function
and other assurance providers;
EEEFRBLERER &M
EHMIEsREREE - k(@
FA) R BR EAZ T B2 I B A AR 78 1R 1
HOIE:

the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring
results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the issuer and the
effectiveness of risk management;
MEFS(HETLZEE)EEE
RERNFREERRE - KA
DEEFSTRBETANEZER
RERERNEBIZE

significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes
or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact on
the issuer’s financial performance
or condition; and
HANEENBREERRIER
WEREEESHIE - UREEHR
AEFERNERIBEZBERANE
BRE MZFERIEREE
TARBMBRRABERAEESE
AR EEN S RAEEEED
BAXE R

the effectiveness of the Company’s
processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rule compliance.
NAEIBBETBRE REFCETR
ANRENREFERAMR

assistance of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
Function, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the
management, has conducted regular review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls systems, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management systems
and no irregularity or material weakness was noted within any
function or process. The Board considers the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for the Group
as a whole. The Board further considers that there was no material
issue relating to the controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group.
Please refer to C.2.4 below for the details.
BE_Z_ZFF+_RA=+—HIEFERN " EEREZET L&
EREEZBE  CERRERZESREEENHYT - EX
SETHRAAEEANREIZERZRG(RENL - LERESRET)
R E IR R B - WAREBREMBEREBERBL Y
BRHEBARK - EEGRA - AREERAMBEZEZRGEHANEE
BEREMEBEULTR - BEE2QUWRE - NEBEVK  €EX
SRETFURRRERMES HTHEAREEMEARETHE - 48
E2HTXEC241F -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX R (E) PEERER
C.2.4 |The Company should disclose, in C RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
the Corporate Governance Report, a [RLBR B 2R K A BP B 1
narrative statement on how they have
complied with the risk management Purpose
and internal control code provisions B

during the reporting period. In
particular, they should disclose:
NAEECEEERRE) A AfR it
Rﬁ&%ﬁmﬂﬁﬁi%WLfﬂ
B NEBER I ST AR - A 8
T BEARERRE

a) the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
RARHR  THREEERNAR
R

(b) the main features of the risk
management and internal control
systems;
FERERRABEERGNEE
g

(c) an acknowledgement by the board
that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control
systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material
misstatement or loss;
EFREARHAHRRERRA
HEZRGEE - IﬁaEMﬁ
ZEGEHERMNE - EEGITE
Q%&%?ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ#%@

BRRENEBARNRER  mE
N Hb?fr\mﬁij(m%glg%mgz
BRIEHA B M IFBE IRE

(d) the process used to review
the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems and to resolve material
internal control defects; and
A LA ET B 12 ] A BB ER 4
mﬁﬂ&mkf&mﬁ RE A
BEIERARIRT R

(e) the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
BEREMANEHEESNEFNA
BPESIE IR B o

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for
reviewing their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.
EEEEEARIEERRELRAERNEAKREE RANBEZESE
Whgst B ARG - BIFNFTDIEMB KM -

The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for ensuring the smooth operation of business in order to
facilitate the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate
goals and objectives by allowing it to respond appropriately to
significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable financial
and corporate information, safeguarding the Group’s assets and
shareholder’s interests, ensuring all the transactions are executed
in accordance with the management’s authorization, and complying
with the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations,
and also with the Group’s internal policies and conduct. However,
the risk management and internal control systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks
of failure in operational systems when business objectives are being

sought
AR %F&H % B 50 77 T BR A — E%ﬁﬁ ﬁw
ﬁf Mﬁﬁ%% CUBIEIE I - R B AT - - Bt
% anRkEMER CEHEENDE - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁ&&
WERCEXERRTE  REZECH  UARHAIEMBREE
GE  REAREOEERBRAG  REFARZHHEEEE
[ZEVRIENTT - DA RGBT A B)E DIl BOE AR B9 1R 5E B K &= 1B A A0
BERITRFA - A - BREBERABEZERGTERTSF
BERERBM B RBEHEGBEFBE 2RE - WHNBRER
E%%ﬁﬁ@#%%%@ﬂ&%%%@@o

Framework

£

The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced
internal control and risk management systems, with clear division of
work among the Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the management, functional departments
and business departments within the structure of the entire internal
control and risk management systems.

$ ARV TEIE A EEHEMNAREENREREER
'#¢§$A =t *iA‘Aiﬂha@yé *%ﬁ@‘
EZ RPN E BRI AR ENSER LA R EERST S TH




Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
C.2.4 e The Board is responsible for maintain a sound and effective
(cont’d) implementation of internal control and risk management. The Board
(&) has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for

assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee, through discussion
with management and engagement of internal audit team of PIL,
to review the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and to report to the Board any
significant risk issues. The Board will provide its own view on the
effectiveness of the systems after reviewed the works and findings
of the Audit Committee.
EERREARRBRAENNANBEELEREREE - EFY
TRERZZES  BERDEFERTARERANASERRE
BRABEZRFSERIREN - EREZECFREERERN
MEEBEARA TGN AETAE A AEEEREREERR
(BIEVK  SERAAEERERERINE)NARE - WhE
EEREACMEARAREE EFSLEHNEZZEGNIER
BRI ERE  SREEHENRBRERLER -

e Relevant executive directors and senior management have been
delegated with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring
the performance of designated operating business units. The
management is responsible for organizing and steering the daily
operation of the internal control of the Company. The management
would report the business plans and development to the Board
on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the
changes in business environment. Each operating business unit
also maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate to
its structure and business environment whilst complying with the
Group’s policies, standards and guidelines.
HARTEERSREBRBEERTRERNNEEERSEE
CEEBEMN KT  c BEREEEHEMRAEABRARAPETS
HEET BEEESFEREXKHEARBRTESS - HRFH
PEEERARLARREDENERALEEEBLERGE - &
EEEN BB ARBREBREZ ABEERIEF - XA
Fri8FAREEKER - £RIKES -

Internal Control System
N EFELTE R 4R

e The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal
audit team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s
operations and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based
approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business unit on
a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for approval.
Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of
concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management
from time to time.
AEENADBEZBMERATRBONTEAHEHEE  HEHAE
IR L E R ABEZERG - BFEHET TIEEHEIRA AR
BRRERE T - WAREEEEE - AT HEIERRENERK
FomnREREREEEBEMNTERHRBE  WHGE
RTEZRZEGEM - I TETEREREZEGRERREM
AENETHBETETER -
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.24 e Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
(cont’d) individual business units, the scope of work performed by Internal
(8 Audit covers all material controls including financial, operational

and risk management functions. During the year, Internal Audit
deeply inspected, investigated and assessed two subsidiaries
of the Company. It has reviewed and assessed their systems on
procurement, operation flow, internal control, financial, contracting,
safety and environmental protection, human resources and
administration etc.

BIERIERE A EBIEE RERERTE - ASEITIE
HE - RENE  LERCREZESMBEEEEE  ARARE
R - FA - REEZDRIAAZE R KRR 7 mE
MEAA  wMRFETZERAINKRE  2ERE  AEE
?%EZ;EM% AR HREERBHRRE  URANERRITESE
RWL °

The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management
level and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal
Audit’s recommendations. The internal audit findings are also
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate
meetings following the issue of the internal audit report. The
responsible heads of departments will be notified of the control
deficiencies noted for rectification. The management would urge
the relevant business segments and units to implement rectification
measures in a timely manner, so as to ensure the internal control
system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews will be
conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. During the year, corrective actions
were taken based on the audit findings and no significant control
failure which might affected shareholder’s interest has identified. The
Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit findings, management
responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations, if any, are
referred to the Board for consideration. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s
attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of
internal controls is inadequate.
NBEZERGERZTEEEN®  TEEAPEIZAOEZRK
HR#ETE - ABEXERTREBEHAPEAREENSE
IFRETEZZESGRESS - FAMEEBERMEET TR
ZERETTIEE - EREBREBES A REMLFEZERE
B BRARABEZEZRAREE - nBREBEZES
POt - eREZRETRERN  WREREZEggaRE
ESERPHR - FAN - ERMENNBRDEE - WEERA
BRUHRRNGEENTENEARERLE  -BEREE R EHMEA
NEEZER BEELERADEZEZTRERKY - WAE
FRERENABRFAREEZZWE) - AR SR BREF R
DEFAIEIF RS AINERERE - RAILERMS| BEZ

ZB8IE  HEHERZESHEANEERRE RN -
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #5(c))/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C24 Group’s risk management
(cont’d) SERRER
(&)

e The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and reviewing
its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set up an Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, composed of senior management and heads
of key corporate functions, with a mandate for overall risk management
activities of the Group. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s main
responsibilities include a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s
major risk exposures and its management status and maintaining the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system.
é%AEiW$$%IHMg@?%&mﬁﬁﬁ“%&ﬁﬁﬁ rEE

BECERREEZES BAfERERFELENMNEEEAR
EXEAEASERERAREREY CEAREEZEGTERER
E2EBEMADNZENSEERRBREAEEMR - U REFRRER
FEEEN BRI -

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk management
matters such as the overall objectives and policies as well as its working
mechanisms of the Group’s risk management system, the establishment of
individual risk management unit at company level, risk assessment of major
operating activities, provide recommendations for the mitigation of major
risks and to carry out any other assignments from the Board.

PEER *ﬁiﬂEXE§%$%EE@§ﬁ$Em%$§ﬁﬁ%%’
WREERRERERY WW%EF&W% DREEEER  ER
HEERRRERERN  EBLETHIEL BRI Ik{
NERERRR  ANBTESSRINEMEMER -

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board and
Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the Group’s
risk management activities, risk positions and management measures
for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk Management
Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports which evaluate
the risk level of major activities and processes of the Group’s operating
business with focuses on financial risks, operational risks, strategic risks
and market risks to the Board and Audit Committee twice a year.
TERREREZEEEFRIMARNESFERERZECERLTED
MARERRERES HM%ﬁ&%%IRHMmE@hm IAi
FRMRAMEFLGNEREZEQREMMALRE @ St HMBRER
Rk - KRR RTSERE %%$%IM$%%$xé§&ﬂ&m
ERIZE o

e With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses the
key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates relevant
strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
Er¥EREREZES BRLZEGREREHRHT  EZQ@AIRT
MAEEEEBRREREE T E@MB - W HIFTABRBAEE - A
RERERRE -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.24 INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
((igr)]t’d) NEH B ERR
e |n order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure
obligation under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”),
the Board has adopted an “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”
effective from 29 June 2016 which sets out the guidelines to the
directors, officers and the employees of the Group, who is likely to
be in possession of the unpublished inside information to (a) monitor
the Company’s business developments so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and report to the Board to enable
them be timely informed of any circumstances or development that
may constitute inside information of the Company and to make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable
precautions to preserve confidentiality of inside information and the
relevant announcement (if applicable) before publication.
RERGEBXM EMBAABRFEREST  UREHRBE
1O (TBH REEGEN ) (BEENEST1RE)EAREANRHEN
BE BFECEE_T—"FRAAZTNARBEN AR HEEIRE
K| BEMASE 2 ES o ABREEHAIEFEERA
B2 AREE)IRMIES] - (@B AR AN EBRERETESR - U
EERFANERBENARES  UMEESER  UWEESE
REEREM B AR R AR H BB RS ER - WIEHR
E B ERIELARERE - RO)RBAEEE - SABEER
BRASER)RE - AZAMTEAL -
C.2.5 |The Company should have an internal C e Please refer to C.2.4 above for the details.
audit function. Issuers without an A2 EXEC.2.418 -
internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for
the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report.
NANERSLNFBEZINEE - RA NEP
ERNENETAERBERNERT
LRRBULIATNEE - WECREE AR
EYNEEREDEBEELR -
C.3 Audit Committee
EZEEE

Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.

ExgrANAEAMBER RREERADEERILAEREQRZEMEENBERIFLERELERENE

B o
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2238 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.3.1 |— Full minutes of audit committee C e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate

meetings should be kept by a duly
appomted seoretary of the meeting.
EZLZEENTEERRHER
ft‘ti&ﬁ’]ﬁéwi%r

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
QE%EE%E’WJ%& 1% E TR FETE
£§H¢ R A 5 18 3% 3K
¢ %)J TRtk B &
RIEEZHZ

and handle matters within its terms of reference and make
recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.
BEEEORUBEREZESHUTEREERE LB EGRENNE
ARIE - LRAEFFREABHRSEHE °

The current members of the Audit Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan (Chairman) and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, of which at least
one independent non-executive Director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
management expemse
ERZEGREKNEREMUBIIFNTES 2B AZIAHE
F(ER)RBEHELE - W —(ERITEE ﬁgﬁ'ai =
ZLO(MBIUFNTEFEEEEEEER  FAFHEENS
FEENBERER -

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendat|ons to the Board after each meeting.

BREFR BERZESGIFCRNEFGERLLANES

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year.
In 2020, a total of three meetings were convened and held with
satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee members’
attendance in 2020 are as follows:

ERZESEHRTER L EBFMRX -R_ZT-TF BX

ZESHBARBITZRAGH  HEBEXSARE - RZTZF
FBEEERZESRENHEFBIEHET

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE

Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) 2RI {3 (3 ) 3/3

Cheng Fu Kwok, David B8 5 [ 3/3

Kwa Wee Keng RE 3/3

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of
meetings are circulated to the Board for information.

ERRBRANEE AR NEERLARRESEMEM -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.3.1 e The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
(cont’d) during the year under review:

()

EOEERN  ERZEENTHEMANT

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial reports for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and for the six months ended 30
June 2020;
EUHEE-_ZE-NE+-A=+-—BILEERBEE_ZT_-F
FRAZTHILEREANAEEGEMBERE

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit plan and the
letters of representation;

EHINSREMEE T BB RERERE

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal
auditor;

EH N AR O EET A R IR

(d) considered and approved the 2020 audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditor;

EZRNAE-T - TEINEREANE B R E IR AR

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on
pages 83 to 87 of this annual report; andi
EHHANARFRESGEEFETEZIFHE@ERF] + Kk

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. )
FHASE AT R AR E R RFHREE o

On 25 March 2021, the Audit Committee met to review the 2020
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the
management and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the
best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in this report complies with the applicable accounting
standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 for public release.

RZEZ—F=AZ+FHH  FZXZLZELBHRIMNEZBMEN =
Z_EFENGEAVBERE  BREEHNASERB SRR
BEISER] - RIBNEEEALER - URETIRE RIMNEZ SR H
% BREZEGERARAMKMAZETERERFN  YERHE
RARERBENMBERGTEER 2 T ERI R LW R B+
Ne AN BEREZEGEREE S -_TF+-_A=t+—HLF
BEHREVBRENEZTS AR ARER -

The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor for 2021
and that the related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’
consideration and approval at the forthcoming AGM.

BB NERENE IR - HER T SR EB RN EE
B —FEAINEZEE  WEBRNEERRAEAFAE LR
RIRRE R R imiE o
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.3.1 e During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s
(cont’d) external Hong Kong auditor for audit work amounted to
€9 HK$2,485,000 and for non-audit and review activities amounted to
HK$524,000 (including HK$290,000 for interim review, HK$51,000
for tax review and HK$183,000 for other related services).
REIEFR - ARASINEEBEZEA 2 %8 E M 52,485,000
BITEIEZ B R ER 2 RIS E M /524,000 T (BFEF HEHE
FA290,00078 7, ~ BiHE BB 51,0009 7T & H AR R R 75 & A
183,000 7T) °
C.3.2 | A former partner of existing auditing C e No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
firm shall not act as a member of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years after he
committee for two years from the date ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to MERREEERARARANZEAANEERARKILEXA
have any financial interest in, the firm, ZREBATEHABHEHMERN  EAXRATEZZEEX
whichever is later. 8 e
BREAREETAARENZHEAAN
AEABARMRKEIERARARAE
AB B - Sith NEE %A A f’cﬁ
B A5 R e /0 A B (A B HIER é% %)
BEITMERN  NMEEEERE %’%#}
B8 e
C.3.3 |The audit committee’s terms of C e The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms

reference should include:

BREEGNBESE RS

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
MINEZBENHEE - EFEE
RBEMESSREEZERIE
SIS A 25 A O HE B AR

- review and monitor external
auditor’s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process;

RS N BE SR ANIE A2 BUAM B B 3L B
B R AZBUR e 0B U

= review of the company’s financial
information; and

FHRRNHBER - R

— oversight of the company’s
financial reporting system,
risk management and internal
control procedures, including
the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
EERRPBERMEIE - ER
BERANRERERF 8
RIFE S 5 I B T B R B A
ER BIBERKR
5 AREBIFEINE
MEBBRERERRE -

WME
5 I B 5

o /0 3 b m

Tk

of reference which have complied with the Code requirements and
are modified from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is made available on the website of the Company and
Stock Exchange.
BRZBGNKIZTAREEAEEATAEBESE KD TRIE
IS - EREZE G BESGE R BTHN AR T KB FEN -
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Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
BR(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
% =P ﬁﬁ

C.3.4

The audit committee should make
available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company s website.

%V?;ﬁg 10 75 2% B 48 il e S =148
W ERFHEBERE  #EEACKR
EXGHERTENEN -

C

* Pleasereferto C.3.1 and C.3.3 bove for the details.
FAIES B EXEC3.1RC.3.3H

C.3.5

Where the board disagrees with
the audit committee’s view on the
selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors,
the company should include in the
Corporate Governance Report a
statement from the audit committee
explaining its recommendation and
also the reason(s) why the board has
taken a different view.
RNEFEETREEREZESHTE -
ZE - BERBREINERBEMEEN
=) NEIEECEE QRS FIH
EREZEEMMEEZENER UK
EEEHITRAERNERER -

e The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject
to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the
Company’s external auditor for 2021. The Board agreed with the
recommendation made by the Audit Committee.
ERZRERNESTES  ENBERY-BERy StMTHE
RARZZEZ—FEMINEZEED - MEELRRNEERITHMR
REFAREG LHE - FrEE - EECREERZEQIES °

C.3.6

The audit committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.
BEREEGREHRRTEERNELT
HBE -

e The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary
can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should the seeking of such advice be considered
necessary by the Audit Committee.

ERZEGCLERN EERLZESRAAVESRKBUHEEE
RAMEARALZH BRABARRARZA -

C.3.7

The terms of reference of the audit
committee should also require it:

ERREENREEETARE

— to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;
and

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
EEQREINEZEE 2 B8 E
%ﬁi@ CBRER_ECHNE

e Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for details.
HE2E EXEC31K%C.3.3% °
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX f(E) PEERER
D DELEGATION BY/THE BOARD
BEEERINER
DA Management functions
EEINRE

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to

management.

REEEHEEANEEAS NS EEESHENEARREERERENEA -

delegation arrangements in place. The
company should have formal letters of
appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
EREREREERUTHENBRR
o REIEBEAMNESTEZMEE - 7]
AEBEEZENFEZRRAEMY -

D.1.1 | When the board delegates aspects of C e Management meetings are held periodically where executive
its management and administration Directors and heads of senior management of the respective
functions to management, it must, at business divisions are present and clear directions are given as to
the same time, give clear directions the management’s powers.
as to the management’s powers, in EEESTHRINE  PTESRABEEDBPINEREEA
particular, where management should BRFEABSLFESR  WHEBEMNENGE TEMES -
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or e Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the
entering into any commitments on the Board for approval.
company’s behalf. FAMEERZEEXIRFHIXHAEESSER -
EESYHAETERITHYESER
BHEETERER  LWEARRKRE e Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules
BEMEN - L TEWMIES - FH or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure
EEERERNESSERARER will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and
R A BIMEH E AR E S R] SR HFE shareholders’ approval will be obtained in accordance with the
AERSESSFESERH@E © requirements of the applicable rules and regulations.

B EmRAS @A RASEAMETRE EEFEE -
AL EECRE  URFTERRBERZRAERMIESR
F 838 ok R BB AR R 2 Bk ©

D.1.2 |Formalise functions reserved to C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the
the board and those delegated to Chairman of the Company, management is responsible for the day-
management and to review those to-day operations of the Group.
arrangements periodically to ensure TERTRBEETAARRZERTET  EEEAEAEHE
that they remain appropriate to the BT EE -
company’s needs.

N ERGPLLRE TE S MR e The Company has established clear terms of reference for the

BLER TEREAOBED BIRE T Board which are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain

R W E BAEIR T AR B B 2 HE 1T appropriate.

BRAINEBE - f@ﬁaﬁiiéﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂwﬂ%&%%ﬁ » 0 TE BB AT AR ELAR B
= A8

D.1.3 |The company should disclose C e The respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions
the respective responsibilities, of the board and management have been discussed through this
accountabilities and contributions of Corporate Governance Report.
the board and management. EESHEEESENBEC AL EEEARE T wi -
RRIEREEESREBEESANR
F AEZEMAHEARBERIEHE
B o

D.1.4 |Directors should clearly understand C e Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key

terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
FEESREWRIEREZRESE  WEBIIAEZEZEFEBRARKG
- GEHETERTTHERLERESE -
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Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

D.2

Board Committees
EEEETNEES

Corporate Governance Principle
REEBRE

Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and

duties.

EFEgRTEZEGNKYEAEANSERESE  SEIHZEGRHINEBE -

D.24

Where board committees are
established to deal with matters, the
board should give them sufficiently
clear terms of reference to enable them
to perform their functions properly.
BERNUZECREEHE  ESCR
MEBEZEEGRMAD EENBIESR
CREHREE BT -

C

Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee,
have been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer
to A.5.1-5.4, B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for details.
BN AEETEES  IEREES  FHNEES 7
ZRLZEERERZES  SEREBESE - FHF2HEXE
A5.1-5.4-B.1.3 - C.3.3K&D.1.218

D.2.2

The terms of reference of board
committees should require them to
report back to the board on their
decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so (such as
a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).
EFRETSZEgWBEaERER
EHEEEENESFERAATESN
B RERZLEGXEELEE
BER thi] PP PR M 1S BB 1 UL FE 3 () N R BE &
#E MR 65 5.) -

Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

ELEeRTZRENEFCRNESTIERIAT RS -

D.3

Corporate Governance Functions
REERBEE

D.3.1

The terms of reference of the board (or
a committee or committees performing
this function) should include:
BEER(HETHBRENEZES)NR
RESEERLE -

— develop and review the company’s
policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;
HlE RigET A AM b EEABR
RER WmEEGREESR

— review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and
senior management;

BT REREERSREEAS
IS RIS EEEER

No corporate governance committee has been established. The
Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with
the following duties:

AABWEBIEEEREZES  CEECRBIEHEEZEEE
WETHBE

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
I R AR RN EEERBR R ER - WIRHER

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Diregtors;
B RERESNEIIRBETEER

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
BARERARBERFTEIEAREERATHTENBERE
o
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D.3.1 - review and monitor the (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

(cont’d) company’s policies and practices compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

(&) on compliance with legal and Directors;

regulatory requirements; FET c A RERERANEERESNRTTAIRARFM
WA RERAAEETEAERE (nA)
ERTETEOBRRER
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
— develop, review and monitor the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
code of conduct and compliance B ARARETTHHNBRAERRCEERREPIELOE
manual (if any) applicable to E R
employees and directors; and
Bl BALREREBEREZEED () such other corporate governance duties and functions set out
BTEARGHRFREEA) & in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board
is responsible.
~  review the company’s compliance FINTFANEETSAENZSTHMPEE ABE MR (K
with the Code and disclosure in the TEEHEE]) ©
Corporate Governance Report.
B ARIEFREERTANIE
MBREREERRENNEKE -

D.3.2 | The board should be responsible for C e No corporate governance committee has been established. The
performing the corporate governance Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions. Please
duties set out in the terms of refer to D.3.1 above for details.
reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate AATWERIEEEREES  CEERBIHEESET -
the responsibility to a committee or FFAESM EXX®ED.S1IE -
committees.

EXQRARREITD.IMERESEFT
HOPEELRE  TABEEEKR
Tl ZEEEE -

E COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
ERARBR #0538

E.1 Effective communication
BRUBME
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.
EEFRATERRFERFYUE  LERERRAFAGHAMRRAGERFERERFEMOMOH2E -

E.1.1 For each substantially separate issue C e Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of
at a general meeting, a separate the Company on each substantially separate issue, including the
resolution should be proposed by the election of individual Directors.
chairman of that meeting. The company BHEEBRBIYNEE  HEARARERE EUERIRZERIE
should avoid “bundling” resolutions 2 BEERERES -
unless they are interdependent and
linked forming one significant proposal.

Where the resolutions are “bundled”,
the company should explain the
reasons and material implications in the
notice of meeting.

ERRAS L SZTFEUEFEE
BBV EERMNELRESR - RIE
BRAREREMBEEKRTFREE &
BRFK—EEANES  KARAE
BN IRRR - SE[HILIAZ
B RARESZBRERERARE
RS RERTE -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX R (E) PEERER
E.1.2 |= The chairman of the board C e The 2020 annual general meeting (“2020 AGM”) at which the

should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he
should invite another member of
the committee to be available to
answer questions at the annual
general meeting.

é% Iffgﬂjfﬂxiﬂiji

E@ E%é%@&&ﬂﬁﬂﬂ
ZBEWRMEBERAME)NER
HE - EAMZBEEIFEARL
B EBEFERIREHGES BR
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁﬁi@%%

— The chairman of the independent

board committee (if any) should
also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’
approval.
SR THBEVZEEWA)N
TEIEEEMBAENTRSHHE
RERE LRIEMBE - BIBER
5 ok A fa] L B 45 98 7 AR SR L
5 o

- The company’s management
should ensure the external
auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
AETE’\JEEJ%EE{%WHGV%(EW
HERREAFRE  DEFH
erI{’F fﬁ%q’f?%lﬁﬂi#lﬁi&ﬁ
B B BRI R B 6 B
’\E%F:ﬁi g

H}Eﬁ}

external auditor attended was convened on 30 June 2020. An
extraordinary general meeting of the Company was also held on 11
December 2020 (“EGM”) for approving a connected transaction in
relation to a proposed repayment plan.
—EEFEZRRAFAS(ZZ_ZFRRAFAEHNER
ZEZEFERNAZTHET  INEZHEMISEEE o KD F
50_2_3¢+_ﬂ +—H ﬁiﬁTﬂxi%E\JﬁA(FﬂxiﬁﬁJ
gl BEUETEERENG A 2B S

ball
= %

H,

e Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2020 AGM and EGM are set
out below:

IT?%%M'J%$& TECTERREAFRGRBERERAG 2 F

2020 AGM
—EEH EGM
Name of Directors EE# & BRAFAE BREIAE
Teo Siong Seng RN 1/1 1/1
Chan Kwok Leung  FREI£R 1/1 1/1
Teo Tiou Seng REARE 1/1 1/1
(resigned on 11 R=—F=——
March 2021) F=A+—
H & L)
Chung Pui King, B IR 1/1 1/1
Rebecca
Tan Chor Kee R AL 1/1 1/1
Cheng Fu Kwok, — ZB&jE 1/1 1/1
David
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2 a] 4 1/1 1/1
Kwa Wee Keng WREE 1/1 11
Ho Teck Cheong  faJfZ & 1/1 1/1

e |n 2020, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of
Nomination Committee), the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Company’s
external auditor attended the 2020 AGM and were available to
answer questions during the meeting.

R-ZE_ZF  ER2ER (GIREEZEESERE) FXZEE
FRE - M;,\EIF&ZK AINEZEMHAELHE T _FF
H&?ﬂik‘* WA E EEIEIRMA -

e |n 2020, the Chairman of the independent board committee
attended the EGM and was available to answer questions during
the meeting.

ﬁA ToEF  BUZBEXIFELEERIEFIIAE - @ o

?:EF? °
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E.1.3 | The company should arrange for the C e The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2020 AGM of the

notice to shareholders to be sent for Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the
annual general meeting at least 20 clear meeting and the notice for the EGM was sent at least 10 clear
business days before the meeting and business days before the meeting.
to be sent at least 10 clear business ARRABE_S_EFRFAFAGRITINEZELRE-TEZEEH
days for all other general meetings. MRREXFABRARERREFIASRTIZEL R T EEEA
RBRRBAFAGME - RRIERHE EHHBAM -
RERTHEIRZ -HIM%EI A AR
REXBH - MMEHMRERS
mE - BIREXRERITAIZDE A
EEHERBE -

E1.4 |The board should establish a C e The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
shareholders’ communication policy and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is
and review it on a regular basis to subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
ensure its effectiveness. ESCHERFTBABE  WEEHRARREY - ZBEHBT
EEREHTERRBABGK - X EH HEAVE I i 5T ARRIR ELAO K ©
T AR LR o

e This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”),
both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including its financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk
profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

IR PTEIE X B EARAR R (TIRR]) - BFEEA RERE
BRE  REEZEBEATEE—REEAL  HAERKIISRHE -
HRAKBRSEBEBROANREN (BEEVBRE - 8B EE NG
£ iﬁ?ﬁ CERRERER)  —FEERRAEREELT
TS S EEERRRRE AT EARR R MNRES -
E.1.5 |The Company should have a policy C e The Board adopted a dividend policy which aims to allow

on payment of dividends and should

disclose it in the annual report.

gﬁﬁéﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%\ﬁ’aﬂzﬁﬁjﬁﬁéiiﬁw
= o

Shareholders to share the Company’s success whilst preserving
the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.
The Board devotes to achieving prudent capital management and
meeting Shareholders’ expectatlons with the dividend policy.
DNAIEERMREBR EEBERRAOZARRILEXR - BRKTE
BADAMREE S UIBE AR RS - ESEHNRBB
AREBFEFEENEAER  WHERRHEHE -

Under this policy, the normal dividend payout ratio of the Company
is about 30% of the net profit attributable to Shareholders in any
financial year but no more than 50% thereof unless otherwise
approval by the Board.

RIBZIBR $/&ET#ﬁﬁéfﬂﬂﬁiﬂﬁziﬁ%%ﬂx%ﬂ%ﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁﬁ%
T A30%E IR B AT - BRIEE SITHE - BRAITBEBBERE
JEAL 35 M B FEEY50% °
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
E1.5 e The declaration of dividends, whether as interim and/or final
(cont’d) dividends, is subject to the discretion of the Board in considering
(18) the following factors in each financial year:

BENEIR(THEESTHR SARAKREINEREEENE
BB FERBEEBATEE

= Financial perform‘ance and liquidity conditions;
MBRARRBESMKR

— Retained earnings and distributable reserves;

B e ok

— Company’s debt level to equity ratio and return on equity;
AR BB B R L R FNAR AN B R R A KT

— Dividend received from the Company’s associates and
subsidiaries;
AR BRI B A B FIEE & A B AR 2.

— Expected working capital requirement and capital expenditure;
TEHEEESHERRERME

= Future expansion, other investment plans and other funding
requirements;

ARIER - R REAIINEMESHR

— Global economic condition and other internal or external
factors, including any restrictions under the applicable laws and
regulations and the Articles or contractual restrictions as may
apply from time to time; and;

IRBEBEAMR - R E A RSk /N A 2 (B 458 B A B AR 1R 3
BRPERIER R ERMAR T ERREI S LBRED) : K&

— Other factors that the Directors deem appropriate.

EERRAENEMBRARE -

Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting
and must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The
Board may, without the approval of Shareholders, also declare an
interim dividend if it appears to them that they are justified by the
distributable profits of the Company.
AARFERMORPREMBERREAFRAS EUAEBRAERE
MRE#E - BTG HEAEESRENETE - EFSNALRERR
#E - EIRER/REBEARAAISIRENESENPHRE -

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.

BEES B TRRIRERE -

69



70

Corporate Governance Report

TtEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX f(E) PEERER
E.2 Voting by poll
AIREFARR

Corporate Governance Principle
ﬁ% B /EI J? ElJ

The Company should ensure thet shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
NEEERIRRABAREF X ETRRO AR

E.2.1 | The chairman of a meeting should C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for conducting poll
ensure that an explanation is provided by Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the
of the detailed procedures for 2020 AGM and EGM.
conducting a poll and answer any BEBRRAEET AT ARNEF iiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂf—\, —EFERE
questions from shareholders on voting ﬂ@?ﬁ@&ﬂxi%%ﬁ@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?h1
by poll.

AEEXFEBRETEHE LARRFE e At the 2020 AGM and EGM, the Chairman of the meetings put
AR EFNETRANFART - I each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in
EIERREBAEEF KRR EMA accordance with the Company’s Article.
= e R-ZB_ZFERREAFASEBRGHIAE L AGEFERE
RARERMA  RRREAFAEBEAZTHABRETRE
=R
e Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
the 2020 AGM and EGM.
RRARBRNBCRIRREZER_T_Z Efﬂxﬁﬂiﬁﬁ&
BREFIAGNERE Mﬁ*ﬂ&i‘f&%ﬁm
e All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings
were taken by poll.
@EEBAK REAIRRARG LREZABRABBREFNETE
/.
e Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange
RE HEREBHNAR R RBZFTAL o

F COMPANY SECRETARY

NAWE

Corporate Governance Principle

hEERRA

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

RANEEXERESE LREERA0  BRREFEXECHAMARL  UREBBRESERRELRERF - AAHER
Euﬁ BERR/REETRAENESEREELEEIAER  UTRHESHABBIIREXER -
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Explain (E”)
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2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER

F.1.1 The company secretary should be C e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public
an employee of the company and accountant), who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
have day—to—day knowledge of the Company on 10 September 2013, is also an executive Director of
Company s affairs. the Company. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer

NEIMEERARNEER ¥R of the Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are set
E %%i‘“ﬁﬁﬁiuf out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile”.
EMRat(ELt)GERetmR _T—=FNLA+BEEE
BRARZRNAWME - BIRBAR T¥ﬂr7§$ B TREEAR
§Jﬂ§§%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@% cEATERABRHENEERREETREA
1= =TT

e The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted
under appropriate procedures
NEWERRESTSEZNEERF TET -

e The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes
and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board and Board Commrttee meetrngs

NAMEREMEESERAETZE SR EARERAEE
uaﬁ- WrlsreE tﬁu§m§x$lﬁﬁkﬁlmﬁim o

e During 2020, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15
hours of professmnal training to update her skills and knowledge.
RZTZTF - RrMEEET IO E IR
HEkge A o

F.1.2 |The board should approve the C e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary
selection, appointment or dismissal of is approved by the Board.
the company secretary. NEIMENRE  ZARRERHEIHESSIE -

NEIMERE  TAEXBERLRH
EEGHAE -

F.1.3 | The company secretary should report C e The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman
to the board chairman and/or the chief whilst all members of the Board have access to the advice of the
executive. Company Secretary.

RAWERAESTE LR R,/ HITH RAMEBRRETFRNEEGER MABEZTGHEHITRER
BEIETRR AIWEZER -
F.1.4 | All directors should have access to the C e All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations, are followed.

FEZEEEAIRGARMENE LM
ZRMORE  UBRRESFSEFK
FEERERE  REIRROIESE

=n

5T o

Company Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the
Company, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all
applicable law, rules and regulations, and corporate governance
practices.
%Eﬁi%ﬂﬂ%@ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬂEﬁ/&ﬁ?%ﬂ%%&iﬁ&&?}%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁuﬁ

)N E R MR - UWHERERMEERERE - RAKIEHIA KR
ﬁ% BRI o
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Report of The Directors
EEERE

The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 52, 22 and 23, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 113 to 115.

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
did not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2019:
nil) or special dividend (2019: HK13 cents per ordinary
share) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2021 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Friday, 18 June 2021 (“2021
AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at 2021 AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
15 June 2021 to Friday, 18 June 2021, both days
inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be effected during such period. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at 2021 AGM, all transfers of shares
of the Company, duly accompanied by the completed
transfer forms and all relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 11 June 2021. The
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 18 June 2021, the
record date of 2021 AGM, will be entitled to attend and
vote at 2021 AGM.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from
pages 8 to 13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5
and Frequently Asked Questions from pages 14 to 20 of
this Annual Report, which discussion forms part of this
Report of the Directors for purposes of Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The outlook of the
Company’s business is discussed throughout this Annual
Report.
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TERERMBFECFE

AR ZE_—FREAFASHRTEN_-Z
T FXRATNBESRR)RT((ZE=—
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—FREFAFRASIRE LREZER K
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R_E-—FXA+—HEHR) TFNUE
=+op c ERBEZZBPREEFAEMN
AREARARB 2RO BEERLE - &S
FAFBLAERAERAR U AT BEFE
fa RBER18IFAE M LTEI7T12E171658
HUMEBEBRRPERFE R —F X
A+NBESR BEIZZ=Z—FREAFK
SHREAHR) AR ARIRRAM ECREEE
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ExEgRE

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and are in
addition to the matters referred to in the Chairman’s
Statement and Frequently Asked Questions of this Annual
Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market
Competition Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the demand
of dry freight containers of the Group. The outbreak
of COVID-19 since early 2020 have a significant
impact on the world’s economic activities.
According to International Monetary Fund’s January
2021 World Economic Outlook Update, it estimates
the global growth contraction for 2020 to be -3.5
percentage. Although the launch of vaccination
raises hopes of a turnaround in year 2021, new
variants of the virus and the progress of vaccination
may affect the progress of market recovery which in
turn may disrupt market demand in new dry freight
containers.

Political tensions between the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”/“China”) and the United States of
America (“US”) have not been eased on Joe Biden
becomes US President. US identified China as a
formidable competitor, it would expect that US
may impose further restrictions on China to limit
its economic growth and its influential power, this
may affect global trade dynamic going forward
and which in turn may affect the Group’s container
manufacturing business in China.
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The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in the PRC. The competitors may attempt to gain
market share by offering products at prices at or
below those typically offered by the Company. The
Company may be required to reduce prices when
facing competition, which may affect the Group’s
profitabilities and growth potential. The Group
had disposed certain subsidiaries of the Group
in 2019 (the “Disposal”) for reducing the Group’s
dependency on trade-driven market and focusing
on developing higher-margin specialized containers.

Product Diversification and Market
Expansion Risks

Following the Disposal, the Group put more
resources on developing customized specialised
containers for meeting various demand across
different industries. The level of market acceptance
on the new products and the Group’s capability
in meeting technical requirements set forth the
products would affect the product diversification
and market expansion process. On the other hand,
as the customised specialised containers generally
enjoy higher profit margin, which may attract
competitors or new players to enter into the market.
The Group continues to recruit engineers and
technicians from various sources for strengthening
the research and development team in order to
differentiate itself with the competitors. In addition
to self-development, the Group may cooperate
with other patent owners for entering into unique
markets.

Report of The Directors
EEgRE
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Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence for meeting
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover,
in view of continuing increase in wage rate in
manufacturing industry in China, the Group will
increase the level of automation in production in
order to reduce manpower requirements in the
future and to minimise the labour cost.

Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow interest rate
risks.

a. Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the credit risk and impairment
assessment are set out in note 47b to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
47b to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, bank
balances and cash, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. To mitigate the
foreign currency risk, the Group entered into
certain forward contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
of the Company monitors the movement of
the foreign currency closely and will consider
hedging significant currency exposure should
the need rise.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
47b to the consolidated financial statements.
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d. Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank balances
is considered immaterial due to short
maturity. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. As
the Group only had limited bank borrowings,
the management of the Company considered
it is not necessary to hedge the interest rate
risk. The management monitors overall bank
loan balance and the interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk
are set out in note 47b to the consolidated
financial statements.

IMPORTANT EVENT SINCE THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The repayment arrangement under the settlement deed
entered into between the Company and PIL (the “Deed”)
as defined in the circular of the Company dated 24
November 2020 shall be effective on and from the date
on which certain conditions are satisfied. Reference is
made to the announcement of the Company dated 3
March 2021, the conditions to the consummation of the
repayment arrangement under the Deed have not yet
satisfied (or waived, as the case may be) as at the date
of the annual report. Pursuant to the terms of the Deed,
the Company and PIL agreed to extend the long stop
date for satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the
implementation of the repayment arrangements under the
Deed from 31 March 2021 to 30 June 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which will be available at
the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) not later than
3 months after the publication of this Annual Report.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. As a listed
company in Hong Kong, the share of the Company is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
8 July 1993, the Company continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange including the
disclosure requirements, corporate governance code and
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571), the Company is required to maintain
a register of interests in shares and short positions and
a register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions and is obliged to the disclosure
requirement of inside information. The Board will monitor
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are
regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time
to time.
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The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental technologies to ensure its operations meet
the standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the
Group has registered its domain name and its trademark
have been applied for or registered in various classes in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
takes all appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual
property rights.

During the year, the Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
its business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees,
suppliers and customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and services to its customers. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard. The Group also organised staff-friendly activities
for employees, in order to provide communication
opportunities among staff, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 326 to 328 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 54
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2020, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$154,361,000
(2019: US$179,901,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
52, 22 and 23, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$48,787,000 (2019: US$119,032,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$27,584,000
(2019: US$23,584,000). This represented a gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-
bearing debts over equity attributable to owners of the
Company, of 0.06 (2019: 0.04). The Group was in net
cash as at 31 December 2020, calculation of a net debt to
equity ratio was not applicable (2019: not applicable).

The calculation of interest coverage ratio of the Group’s
profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) to total net interest expense for the year ended
31 December 2020 was 26.9 (2019: not applicable).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US Dollars
(“US$”). To match with the revenues stream, the Group’s
interest-bearing debts balance as at 31 December 2020
was 69.61% in US$ (2019: 97.03%). Other than the US$
borrowings, the Group borrowed a bridging loan in HK$
for settling the consideration of the purchase of office
premises, it accounted for 30.39% of the Group’s interest-
bearing debts balance as at 31 December 2020.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2020, all bank borrowings are repayable within one year.
The Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a
floating rate basis.

In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising from
the potential increase in interest rate in relation to the
term loan, the Company entered into certain interest rate
swap contracts to partially swap the term loan in floating
rate to fixed rate. All the interest rate swap contracts were
expired during the year.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020

REEE R RER

RZZEZEF+=-_A=+—H Xx&5EF
BIR1THEH KIR£48,787,000k L (=&

— & :119,032,000% T) R &K B8 &
27,584,000 L (ZE — J14 : 23,584,000

X7T) - EAREAFLL ERO0. OG(:%—%
F:0.04)  LAEEMRBRERBAEAR

RREEESBERTEREE - mﬁlﬁ—
TR F+_A=F— E%ﬁ@ﬁi'%
ENFHRARRES LR T ER(ZE—
F: TEA) °

FEAREEZREAE - BIE - TEREE
Al & A1) (EBITDA)ELF F1 8 7 ) 4888 2 th K
R-E-_TEF+-_A=+—HIEFEAR26.9
—T—NF : TERA) o

HE B BER

AEEZ REBMHURENETEE - AEEAIK
mhR BEE-ZEF+-_A=+—H 'K
EE69.61% M EBEEBAETL(ZT—
LEF 1 97.03%) - RETERIN  KEEHE
A—HUBBEENREER  UXHFHA
EBEAG  ZeBEAKEEE_ZT_TF
+ZA=+—BWEEE#A#230.39% °

R-Z2-BFE+-A=+—R MARTH
B9 — PR o AR E B I L
FEARE -

BTHHMEETHERMELNEENE LT+
Prm R M R @R - NRRIFIML T & THH
RiFHIAE - NEBREOHEHRERZFBH
ERBEENE - FANEEEHARERFR
B8 -



BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2020:

1)

On 14 August 2020, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2020”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL and its subsidiaries (“PIL
Group”)), for the provision of container depot and
logistics services to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Services Contract 2020 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Services
Contract 2020 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Master
Services Contract 2020 took effect from 14 August
2020 and will expire on 31 December 2022.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual Caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2020 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 14
August 2020 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 30 October 2017, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2018”)
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sale of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that
PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Master Purchase Contract 2018
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Purchase Contract 2018 involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Purchase Contract 2018 are subject to
annual reporting, announcement, annual review and
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. After obtaining the
approval from the shareholders on 12 December
2017, the Master Purchase Contract 2018 took
effect from 1 January 2018 and has expired on
31 December 2020. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 30 October 2017 and
the circular dated 17 November 2017 in compliance
with the Listing Rules.
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The Group had the following connected transaction during
2020:

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into
the Deed with PIL in relation to the settlement of the
outstanding amount of US$149,696,984 (“Outstanding
Amount”) due from PIL Group to the Group in accordance
with a repayment schedule to be repaid over a 10-year
period with interest. The Outstanding Amount referred to
trade receivables arose from the provision of equipment
from the Group to PIL Group under the master purchase
contract dated 6 October 2014 and the Master Purchase
Contract 2018 and from the provision of container depot
and logistics services from the Group to PIL Group under
the master service contract dated 14 December 2016
or otherwise provided from 1 January 2020 onwards. In
view that PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Deed and the transaction thereunder
constitute an amendment to the terms of the continuing
connected transaction of the Company and hence
constitute a connected transaction of the Company
under Charter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction
contemplated under the Deed are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. After
obtaining the approval from the independent shareholders
on 11 December 2020, the transactions and arrangements
under the Deed shall be effective from the date of which
certain conditions are fulfilled, including the sanction of
the scheme of arrangement of PIL by the High Court of
Singapore and the completion of the investment by one or
more entities managed and controlled by Heliconia Capital
Management Pte. Ltd. into PIL. Details of the connected
transaction have been disclosed in the announcement
published on 4 November 2020 and the circular dated 24
November 2020 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (1) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions between the Group and
PIL Group for the provision of container depot and logistics
services to PIL Group are entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in accordance
with the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole and on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020 was US$2,767,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,444,000) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction in
paragraph (2) above in respect of the sale of the
Equipment from the Group to PIL Group have not
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditor of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The external auditor has reported to the
Board and confirmed that for the year 2020 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval of
the Board; (i) are in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company; (iii) have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and (iv) the continuing connected transactions in
paragraphs (1) and (2) above have not exceeded the
relevant caps as disclosed in the announcements dated
14 August 2020 and 30 October 2017 respectively.
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The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2020, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Group and were set out in note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report (“Annual Report
2020”). Including in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Annual Report 2020 in respect of
related party transactions, sales to fellow subsidiaries and
rental expense to a fellow subsidiary were the continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, an office premises located at
Kowloon, Hong Kong was pledged as securities to a third
party for securing a bridging loan. (2019: Nil)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2020, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The Group does
not provide any guarantee to any third parties and does
not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

(resigned on 11 March 2021)
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
Mr. Kwa Wee Keng*
Mr. Tan Chor Kee*
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*
Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*

e Non-executive Director

*

Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election. Pursuant to articles 92 and 92A of the Articles,
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, Mr. Tan Chor Kee and Mr.
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan shall retire from office at the 2021 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for three years
and is subject to retirement and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020

BFRESR

ARBIE KM ET AR R ERAPISI 2 L #
TAEFETREF R ZHRES A (TRET
AN BARARESTEHFRIHNITATH
ARRAMBERELFEERR - ARA]
EREFEAFHABREZETHB 2 EM
R BETRETRIIRE -

S
RERRBERFHRAMUEZEEMT

SRANE KA
PREIAR & A4
SREAE LA
(R-—ZT-_—F=A+—HEDT
EMIRZ T
F{EE LA
PR 2 B A A
BOEHET 4L A
2\ T] S A
& & A

* HHITEE
* BUIHNTEE

REAAFZAKERATERRZAR D 2
BE BERREAFARGL ERA/AB=D
ZHERYARERE  HEBREFAZR
PEZFREREFRE LREI—X - BF
TEERBEEL REERMAFEIRZRK
92AMR - B L - BREESLARBIF 4
EERNR-_ZE-_—FRERAFAE LRE
W8 ERBIEEMT -

ARRAZIFBTES(BRBILIFATES)
ZEMR=F HREBEERHAZIEE A
REREFARE EER &R EREE -



The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules
from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and considered them as
independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)
Current directors of Subsidiaries:

CHAN Kwok Leung
CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
DING Zhong Fu

LAl Zhi Yong

Lilian LEE

LIU Kecheng

PAN Chun Ling
QIAN Ming

SONG Yan Yan
SUN Da Peng

TEO Siong Seng
TEO Teng Seng
WANG Ge

WENG Sheng Qiang
WU Bing Hong

WU Ding Xiang

XU Jin Yong

YIP Ching Han
ZHANG Tian Bao
ZHAO Xiaobing

Resigned as directors of Subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report:

CHENG Chih Hsin
TEO Tiou Seng
Tony WANG
WANG Zhi Qiang
ZHAO Pei Cong
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

EERKRMD - HEROIEER 2
BENKXR

RZEBE-_TF+_-_A=+—H SEFFHx
BITRA BRI A AR A s E ] AR EE
(E& R (EFREB R EXVE) BIRG -
MHEARO S ERERE 2 EmKRE - WEH@R
B(EERIBEGRD) EXVEE7RESH IR
ERAMARNRRABIMz2EmSXR (B
EZAmaTRABRE(ES RHAEKRL)
ZEBBXERBREIERER 2 EEIX
B)  Ho)RECES KB RG] EI52158
ERRBRARAIRZGERFEEZELMA
ZRERIOKE  H(C)RIBE LEMHRRFEAE
EFRAEBAA R R RABRFT 2 EamsoK B
™

(A) Ordinary shares of the Company (A) EAREBER(RS])
(“Shares”)
Percentage
Number of Shares/ of Total
Underlying Shares Held Issued
HEZRG, HERAEE Shares
Personal Corporate Total e il
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest ERTRH
H®E &4 BARE  AEER Hith BER Bt
Mr. Teo Siong Seng Beneficial Owner 42,377,250 - - 42,377,250 1.75
RINBLE EREBA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 196,780 - - 196,780 0.01
RAB KAL) ERBBA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Beneficial Owner 195,291 - - 195,291 0.01
Rebecca ExBEBEA
Efzzt
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 2)  Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
BRRELE W iZ2) [y g
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(B)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Teo Tiou Seng resigned as Director on 11 March
2021.

@) Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee holds
6,000 Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be
interested in 6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan
under SFO.

All the interests disclosed above represent long
position in the Shares and underlying Shares.

Share Options

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option
Scheme”) are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Option Scheme was in
force for a period of 10 years commencing from
1 June 2007 and was expired on 31 May 2017.
Options complying the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of
the Option Scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to the end of the 10 year period
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with
their terms of grant within the option period for
which such options are granted, notwithstanding
the expiry of the Option Scheme.

(B)
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Movements of the share options under the Option

RIEPS - B AR BT M0 B AR

Scheme during the year are as follows: ORI
Number of Share Options
BRER

As at As at

1 January 31 December

2020 2020

i
Name/ %%/ i\ b S 22 Exercise
Categoryof  $8%¢ Z—BE-Z%  Granted Exercised  Lapsed +ZF GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
Participants 47 -A-A R e %% =t-B HREAH e @
(Notz g) HKS
(Writa) BT

Directors £

Mr.TeoSiong — RIELAE 1,333 - - (1,339) = 172010 1/7/2011-80/6/2020 1.38
Seng 833,333 - - (833333 = 172010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
833,334 - - (833,334 = 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

1,668,000 - - (1,668,000) -
Mr. Chan Kwok ~ FREIR%HE 166,666 - - (166,660) = 172010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
Leung 166,667 - - (166,667 = 172010 1/7/2012-80/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - (166,667 - 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

500,000 - - (500,000) -
Mr. Teo Tiou RHELE 40,000 - - (40,000) = 172010 1/7/2012-80/6/2020 1.38
SengNoteb) ~ (Hiztb) 40,000 - - (40,000) = 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

80,000 - - (80,000) -
Ms.ChungPui  EMEZXT 1 - - 0] = /72010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
King, Rebecca 83,333 - - (83,339) = 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

88,334 - - (83,334) -

Sub-total INE 2,331,334 - - (2.331,334) S
Employeesin ~ EEAH 84,668 - - (84,668) = 172010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
aggregate (Histe) 96,667 - - (96,667) - 172010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
(Note ¢) 96,665 - - (96,665) = 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Sub-total it 278,000 = - (278,000) -

Total @zt 2,609,334 - - (2,609,334) -
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Notes:

(a) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38
were vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July
2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June
2020, all of which were lapsed on 1 July 2020.

(b) Mr. Teo Tiou Seng resigned as Director on 11 March
2021.

(c) Employees are working under employment contracts
that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purposes of the Employment Ordinance.

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries a party of any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor
their associates, had any other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which (a) were required notification to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director
or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to
the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
and none of Directors, nor their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above), had
an interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

FTERRZER

RZZE_ZEF+-_F=+—H  BEARQT
Z(BEH R AE KRN FE336KFE 2 ELM
WA URBARRESSIESITHAR
FrEl s THIALT(BRIAETEEZRRG, - 187
B EEECESRAR | —BEEETE
BB RN - RN REARNES <
BmIORE  WARE(GESFRRBEEGDSE
XVE 2R3N ERIAR QN FHBHLOT -

Number of Shares

RHOEAR

Percentage of

Direct Indirect  Total Issued

Name Notes Interest Interest Shares

H2HE T

A Htst HiEER B OB

Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited (1) 993,825,345 - 4112

(EIP”_!I)

REMBER AR (KM

PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) (1) - 993,825,345 41.12

Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited @) - 993,825,345 4112

Madison Pacific Trust Limited (3) - 993,825,345 41.12

Hyder Ahmad 4) - 438,452,359 18.14

Broad Peak Investment Management Ltd. (4) - 438,452,359 18.14

Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. (4) 438,452,359 - 18.14

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (5) = 496,912,673 20.56
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Notes:

(1)

@

3

4

©®)

A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL. PIL is
100% owned by PIL Holdings. Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Director,
and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, former Director, both of their interests in
shares of PIL Holdings comprise personal interests in 3,600,000
shares and 2,400,000 shares respectively and representing
0.65% and 0.43% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings.

PIL is a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings in which Y.C.
Chang & Sons Private Limited holds more than one-third of
interests in PIL Holdings. Accordingly, Y.C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited indirectly controls one-third or more of the
voting rights in the shareholders’ meeting of PIL, in accordance
with SFO, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited is deemed to be
interested in PIL’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

Madison Pacific Trust Limited is the security agent of the Shares
pledged by PIL in favour of the third party lenders as security.

Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. is the lender of record which
has direct interest on the Shares pledged by PIL, Broad Peak
Investment Management Ltd. holds 100% interest in Broad Peak
Master Fund Il Ltd.. Hyder Ahmad is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Broad Peak Investment Management Ltd.

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited is the indirect sole
shareholder of SeaTown Lionfish Pte. Ltd. (“SeaTown”).
SeaTown is the lender of record and has direct interest on the
Shares pledged by PIL.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2020, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2020, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than transactions disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and
Connected Transaction” above and in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements (which were approved
by the independent non-executive Directors and in the
opinion of the Directors were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s
business), no material transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its immediate and
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought
against its directors and officers. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) when this report prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:
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TEEFRHAER

AEBRBEEMNEXBETREIEHERR

BEFzA AT

Percentage
BO
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEESAHEEMEBEER 41.3%
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEBRKREEEAMIGEESE 60.4%
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to AEEZAREFPhEEE 14.8%
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to AEBRAKREPATEE % 42.5%

the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 21 to
27 under the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group, including
subsidiaries employed 2,384 (2019: 2,108) full-time
employees; its associates and joint ventures employed
1,013 (2019: 1,064) full-time employees in total. Staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
US$41,963,000 (2019: US$98,615,000) for the year. All
full-time salaried employees, except for factory workers
and contract employees, are being paid on a monthly
basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus. Factory
workers are being remunerated based on a basic wage
plus production incentive. The Group ensures that the pay
levels of its employees are competitive and employees are
awarded on a performance related basis within the general
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To
further enhance the capability of its human resource, the
Group provides on-the-job training to its employees.
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Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a labour
union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B B ET

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Singamas Container Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 113 to 325, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

FAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHWET MR EFERBETER

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”)

BEREZZRATAREBRNWE QR E S HEKIE 2R EN G ((REE QTN E S EYCKERE]D

We identified impairment assessment of the Trade
Balances with Related Companies as a key audit
matter due to the significance of such balances to
the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgement and estimates in
evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL”) of such
balances at the end of the reporting period.

BN EEARARNE S RUGR A AKRERE M
BIRRHEBZENE - UERRRERRTEZFHREN
BHEEEE(ECLD Y B HE RAEt - 8K
1THS R R N BV B 5 R UG R BR R E RT (A 51 /5

FAsEEAT =R -

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying
amounts of the Group’s Trade Balances with
Related Companies amounting to approximately
US$122,623,000 in aggregate, which represented
approximately 19% of total assets of the Group.

RZBE-_TEF+-_A=+—H AEELAHFH LA
HE SRR RERRF A 5T4/45122,623,0003

T AMEAEBREERN19% °
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Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of the Trade Balances with Related
Companies included:

RITE EBAR A RN E 5 EWKER TR 2 RUE T4
MITHEFEF 821

° Understanding the key controls on how
the management estimates the impairment
losses on the Trade Balances with Related
Companies;
THREBRBMA A EEARARNE SR
Wk R ERRE 1R R B RA SR 1 I

° Discussing with the management to obtain
an understanding of the management basis
and method in estimating the amount of
lifetime ECL for Trade Balances with Related
Companies and the key quantitative and
qualitative information considered by the
management in assessing the credit risk
characteristics of the Related Companies;
and
EERE - AT REIRE At B
REINE HREWRRBAREFEAELRGE
EEBeBENEERTE  UREBER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuecd)

Key audit matter

REESER
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BYZEERE

FAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITWETNREARETEE

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”) (Continued)

EREZZERATAREBRNWEQRESHBEMIAZRENG((REELTNE S BYUCKERED (&

As disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 4 November 2020, the Group
and immediate holding company entered into the
settlement deed, pursuant to which the Company
and immediate holding company conditionally agreed
to the settlement of the Trade Balances with Related
Companies in accordance with a repayment schedule
over a 10-year period with interest (the “Repayment
Proposal”). Upon the Repayment Proposal becomes
effective, the existing Trade Balances with Related
Companies will be derecognised, and a new financial
asset with the terms and conditions as stipulated in
the Repayment Proposal (the “Modified Asset”) will
be recognised at fair value at the date of such asset
modification
MRS B MRM TS0 KRE  RCE_TF +—
HEE KEIQE&¢““TJ¢%$£% e
b AAF R EERERAFS G R B R RER
R R 10F B ARG N ([ERETE D EE R A
AIME S EUGREATE - BREIEIEME - AEH A
AR E 5T EREE R AR LR - TS BNGT
EIFTRERE TR EE (KRB EE ] B IEZ
BEEZTBHNAREBETUAER -

Assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates on
Trade Balances with Related Companies by:
BB THARN - FAEEIEEY EAM AR
B8 5 WK R RE 2 B R B BEA NS IE
/HE :

° obtaining an understanding on how
the management evaluates the
operating and financial performance
of the Related Companies as a part
of the credit risk characteristics
assessment;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARESEE

FAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITWET MR EARETEE

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”) (Continued)

EREZZERATAREBRNEXRE S HEMIA ZBENG((REELTNE S BYUCKERED

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL individually for each
significant trade balances based on expectation
of cash flows on probability weighted basis after
assessing the credit risk characteristics of individual
debtors, taking into account the financial position
and/or historical repayment records of the Related
Companies, expected timing of the Repayment
Proposal becoming effective, the estimated fair value
of the Modified Asset and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available to the
management of the Group without undue costs or
effort. The management of the Group also considers
other quantitative and qualitative factors that include
operating and financial performance, operation update
and other market factors relating to the Related
Companies.
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examining the information used by
the management in the credit risk
characteristics assessment, through
reading the Repayment Proposal,
the operation update of the Related
Companies and performing searches
in public domain for other market
factors in relation to the Related
Companies and relevant forward-
looking information; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEEE
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BAEETSEIE RITHWESTNMAEEBRETSE

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”) (Continued)

EREZZERATAREBRNWEQRESHBEMIAZRENG((REELTNE S BYUCKERED (&

As disclosed in note 47(b) to the consolidated financial ° working with our internal
statements, the Group recognised an amount of valuation expert in assessing the
US$17,450,000 of impairment loss of the Trade reasonableness of the key inputs
Balances with Related Companies for the year and and methodology adopted by the
the Group’s impairment loss on Trade Balances management in determining the
with Related Companies as at 31 December 2020 estimated fair value of the Modified
amounted to approximately US$27,001,000. Asset at the expected date of asset
ARG IS RMARMI 47 (0)FT I FE - NEBNF AN modification.

RS ?ﬁ’&7%%3%@4&%%&%%@&@%%17 450,000 EAMARGEREREE  SHHERE
EnRZBEZF+_A=1T—8  FXEEHEH BEEERKERNEENTBREEE
BN ARV B 5 FE WK R RR R (B B5 R 40 /3 27,001,0003 AT BN AR EER - FRAX
T FERAENTENSBIE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to
the manufacturing segment

BEREIBABRNYNE  BERRBURCEABEE ZBERL

We identified the impairment assessment of property, Our procedures in relation to the impairment
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating assessment on property, plant and equipment and
to the manufacturing segment as a key audit matter right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing
due to the involvement of significant judgements and segment included:

estimates in determining the recoverable amounts of ZAR{TH Y% - BEMKEAREREEE ZRE
the respective cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) to which FHEHITHEARF B ¢

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

relating to the manufacturing segment have been e Obtaining an understanding of the
allocated. management’s process and basis adopted
AR EETHEESBEBAME - BENMKENA in preparing the value in use calculations of
RERAEEEMMENSREELE TN KES the CGU, including key inputs;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARESEE

FAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITWET MR EARETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to

the manufacturing segment (Continued)

BERESDEBANYE BERREBEUAREAREE ZRBENMGE

In view of the unsatisfactory financial performance
of one CGU under the manufacturing segment
during the year, the management of the Group
performed impairment assessment on the relevant
CGU which contain certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets by preparing value
in use calculations. As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, the value in use
calculations require the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU, based
on key inputs, such as the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume, gross profit margin, growth
rate, and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value, taken into consideration of the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic to the CGU.
ERNEES TN —ARESELETNF AN R
BWAEBE  AEEEEERARUEREEFE
KO HEEETYE BEARBUARERAEERE
IERIR € B B B T E TR E RS - MRS IR
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Comparing the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume and gross profit
margin used against historical performance,
recent sales transactions and the
management’s budget;
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the
growth rate applied by the management
of the Group, by referring to the industry
information and discussing with the
management of the Group on revenue
growth strategies in respect of the CGU;
RBB2ETRER  LRAXREEEREN
mARECELETH R AL RER - &
BERAEEEEERANERRRELAE

Working with our internal valuation expert
in assessing the appropriateness of the
discount rate applied by the management of
the Group;
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITWETNREARETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to

the manufacturing segment (Continued)

BRESHERNYE BRERRBEUARCEAREE ZBRENLGE

As disclosed in notes 4, 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the net carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
relating to the manufacturing segment for which the
management has performed impairment assessment
as at 31 December 2020 are US$12,032,000 and
US$915,000 respectively. Impairment losses of
US$2,400,000 and nil in respect of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets have been
recognised by the Group during the year.
WERE ISR EM 4 - 19R20FTHE R =F
¢+ A=+—H " BBEDET mﬁpﬂéﬂ’ﬁﬁi*”
EOBEENYE  BEARBREREEENF
ARTEE 5 Bl /&12,032,0003 7T & 915,000% 7T ° A&
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Comparing the assumptions adopted
in the prior year’s management budget
with actual results for the current year,
investigating significant variances identified
and considering the impact on the current
year’s impairment assessments, taken into
consideration of the impact of COVID-19
pandemic to the business performance of
the CGU; and
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Evaluating the potential impact on the value
in use calculations of the CGUs based on
the reasonably possible changes of the
budgeted sales volume, growth rate and
discount rate applied by the management of
the Group.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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BB E RS M RER
AREZEE

TITHEBRRHGRENEHRREBEEBES T F
£ A 7R BRFF ok 5 AR 1 28 BUA) B K 85 5R R L B
SEERE  THAEBEATER(RESR
BATHUEGIE 40518 E R B TIEBRE)H
e RS - M AMEEMEBER - AT AEH
RBENARREMEMATEBETERAER
- EBRERSKFEMNIRE - BTERE
EREABTENETNES X —EX
TR AR PR L7 R RS B RE BX 3R - SHERFR LT AR
HFFSKEEiRoIE - WA IBTEEEBNIELR

%%;ﬁ%%mﬁaiﬁAﬁﬁﬁ%%W
HEY AR TE - BI 75 A 88 5R PR L AT 3 AR
EKo

ERBEESSTEIETENNBERES - K
TERBREAE  REZFERREE - K17
DI

. a8k 7l e FF Ay ply 0 B RF Sk 85 AR T S B4R
EUMBHRRFEEABRR LN
& RETRBITEFREFAREEH
Rk URERTREEENETER
& ERATTERNER - mRAGE
A kER BE E5ERE
RER A SOR BN AR S 2 £ - Eitt
REHRRARFMEMHEANHRR
At [ R = A K BE 25 3R A 5 AR T B B
BB KRR B B o

. TRREETHBARNAEES - ARE
BENESAERF 1559’913%121&%
EABZEHHNERERRER



Independent Auditor’'s Report
BYZEERE

ZEE MBS M EHREK
AREZETE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

HEEEMRABEFHRRNBELER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuecd)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GERaRkHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ % = F = FF = H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
- S 323 —NEF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
HisF TExn T=rn
Revenue ¥R 5 274,305 712,209
Other income H A A 7 3,420 4,613
Changes in inventories of finished — BIpK M RIER @A
goods and work in progress FEEE) (4,827) (10,469)
Raw materials and consumables Rt R KRB R X H
used (166,342) (545,580)
Staff costs & B AR (41,963) (98,615)
Depreciation expense HTEER (12,814) (29,434)
Impairment losses under expected ~ TEHA{Z 1B KIER THK%
credit loss model, net of reversal Bl # A REERX 8 (17,407) (7,961)
Impairment loss on property, W - M REEZ
plant and equipment VERIEREES (2,400) -
Other expenses Hih & 9 (43,943) (97,143)
Finance costs MiEER 10 (799) (14,515)
Investment income KERA 11 7,381 9,629
Other gains and losses H i o R 518 12 2,743 (23,962)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z W 45 8,457 7,771
Share of results of associates FE(G Bt AR R T
(E518) 1,651 (829)
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEERE RN 408 127
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBE AT F (85 18) 13 7,870 (94,159)
Income tax expense PSR IER 16 (3,120) (16,638)
Profit (loss) for the year FEERAN(ER) 4,750 (110,797)

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRERkREMEZEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ 2 = FE = FF = H=+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
- g 323 —NF
US$’000 US$'000
FExn T=rn
Other comprehensive income ~ Hb 2@k
Item that will not be reclassified TFEH#EH 7 EEE=H
to profit or loss: EE
Fair value gain on equity instrument & A BET AL A
at fair value through other ZEHMG ERTRE
comprehensive income (HBRBRBETE) 2
(“FVTOCI"), net of tax effect N BERE 5,204 1,515
Items that may be reclassified ~H#ZEERHEF 7 BEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz HIEH :
Exchange differences arising on BREINEHNEEE
translation 2,635 (2,023)
Release of exchange translation HE—AELERN
reserve upon disposal of ﬁVI\Eﬁ S
a joint venture - 1,467
Other comprehensive income  FREMZEKE
for the year 7,839 959
Total comprehensive income FR2EKE(XH)
(expense) for the year s 12,589 (109,838)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRBaRkHEMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ % = F = FF = H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
= —FNF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat TER FTET
Profit (loss) for the year KREEEGEF(BR)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NG 4,576 (110,230)
Non-controlling interests IR R R 174 (567)
4,750 (110,797)
Total comprehensive income PE{h 2 i ()
(expense) attributable to: e
Owners of the Company /NS 12,051 (109,245)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR M 538 (593)
12,589 (109,838)
Earnings (loss) per share BREFN(ER)
Basic BN 18 US0.19 cent X1l (US(4.56) cents Efll
Diluted e} 18 US0.19 cent X1l (US(4.56) cents Efll

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S MBARR R

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZF —FF+=-H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHF —NE
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Kt FEx FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R RRE 19 84,185 84,200
Right-of-use assets FCHEEE 20 38,755 43,986
Investment properties BEYE 21 18,866 18,504
Interests in associates N NI 22 44,812 43,782
Interests in joint ventures REBLE R 23 7,681 7,355
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BAREBESARM
PEHKGZZERTA 24 26,156 18,997
Financial asset at fair value through R A R BEFFABREZ
profit and loss (“FVTPL”) TREE 25 3,027 -
Other receivables H fth FEUCTR IR 29 31,678 29,090
Deposits for non-current assets FERBEELS 26 299 775
Amount due from immediate e E TR A A
holding company 30 91,847 105,602
Amounts due from fellow S NGE R
subsidiaries 31 28,276 32,269
Amounts due from associates JE B & N B 5K IR 32 13,727 13,003
389,309 397,563
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 59,907 76,136
Trade receivables JEU AR K 28 62,624 33,350
Prepayments and other receivables B K& E b FE UL KT8 29 89,631 38,152
Amount due from immediate FEW B BT RN R FUE
holding company 30 2,500 -
Amounts due from associates JE Bk & N B 5K 0A 32 3,678 8,421
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMIA 40 109 41
Tax recoverable A E 2 FiIR 804 717
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 33 48,787 119,032
268,040 275,849
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRE
As at 31 December 2020 R = E - FF+_-_H=+—H
2020 2019
—_ ? —% ﬂE :g_ﬂi
Notes USs$’000 US$’000
HisF TExn T=rn
Current liabilities nEBaE
Trade payables FEfTRR X 34 50,980 24,848
Lease liabilities HEGRE 35 1,345 2,270
Accruals and other payables A ERREMEMNERR 36 19,364 22,490
Advances from customers TBUERR 37 11,170 18,259
Amount due to immediate e EEER A RIFIE
holding company 30 189 1083
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — FEfF— ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% AME 31 53 14
Amounts due to associates JETH & A AR 38 241 265
Amounts due to joint ventures e & ﬁm%m 38 12 76
Tax payable FERHIR 3,599 11,112
Bank borrowings RITERK 39 27,584 23,584
114,537 103,021
Net current assets RBEERE 153,503 172,828
Total assets less current EEABERABDEE
liabilities 542,812 570,391
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital B 41 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits ZEta A 183,801 216,655
Other reserves Hib R 45,642 41,006
Equity attributable to owners of the A2 BIRZ R E(h i 2
Company 497,592 525,810
Non-controlling interests AR AR R b 36,094 36,897
Total equity EREE 533,686 562,707
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRE

As at 31 December 2020 R —FE - F#F+—-H=+—H
2020 2019
= —FNF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat FEx FETT

Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 35 1,421 1,196
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 43 7,705 6,488
9,126 7,684
542,812 570,391

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to  HNE113EEFIBB VAV BEHRRLETE
325 were approved and authorised for issue by the board R-T-—F=F -+ B ERKEDE - I
of directors on 26 March 2021 and are signed on its M FMIESFKKRRE :

behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng RAE Chan Kwok Leung & Bl #2
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ % = F = FF = H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAARREE
Exchange Property  Investment Non-
Share  translation General Development revaluation revaluation Share option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
HERE WEE  REEH FEk
e BE -REE  RREE  GERE ERE EREHE  BMEE W B RRER ]
US$'000 US§'000 US$000 US$000 US8/000 US8/000 US8'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$000
Tin Fin T Tin T5n Tin Tin Tin T Fin Fin i
Note ) Note ) (Noted)
(o) (W) (W)
At1 January 2019 R=F-NE-A-R 268,149 (1,728) 32,131 8,543 12,875 10874 282 (1,699 327,210 656,697 39,082 695,779
Lossfortreyear BERER - - - - - - - SO (L R 1)
Fairvale gain on equity instrument BOABEFALEZE
at FVTOC), net of tax efect Wi BRTA
(MeRBE)
D EEYE - - = = = 1515 s = = 1516 = 1515
Release of exchange transhiionresene  HE—ABLEKEN
upon disposal of a joint venture SENERE = 1467 = = = = = = = 1467 = 1467
Exchange difierences arising on transiafion - EHEREZE = (1,997) = = = = = = = (1,997) 28) (2029
Total comprehensive (expense) FERRARL)/
income for the year hag - (630) - - - 1515 - - (110,230 (109,245) (693 (109,838)
Share apton forfited BRERRN : = = = = = ) = % = = =
Disposal of subsiciries HENEAF - - (198 (2,156) (1,361) = = 1247 2,124 = = =
Disposal of a ot venture HE-RELE = = 12 = = s s = = 12 = 12
Deferral of dhidend previously dedared ~ EEBEERRE - - - - - - - - - - 28 28
Dividend paid to non-controling inerests B3 RBRR ERH & - - - - - - - - - - (1,860) (1,860)
Diidend paid to owners of the Company X AR FRERE - - - - s S = = pigsy @165 = (21654
Transfer from accumulated profts EREEHET = = 115 163 > > > = 678) = = =
At 31 December 2019 WZT-NE
tZA=t-A 268,149 (2.258) 13,004 6,550 11,514 12,389 269 (452) 216,655 525810 36,897 562,707
Proft forthe year FERAT - - - - - - - - 4576 4576 174 4750
Far value gain on equiy nstrument BOABEFALNZE
at FVTOC), net oftax effect Wiz ERTA
(MBHBZE)
L - - - - - 5,204 - - - 5,204 = 5,204
Exchange differences arsing on rensiaion  ESNENE£E = 2071 = = = = = = = 2071 34 26%
Total comprehensive income for e year ~ £ 2 AN H L% = 2211 = = = 5,204 = = 4576 12,051 5% 12589
Share option lapsed BRELN - - - - - - (259 - %9 = = =
Disposel of a subsday te-HEBAR - - o - - - - - 2749 - {145 {145)
Forfeiure of dividend previously declared  RAEEERE - - - - - - - - %8 %8 (269) =
Dividend paid to non-controling interests ~ ERFEERRFERRE = = = = = = = = = = (627) (627)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company ~ XRAATRERE = = = = = = = = {053 (053 = [40537)
Transfer from accumulated profts ELEG ) - - 169 - - - - (169) - - -
At 31 December 2020 R=B-%%
tZA=t-8 268,149 13 10,424 6,550 11,514 17,593 - 452) 183,801 497,592 36,004 533,686
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ 2 = FE = FF = H=+—HIFFZE

Notes:

(@)

®)

Other reserve included the difference between consideration
and book value attributable of the related net assets arose when
acquiring additional shares of subsidiaries.

In August 2019, the Group disposed entire equity interests of
certain subsidiaries with details as set out in note 45(b) and other
reserve related to the subsidiaries disposal of was transferred to
accumulated profits upon the disposal.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have
to provide for the general reserve and development reserve
(prior to 1 January 2020) and the PRC statutory reserves (after 1
January 2020) before declaring dividends to their shareholders
as approved by the board of directors. The reserves are not
distributable until the end of the operation periods of the
respective entities, at which time any remaining balance of the
reserves can be distributed to shareholders upon liquidation of
the subsidiaries. The reserve can be used to offset accumulated
losses of the entities or increase capital upon approval from
the PRC's relevant authority. The distributable profits of the
subsidiaries are determined based on their accumulated profits
calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ % = F = FF = H=+—HIFFE

2020
—ECEF
Notes US$’000
Hiet FEx
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETH
Profit (loss) before taxation BRTE AR A (B3 18) 7,870
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation of property, M - M N ERE
plant and equipment ZIE 9,087
Depreciation of right-of-use TREEENE
assets 3,727
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - #E X
plant and equipment B o 233
Loss on property, plant and IEYE  HEE K
equipment written off B2 518 35
Share of results of associates IR E R
(&) BE (1,651)
Share of results of joint EIHEELEZ
ventures gl (408)
Investment income KEWA (7,381)
Interest expense MEXH 702
Fair value (gain) loss on THEeMTAZ
derivative financial DA EEUE)
instruments B8 (109)
Fair value loss (gain) on BEMEZ ARE
investment properties EEE W) 569
Fair value loss on financial BAREER AR
asset at FVTPL mlEREEYZ
AREEER 38
Loss on right-of-use assets EREEETHER
written off -
Gain on disposal of HEHRB AR 2 Was
subsidiaries 45 (8,457)
Loss on disposal of a joint HE—GELEL
venture BB 23 -
Allowance for credit losses, MR 2 ER
net of reversal BRER
- trade receivables - FRUUER K (5)
— trade related amount - RREEER
due from immediate NS =R Yl
holding company IR 13,459
- trade related amounts - FEURIR) Z [ B
due from fellow NS =R Y]
subsidiaries FKIE 3,991
— amounts due from - FEURE = N T
associates FKIA (41)
— other receivables - H b W RIE 3
Impairment loss on property, Y - R NRE
plant and equipment VEREREES 2,400

2019
—E-NF
US$000
FETT

(94,159

24,981
4,453
714
8,549
829
(127)
9,629)
14,144

382

(4306)

8,694
(7,771)

1,210

(290)

6,238

1,904

98
11
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HmEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ 2 = FE = FF = H=+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
i et 2.2 —E-NEF
US$’000 USs$'000
Fxx TET
Operating cash flows REBESEEA
before movements in CET RS |
working capital 24,062 (40,2095)
Decrease (increase) in EER %)
inventories 16,208 (10,6695)
(Increase) decrease in e Ukt B 2 (32 1) 37 2
trade receivables (29,269) 52,104
(Increase) decrease in FET % H A U
prepayments and OB (B )AL
other receivables (42,915) 10,714
Decrease in amount due from JE Uk B B 1 AR A B
immediate holding company I - 339
Decrease in amounts due A EES I =NG!
from fellow subsidiaries HIER 604 359
Increase (decrease) in JE A< BR 3 0 Rt )
trade payables 26,132 (85,278)
(Decreasg) increase in FEETE B & E M pER
accruals and other payables BE 2 (R4 12 A (2,094) 39,208
Decrease in advances from 78 Uk BE ZoR
customers (7,089) (24,855)
Decrease (increase) in amounts & g B < /) 7]
due from associates SIEE A (2 4n) 4,772 (2,274)
Cash used in operations BEMERS (9,589) (10,463)
Interest paid ENFE (911) (14,470)
Income tax paid E M SH (9,998) (11,762)
Net cash used in operating EETEERS
Ll BE (20,498) (36,695)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ % = F = FF = H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
bt 23 —T-NF
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
K Fxx FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchase of property, plantand B Z )% « #E2%
SRS 518 (8,973) (25,805)
Deposits paid for non-current ENIEREEELRS
assets (461) (6,583)
Proceed on disposal of a joint HE—ABDEMRE
venture 964 7,015
Investment in associates i NG 22 - (2,144)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HeEy)2 « #E %
plant and equipment Sy g =] 177 6,212
Purchase of financial asset BARAREBETTA
i L BRreMEE (2,825) -
Dividends received from BWEENTIREE
associates and joint ventures DERRE 2038 1,089
Dividend received from unlisted B Uk 3E FEzsIEE
equity investment A% &, 1,817 1872
Interest received EHE 616 1,337
Cash inflow arising from HEWBARIZRES
disposal of subsidiaries, net = IR E T
of retrenchment cost and . v up 28
other expenses attributable to EEZ BREAR
the disposal Ao 45 9,280 364,706
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — BB A 7 44 (9,396) -
Net cash (used in) from BEEE (FriE) e
investing activities 4 (6,763) 347 699
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £ 2 = FE = FF = H=+—HIFFZE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NnF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Hiet FEx FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
New bank loans RITENE R 46,311 207,982
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (42,324) (494,976)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 215 JE#R A& A% B #E 55
interests e (627) (1,860)
Dividends paid to owners of SRAARRRERE
the Company (40,537) (21,654)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE (2,510) (2,257)
Advance from immediate holding & A B IZEA A A
company FKIA 364 654
Repayment to immediate holding (&8 B #Z 2% A &)
company B (278) (551)
Advance from a fellow subsidiary & A — R ZHE A &)
IE 878 53
Repayment to a fellow subsidiary 11 — [ XM B A7)
IE (841) (39)
Advances from associates (EPN i A=WNEIE O 791 1,628
Repayments to associates BB E A E A (827) (1,308)
Advances from joint ventures BAGELFENE 105 106
Repayments to joint ventures BEEELFEFNE (169) (39)
Cash settlement received from WESTAE e Rt T H
derivative financial instruments ReEFEE 41 638
Net cash used in financing mMETEHMERSE
activities FE (39,623) (311,723
NET DECREASE IN CASH REREFREZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B RE (66,884) (719
CASH AND CASH R—B—BZ
EQUIVALENTS AT ReRERRE
1 JANUARY 119,032 119,879
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEeH o &
changes (3,361) (128)
CASH AND CASH R+=—B=+—-82
EQUIVALENTS AT BeRERRS
31 DECEMBER 48,787 119,032
CASH AND CASH ReRERRLER !
EQUIVALENTS
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE 48,787 119,032
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
at the date of this annual report is PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its immediate holding
company is Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL”). Both companies are incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section of
corporate information of the annual report. The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in United States dollars (“US$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

e B RS R R B R

— &R
BHEBCEERAR(TARR]Z
—EREBXNLTE LT ZERA
a HRNDEBEBRERZMBERA
I(BRFT]) £ - RAFHAPHK
BRERAB REEERA T DRI APIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd.([PIL Holdings])) & &
FHEBERAR (K FMED - MRA
A AR EMBEKZ 2 AR -
RNABI MY EEM I R F EEEH
BERANFRAABIER —FHIEE - K
REMTBHmRTIAEZREE(ETD A
B AR RE 2R -

ARBIREMBAR(AEEDEIRE
LELEREM N EMEREERNKEHR
VR BRTS 575
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current
year. The amendments provide a new definition
of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuea)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
clarify that while businesses usually have outputs,
outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been
acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
(Continued)

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to
apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The Group has elected to apply the optional
concentration test on the acquisition of a subsidiary
as detailed in Note 44 and concluded that such
acquisition does not constitute a business. The
application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements as similar conclusion would have been
reached without applying the optional concentration
test.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform =
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 25
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment =
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts ~ Cost of
Fuffiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued by International Accounting
Standards Board in March 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) instead of
the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC) Int — 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 instead of Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to
the Conceptual Framework (Continued)

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively
to business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2 relate to the modification of
financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures to accompany
the amendments regarding modifications and
hedge accounting.

° Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. A practical
expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and made
on an economically equivalent basis).
These modifications are accounted for by
updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the
current HKFRSs requirements. A similar
practical expedient is proposed for lessee
accounting applying HKFRS 16;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs

in issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —

Phase 2 (Continued)

Hedge accounting requirements. Under
the amendments, hedge accounting is
not discontinued solely because of the
interest rate benchmark reform. Hedging
relationships (and related documentation)
are required to be amended to reflect
modifications to the hedged item, hedging
instrument and hedged risk. Amended
hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements; and

Disclosures. The amendments require
disclosures in order to allow users to
understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform to which the Group is exposed to
and how the entity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning
from interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing this transition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has several
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)

bank

loans which will or may be subject to interest rate
benchmark reform. The impacts on application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements upon modification

of the relevant loan agreements resulting

from

the reform. Based on preliminary assessment,
the Group considered that the amendment is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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REMIE|RME

2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments to clarify that:

0] the classification should not be
affected by management intentions
or expectations to settle the liabilities
within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(Continued)

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2020, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments, equity instrument at FVTOCI, financial
asset at FVTPL and investment properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(a

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations or
asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group
can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the
set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of
assets and liabilities that do not constitute a
business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase
price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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REMBRRME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group increases its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
and the Group continues to use the equity
method, the consideration transferred to
acquire the additional interest is added to the
existing carrying amount of the investment
without remeasurement of the previously
held interest and the underlying assets and
liabilities of relevant associate. The difference
between the consideration transferred and
the Group’s share of net carrying amount
of the identifiable assets and liabilities is
included in the carrying amount of the
associate.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
tangible assets that held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than
construction in progress. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings and
site improvements
= on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements

—on short lease 110 10 years

Plant and machinery 510 15 years
Furniture, fittings and office

equipment 510 10 years
Motor vehicles 510 10 years
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress in the course
of construction for production, supply,
or administrative purposes are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant
leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will
be transferred directly to accumulated profits.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair
value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU
when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU
or group of CGUs.
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUSs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit of the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or the group of CGUs) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 157).
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMKHRERME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BBRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER%E
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continueqd) (9 =Z=EITAE
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (B)
Classification and subsequent measurement TREEMNSBERAEE(E)
of financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if: WfFa ToEE - BlemEET)
DEAREER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “investment income” line item
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and associates and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and trade related amounts
due from immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments (i.e. other
receivables, non-trade related amounts
due from joint ventures and associates and
bank balances), the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

0] Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s internal credit
rating;

- significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0] Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTHEE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continueqd) (9 =ZHEITAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (B)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TEREERE(E)
(v)  Write-off policy (iv)  WEEICE
The Group writes off a financial asset ERETHRIHEFER
when there is information indicating BEMRNEEERIKE
that the counterparty is in severe A ge B (7 40 32 5 365 F 1%
financial difficulty and there is no ERNEEABERT)
realistic prospect of recovery, for o 8 UG BR SR B B AR 1B AN
example, when the counterparty has HUAREHEERE) -
been placed under liquidation or has REFERIMECRERE -
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, KERLFEZERB(WAE
or in the case of trade receivables, H)  BEWENEREE
when the amounts are over two years Al RE AR A S B O 2
past due, whichever occurs sooner. FrE1ToR BIBITIE B ©
Financial assets written off may still be B HUBEREIE o (f
subject to enforcement activities under o] H & U [B] 7F 18 25+ 7E
the Group’s recovery procedures, R o

taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on
the past due status and settlement
pattern of debtors. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, amounts due
from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n'l-\éﬂzti%ﬁiﬁpﬁ-a

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and amounts
due to immediate holding company, a fellow
subsidiary, associates and joint ventures are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

A contract liability (presented as “advances
from customers” in consolidated statement
of financial position) represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation (Continued)

OQutput method (Continued)

As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date
(service contracts in which the Group bills a
fixed amount daily of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on
or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)  Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BBRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER%E
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)
(Continued)
(i) Leases (Continued) () HEE

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEEIEZATEN ()

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEREE)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and SERHACE LB EEEENTT

makes a corresponding adjustment to the FRP AR AEEEH

related right-of-use assets) whenever the FEHESBEHEBENEA
lease term has changed or there is a change EEFLERERAER)  EltE
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase BERT - miEE A B (EA
option, in which case the related lease liability HIERT TR KRR KERTHE
is remeasured by discounting the revised NREFTTEEENEEARE -
lease payments using a revised discount rate

at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a REELHEBERERE BB

separate line item on the consolidated NKRZINAEFER -

statement of financial position.

Lease modifications HEENH

The Group accounts for a lease modification ETRANERT - NEBERBHEEE

as a separate lease if: MIERERBEEAR :

- the modification increases the scope - ZIERB R INFER —18
of the lease by adding the right to use K Z IB A B E R BRI
one or more underlying assets; and AHEHE: Kk

= the consideration for the leases - MEREG NN SERE
increases by an amount commensurate R EER S ER BB
with the stand-alone price for the 1% RIEBREFEALNE
increase in scope and any appropriate R B EI T EM
adjustments to that stand-alone price HE R -

to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease incentives from
lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When
the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

When a contract includes both lease and
non-lease components, the Group applies
HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees.

() Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit (loss) differs
from profit before tax because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmMAUGEMBRENERK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER%E

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)

(Continued)

()  Taxation (Continued) ) #HEGE
Deferred tax FEFEFIA
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary B IB AR E P EHRER A
differences between the carrying amounts BENBEBERMSEETEER
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated v I B S FE B TR L 2 H IR B B
financial statements and the corresponding MEREBIERR - BEXEHIER
tax bases used in the computation of E—RERFBREARTIERE 2T
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities RHEER - REHRBEEE—MRR
are generally recognised for all taxable WA A R B 18 A VE R B AR B
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets AR R IE 2 AT Rt
are generally recognised for all deductible ZE o NMEAPBINRIHFERX
temporary differences to the extent that it is R (EESOBRIN REMEE
probable that taxable profits will be available B EEW AR ERTE N E
against which those deductible temporary EJriﬁ?lflJ?itﬁi%%El’ﬁﬁﬁ;r‘l‘EEE
differences can be utilised. Such assets and ZEEHXBBERBR TSR -
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary AN MR R R E Eﬁaﬁﬁq
difference arises from goodwill or from the MEE  ATSBRRELETIER
initial recognition (other than in a business f& o

combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

() Taxation (Continueq)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

3

fm R fn

REMIE|RME

EMBHRENERR

EESHE#E

EESTTBR®

0

HEE

BT (B)

LR IAE EM A EEREHR
BEAGREREENHEMRT
MERFAE  ERBEHRAC

Bl K EERBIENB R FIR) B
# o

BRERIABENEENGE R
TAKEBEHOERS HRBAE

SEEEENMBENRAEN
IE%%%

ETEFERAARBERAFEN
BREMENELCHEAMS @ ZF
WMENREERBRESEELE

2RRKE - HERZ AR ARE R B Al kR
O o IR EYEAETINEL R
BREREMEME S HEBAR

93 4% T 2 i B P 2 2 D R T 3F
BBHERERNAREARE -

AIZRERAGERKE -

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA

187



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

() Taxation (Continueq)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of
lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmEGEHBRENERR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTHEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)

(Continued)

()  Taxation (Continued) ) #HEGE
Current and deferred tax for the year KEF RFAEF IR
Current and deferred tax are recognised $¢F&LL$R THE B AW
to profit or loss, except when they relate CBRTIPERFERHMEER
to items that are recognised in other qﬂiﬁﬁzﬁﬁé I P RER IR
comprehensive income or directly in equity, B EERERAT  AEEKE
in which case, the current and deferred tax ERBLEEMERREYE
are also recognised in other comprehensive EESBERTER - WEXK
income or directly in equity respectively. BHZVEZEMEERNFERER
Where current tax or deferred tax arises THSREERIE - MG EAR
from the initial accounting for a business EEEBEHZFTTENAN -
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

(k) Foreign currencies (k) sP%
The individual financial statements of each SEASERZBYIVBEREE
group entity are presented in the currency AR &2 7 F BRLEIRIZHNE
of the primary economic environment (K E¥) 27 - BT HEE
in which the group entity operates (its U BmE  FEBCYBRE
functional currency). For the purpose of KRR EAETIITR  ELE
the consolidated financial statements, the KRARIZINEEY - M2t Eadt
financial performance and position of each Bz 2258 -

entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Foreign currencies (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. US$) using exchange
rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated
at monthly average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of
these schemes are held separately and
managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net of
any contributions forfeited in respect of those
employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, is charged
to the profit or loss as incurred when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are
available to all employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Contribution payable by
the Group to the MPF scheme is charged
to the profit or loss when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER%E
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies EESHBER®)
(Continued)
(m) Short-term and other long-term (m) BHRAEMRAESEF
employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised FEHE B AN E B IR RIS B
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits RIEEZ AR EARITIR S B
expected to be paid as and when employees R MBEEHEBRIGERS
rendered the services. All short-term FMx  BRIFES—BEBMBEH
employee benefits are recognised as an HERHRAFEE XA T HEAFTAE
expense unless another HKFRS requires or ERARIER R ©
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing EERFABN(WMIEERTS -
to employees (such as wages and salaries, FBRERBRRNREN2EE
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting REEE-
any amount already paid.
(n) Government grants (n) HEFF#HE
Government grants are not recognised until A EE ] & BRF M S BUT
there is reasonable assurance that the Group WM& - BRI BB EUN
will comply with the conditions attaching to e - A ERRBSHE
them and that the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised in profit or BB R AN EEERZER N
loss on a systematic basis over the periods REENFEBEMEBEK AR X E
in which the Group recognises as expenses HAfE - B RSN I8 TER o

the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Government
grants relating to compensations of expenses
are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented
under “other income”.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Effective
1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payrment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received
determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting
condition is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMKHRERME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade
receivables and trade related amounts
due from immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries (“Trade
Balances with Related Companies”)

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL individually for each
significant trade balances based on expectation
of cash flows on probability weighted basis after
assessing the credit risk characteristics of individual
debtors, taking into consideration of financial
position and/or historical repayment records of the
counterparties and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available to the
management of the Group without undue costs or
effort, and are updated at each reporting period
date if considered to be required. In particular, in
estimating the ECL for Trade Balances with Related
Companies which are credit-impaired, the directors
of the Company also considered other quantitative
and qualitative factors that include the expected
timing of the Repayment Proposal (as defined in
note 30) becomes effective, the estimated fair value
of the Modified Asset (as defined in note 30), the
operating and financial performance, operation
update and other market factors relating to the
immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERHBRRHE

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4 FESTHHERMATAIEE
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES EENETERER®E)
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)
Impairment assessment of trade BUWERERREREZZER Q]
receivables and trade related amounts REZAKNE T EZHEENIE
due from immediate holding company ((HBEBARMNESHREDHN
and fellow subsidiaries (“Trade BB FEAd (&)
Balances with Related Companies”)
(Continued)
For the other trade receivables, it is grouped HREAMEWERR - SRR EEYRER
based on similar loss patterns as reflected in the HEUMBARENXETOHE  WHER
trade receivables and provision rate is applied EERINERRRNELELOE
using the historical observed default rates of the TEZEEINEGEAEAXFENAEMLESE
trade receivables taking into consideration of B IABEBEXRETIHIR - RRIES
forward-looking information that is reasonably BFTLEBRZNEANLE N WHE
and supportably available to the directors of the RETZEREEREREBETERR -

Company without undue cost or effort, and are
updated at each reporting date if considered to be

required.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in EHERBERCBEH M EEHH
estimates. The information about the ECL and the o BEATEMERBARASEER
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes R ER DB R E47(b) 228
47(b) and 28 respectively. B o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets relating to
manufacturing segment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and fair value less cost
of disposal; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including expected selling prices, budgeted sales
volume, gross profit margin, growth rate and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the assets belongs including allocation of
corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise
recoverable amount is determined at the smallest
group of CGUs, for which the relevant corporate
assets have been allocated. Changing the key
input and estimates, including the discount rates
or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
Furthermore, the expected selling prices, budgeted
sales volume, gross profit margin, growth rate and
discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential
descriptions in the Group’s operation.

REMIE|RME

FESFHHE R TAEE
EZEMEERFR®

REDEHYWER  BBERREUR
£ HEEERBERE

ME  MERREAREAEEER
AR RETITE RBE (I E)FIER -
NETEERTRER  AEBMVA
170 H i RAE L & - BRI FTAE
NELREAFELEEBEMNSEHK
PR QBEMKRAMERSAATRE
CHFERABERAABEREZKA
ZBEE)  RE@)MEFATKRE LN
BFERE - - BEHES - TR X -
RERBEEUREIEREZEETEHA
B - ETANAIeEEFTER B E (RIEE
BiEEE)NAIKE SRR - AEEE
AEE " BWMER LG EERBDN
BB SEUMATKESRE @ 21FEd
X¥EESR - FRIAJKESEHE D
RHEBACEEEN R/ RIUR BN
AT - TEHABRGT(RIERER
ETRRA AR R NIE R K) S FHn] Al
KEcEBRKEATE - BE AR
2019BMRMBERNRITAIERBELERE R
BEMSRMSESHTREEE(BE
AEBEBMBERL)  BYIEFE
B JEEHEES  EAXR -HEXR
TREEREFERHEERANTEE
o

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT

199



200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets relating to
manufacturing segment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, in view of the
unsatisfactory financial performance of a CGU
(2019: certain CGUs) of the manufacturing
segment during the year, the Group performed
impairment assessment on these CGUs which
contain net carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment of US$12,032,000 (2019:
US$48,011,000) and right-of-use assets of
US$915,000 (2019: US$6,873,000) by preparing
a value in use calculations that require the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU based on key inputs, such as the
expected selling prices, budgeted sales volume,
gross profit margin, growth rate, and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value, after taken into consideration of the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic on the CGU. Impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of US$2,400,000 (2019: nil) and nil
(2019:nil) have been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020, respectively. Details of
the impairment of property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in note 19. In addition, there is no
impairment recognised for the group of CGUs of
manufacturing segment that includes the carrying
amount of corporate assets.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 HXIE
Al e ) e g e T My e R T
TR WA A BB ER - S

services operations, less sales related taxes, and is ™

analysed as follows:

mE

Bt 5 R AR P R

2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE _j_LEE
US$’000 US$’000
FExn =T
Manufacturing BUERTE 246,677 683,925
Logistics services Y m AR 7S 27,628 28,284
274,305 712,209
Disaggregation of revenue from REEFEHANKEFD
contracts with customers
2020 2019
—ECERF —NF
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET
Types of goods or services [EEEER Tk
Manufacturing (recognised at SLER B (—ERFEE R
a point in time):
Dry freight containers R 187,036 453,949
Tank containers WA 16,886 33,830
Other specialised containers HimE AR
and container parts SEM @E (k3 42,755 78,498
Refrigerated containers R REEER - 92,335
US domestic containers EER B:?E;EN 53] - 25,313
246,677 683,925

“ECTEEW c BWEBREXERAA
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REMIE|RME

5

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from

5 ®BXHE®n

contracts with customers (Continued)

REFFEHNNWREFD @)

2020 2019
= i = 7
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET
Logistics services (recognised i AR 75 (BE RS HERS HERR)
over time):
Container storage and handling ERBETENMRIERE
services 6,042 6,547
Repair and drayage services (e B 8 R 6,316 6,313
Container freight station services EREEBURE 7,880 9,615
Other container related services H b S22 AR AR AR 7S 7,390 5,809
27,628 28,284
274,305 712,209
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REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group manufactures a wide range of products
including dry freight containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers, offshore containers,
other specialised containers and container parts.
The Group charged the selling price of each of
containers based on the agreed purchase order.
The performance obligation of the contract of
manufacturing containers represents producing
the containers to its customers in accordance to
the industry standard requirements stated in the
purchase order. The products are with alternative
use to the Group as they can be redirected to other
customers without a significant cost of rework. The
Group only provides assurance type warranty of
which no distinct goods or services is identified.
The Group sometimes requires customers to make
upfront payment before the commencement of
the production activity and the remaining amount
is to be settled within the credit term. Revenue
is therefore recognised at a point in time when
control of the containers has transferred. Control
of the containers is considered transferred to
customers upon the completion of inspection
through acknowledging the acceptance notes
by customers and delivering to specific location
under certain circumstances. Transportation and
handling activities that occur before the customer
obtains control of the containers are considered as
fulfilment activities.

REMIE|RME
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e BRRME

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 EEHE)
Disaggregation of revenue from REEFEANKBRIFS (&)
contracts with customers (Continued)
Logistics services of the Group include container AEENYMRREEREERBEHER
storage and handling services, repair and drayage RIEART - #IERIEE - BEMRKG
services, container freight station services and other MEMERAEEERSE (REISESE
container related services (collectively referred to MHARE]) - iR EEBEEERE
“container related services”). Revenue is recognised Wr - 2 e 0 HE S T SR U A D AR 5 8
over time when the container related services HAETHE - A&5EB—REEES
are rendered and is measured based on output B 2 & oi ik 2 A0 pk U R £ 2 48 AR 75
method. The Group generally charges the container B - ASBRATRAMEPE 1t
service fee based on either fixed daily rate or TIRBASEEZ BAMEBRAE AN
cost-plus, which is the direct measurement of the IREEENEETERE -  AEEE
value of the services transferred to the customers BEARAAEEEHERAALZESH
from the Group’s performance. The Group elects MR RRER=EARIITERES
to apply the practical expedient by recognising o AREBEFRARNTFTE M
revenue from logistic services in the amount to REGEPHNEERRAE R30E60
which the Group has a right to invoice. The Group R MRREHBORB N HESHIE
normally bills monthly to the customers and credit HERBEHBERETER - A&EEB
term offered to the customers is normally 30 to BAEFEKEEEHREREETE
60 days. The performance obligation for logistics SET
services is to provide the container related services
in the depot to its customers. The Group fulfils the
performance obligation by completing the container
related services for its customers.
All manufacturing and logistics services are provided FIEREER R RRBIIN —F
for periods of one year or less. As permitted under FRNEEANEMR BREBEVER
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these HEBFEASTMER ZEIEER
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. ME LB G BRI AREIREE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of dry freight
containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers, offshore
containers, other specialised
containers and container parts.

Logistics services = provision of container storage,
repair and trucking services, serving
as a freight station, container/cargo
handling and other container related
Services.

REMIE|RME
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REMIE|RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6 D EER @)

Information regarding these segments is presented ZEDEERZ2WMAT -
below:
Segment revenue and results DEEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEELERAREDH CEETR
and results by operating and reportable segment: EESWTWT -
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—ZE-_ZTF+-A=+—HLEE
Logistics
Manufacturing services  Sub-total  Eliminations Total
REEK  WREE Nt g am
US$'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
Tin Tn T#n Tn T#n
REVENUE EEH
Fxternal sales BoMAE 246,677 27628 274,305 - 214305
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (8,003) 1,510 (6,493) - (6,493)
Finance costs MBER (799)
Investment income REKA 4,575

Fair value gain on derivative $T£2RTAZ AR B
financial instruments ELE 109

Fairvalue loss on financial AL BEFARRZ

asset at FVTPL CREELDAEE
BE (38)
Gain on disposal of a HE-MBARZME
subsidiary 8,457
Share of results of YN Py
associates 1,651

Share of results of joint G &R E R
ventures 408

Profit before taxation R ATRA 7,870
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REMIE|RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019

DEER 2
DEEHEREE )
BE-—T-—NE+-—B=t—HILEE

prices.

Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total Eliminations Total
BB DRRE NGt B B
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FErT TFTE= FET FTE
REVENUE EXE
External sales HINEE 683,925 28,284 712,209 S 712,209
Inter-segment sales (Notg) 7 SIS E (4172 - 3,281 3,281 (3,281) =
Total =1 683,925 31,565 715,490 (3,281) 712,209
SEGMENT RESULTS ik (92,352) 1,544 (90,808) - (90,808)
Finance costs HKER (14,515)
Investment income RERA 4417
Fair value loss on derivative T4 SBIAZ A%
financial instruments EEHE (382)
Gain on disposal of HERBARZ M
subsidiaries 7,771
Share of results of FEEBENR BB
associates (829)
Share of results of joint ElEaErE R
ventures 127
Loss before taxation BHAIEE (94,159)
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market Miet : D EEIEE BRI B IEE

=

JE o

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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REMIE|RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuvea) @6 S2HER &)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEXEBEREEE

Segment results represent the profit earned (loss DEFEEESIBAGSEN(EELES
incurred) by each segment without allocation of Té!) BRIV BER « FERER
finance costs, certain investment income, fair PTESBTIAZ AR BEREZ(E
value gain (loss) on derivative financial instruments, RARBEFTABRZEHEE
fair value loss on financial asset at FVTPL, gain AEEEBE HEWBAR I
on disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of J'ETE%’#%*’& a2z m A (B8 &EL
associates and share of results of joint ventures. éfﬁ%z/mﬂ It Th st B R o B &
This is the measure reported to the Group’s T REMMASE FFEITHE
Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of BEERIEE-

resources allocation and assessment of segment

DHIr ]]> E\| N, ‘Eﬁ'ﬁ
D) =

208

performance.

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s total AEBERKERAIMENH  BEER
assets and total liabilities by operating and BEEIWHT :

reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2020

R-E-EHF+=-A=+—H

Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEERK W R okl
US$°000 Us$’000 US$’000
TEn TERT TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 418,142 42,135 460,277
Interests in associates NG NI 5 44,812
Interests in joint ventures REBERE ER 7,681
Unallocated corporate assets APEARBE 144,579
Consolidated total assets DABERR 657,349
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities nEBE 79,070 5,210 84,280
Unallocated corporate liabilities *PEARERE 39,383
Consolidated total liabilities ReaReE 123,663
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Additions of capital expenditure MIZERRT

Depreciation expense (Note) WEER W)

Allowance for credit losses, netof B EI# 2 5 AB R EE
reversal

Provision of inventories FEEG

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEME - HE K&k
and equipment bl 5t

SEHNE  BERRE
ZEE

Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off

NE - BERREREFE

AR EME
DEER 2
PMEEREREE)

HipEn

BE-_ZEZ-_ZHF+-A=+—HL
£

Logistics

Manufacturing services
BEEY R B g
Us$000 US$'000 Us$°000
TEr TER Txn
19,967 1,168 21,135
9,827 2,987 12,814
17,103 304 17,407
794 - 794
2,400 - 2,400
225 8 233
31 4 35

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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REMIE|RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinvea) 6  ZEBE R

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DEHPEEREE®E)
As at 31 December 2019 RN-_E—hAhF+-_A=+—H
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
HIEEY MR ok
US$'000 US$000 Us$000
TET TET T=mT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NBEE 405,670 38,362 444,032
Interests in associates N AN 5 43,782
Interests in joint ventures REERE #R 7,355
Unallocated corporate assets APBDREE 178,243
Consolidated total assets HEEAERSE 673,412
LIABILITIES =X
Segment liabilities nNHARE 63,069 5,994 69,063
Unallocated corporate liabilities *OBEARIARE 41,642

Consolidated total liabilities TeEAaBES 110,705
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REMBHRRME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 PEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREE®)
OTHER INFORMATION HER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZTZ—NF+-_A=+—81t
FE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit ARFTENHEEI D HEENSE
or loss or segment assets: BIE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUER MR ok
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TErn TEn FE
Additions of capital expenditure ~ FTIEE AR X 27,368 6,334 33,702
Depreciation expense (Notg) WEBRMWZ) 25,563 3,871 29,434
Allowance for credit losses, MG E& 2 ERBRERE
net of reversal 7,748 213 7,961
Provision of inventories FERE 2,567 - 2,567
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BERREEBR
plant and equipment 123 591 714
Loss on property, plant and TEME  BERRE R
equipment written off 8,533 16 8,549
Loss on right-of-use assets AHERAREE ER
written off 8,694 - 8,694

Note: Certain amounts were capitalised in inventories during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December

2019.

et : BE—F-_FFL-_A=+—HR=F
—NF+ZA=+—HILFE EFL
BERGFEHERE -

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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REMBRRME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The amounts included in other information are part
of the operating and reportable segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in associates,
interests in joint ventures and unallocated
corporate assets, which include equity
instrument at FVTOCI, derivative financial
instruments, financial asset at FVTPL, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain
other receivables, tax recoverable and bank
balances and cash. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenue earned by individual
reportable segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which included amount due to
immediate holding company, amount due
to a fellow subsidiary, amounts due to
associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
tax payable, bank borrowings and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.
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REMB MR T
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 PEER @)
Geographical information ESBER
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong REBZEHE>HRBEBRFEH - K
and the PRC. The Group’s manufacturing division SEZREXBRRPE - WRRE
is located in the PRC. Logistics services division is BRBEBRPEH -
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The following table provides an analysis of the TEREBEBEREBEXER S HNES AT
Group’s revenue by geographical market, based LA R ¥ BR 7% 2 BB Y & ma/ AR 7S 2R -
on the location of customers for manufacturing B MBSO ANEE 2 &5 -
segment and based on the origin of the goods/
services for logistics services segment:
Year ended 31 December 2020 Year ended 31 December 2019
Loglstlcs Logistics
Manufacturing  services IGIEIM  Manufacturing services Total
HEXK  NRRE #x HEXE  RRS B
US$000 US$000  US$000 Usg'oo0  US$000  US$000
TER TER TER FEx FEx FEx
Hong Kong % 78,952 4,677 83,629 103,854 4,476 108,330
Europe BOM 53,167 - 53,167 80,957 - 80,957
United States of X524 BH
America (‘USA") (E=0); 41,118 - 41,118 169,363 - 169,363
PRC i 26,224 22,951 49,175 32,826 23,808 56,634
Singapore iR 15,751 - 15,751 92,747 - 92,747
Taiwan =) | 11,692 - 11,692 52,363 - 52,363
Korea #E 2,220 - 2,220 108,878 - 108878
Others it 17,553 - 17,553 42,937 - 42,937
Total Ek 246,677 27,628 274,305 683,925 28,284 712,209
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REMIE|RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying
amount of non-current assets other than financial
instruments, analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

DEER &)

E D EEE &)

PAT 212 & (&2 FRAEH) D AT IE 7R 8
BEGBIARIN ZEEEE -

As at As at
KRR oI 31 December
2020 2019
R-Z-ZF e iayiks
+=A +=A
=-r=[ =+—H
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
PRC H 143,426 156,451
Hong Kong BB 22,120 13,304
Others Hith 29,052 28,847
194,598 198,602
Information about major customers FEEXEFE

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total sales of the Group are mainly derived
from the manufacturing segments. In 2020, one
customer (2019: nil) contributes over 10% of the

total sales amounting to US$40,575,000.
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OTHER INCOME

mE

HA A

Bt 5 R AR P R

2020 2019

—EC-EF —NE

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Governments grants BT B 611 2,024
Rental income HEWA 1,538 1,304
Others Hit 1,271 1,285
3,420 4,613

During the year, the Group received US$611,000
(2019: US$2,024,000) from the local government
authorities for the encouragement on economic
contribution to the industry development with no
specific conditions attached.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL,
NET OF REVERSAL

FAREE YR E B FTH#EI611,000

ET(ZE

REENE TR

— N4 : 2,024,000 7)1

B 5 (AR iR 1

R

R BX

BARERBEXRER T HRE

=P S

2020 2019
—ECERF —NF
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET
Allowance for credit losses (reversed) {5 FA 18 g 245 ([0 ) #E R R
recognised on:
Trade receivables JE WL BR K (5) (290)
Trade related amount due from EWEEERA
immediate holding company 2 5 sRIE 13,459 6,238
Trade related amounts due from FEY R & W%
fellow subsidiaries EEZYIEl PN IE 3,991 1,904
Amounts due from associates /N 41) 98
Other receivables b FE Y FRIR 3 11
17,407 7,961

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMIE|RME

OTHER EXPENSES 9 HtEH

2020 2019
—EBF = — NLF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Manufacturing overhead SEEGEHEEER 18,540 50,910
Repositioning and logistic expenses & #i & #17% & 6,925 13,284
Repair and maintenance HIERIRE 2,388 6,811
Container inspection and testing SR RO 742 2,213
Container storage charges SRMHFETER 3,849 6,935
Agency fee REZEHA - 1,935
Subcontracting fee DB A 3,994 3,444
Insurance expenses RieEMH 472 1,151
Professional fees BEER 1,052 2,149

Forklift, crane and motor vehicle XE¥E - mBERAEHER
maintenance and fuel expenses R E 542 2,185
Entertainment expenses REEEME A 665 1,282
Others HAth 4,774 4,844
43,943 97,143

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BIKEA

2020 2019
et 23— T — f|F
US$’000 US$’000
FErn =S
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 549 13,924
Interest on lease liabilities fﬂi%:éﬁa’“u B 153 220
Bank charges RITFEE 97 371
799 14,515

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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REMIE|RME

11 INVESTMENT INCOME

REWA

2020 2019
US$ 000 Us$’000
Fxr TEx

Interest earned on bank deposits SrcECFSN PN 616 1,337
Interest income from immediate E%z?ﬁﬂn’\ GIEUESRL N
holding company 2,204 3,945
Interest income from a fellow —RZRKB A AR WA
subsidiary 602 1,207
Interest income from an associate ~ —H# & A &) E K B A 712 710
Imputed interest income from JEWARAE 2 HEE T EUA
consideration receivable 1,430 558
Dividend income from equity BAREES 2 E|
instrument at FVTOCI Wz m TAERKRB WA 1,817 1,872
7,381 9,629

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company recognised interest income of total
US$2,806,000 (2019: nil) from amounts due from
immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
which are credit-impaired.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLF
=R K T?ﬁéﬂjiﬁﬁ BB eI E
BN R KRR R B A R FIE R
#72,806,000EL(ZFE—NF : &)
B4R F BUA o

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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mEMBRRME
12 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12 Httas R EE
2020 2019
- g 3l T NF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Exchange gain (loss) b 5 Wz (&5 18) 4,303 (2,282)
Fair value gain (loss) on derivative MEeMIAEZ AR EE
financial instruments Wzs (E548) 109 (382)
Fair value loss on financial asset BEAnBEFABE SR
at FVTPL BEZARBEEBSE (38) -
Fair value (loss) gain on investment  RE&EME 2 A1 BE(EE)
properties Wz (569) 436
Provision on inventories FERE (794) (2,567)
Loss on disposal of a joint venture ~ HE—&AEBEXEEIE - (1,210)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HERFTHE
plant and equipment g (233) (714)
Loss on property, plant and FTIHYIZE MBS R ERE
equipment written off gt (35) (8,549)
Loss on right-of use assets TEEREEECEBE
written off - (8,694)
2,743 (23,962)
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REMIE|RME

13 PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 13 BBiAER (EE)

Profit (loss) before taxation has been arrived at after BRI AR A (B518) 2 4Bk N2 & I8 -
charging the following:

2020 2019
US$’000 US$'000
FTER FET

Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B & 326 350
Staff costs, including directors’ EEKA  BIE
emoluments BEMe
— Salaries and other benefits - Hre RHAET 40,992 94,757
— Retirement benefit costs — R IR
(note 15) (K17t 15) 971 3,858
41,963 98,615
Depreciation expense HEER
Depreciation of property, I - R REE
plant and equipment e 9,087 24,981
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFEEEITE 3,727 4,453
12,814 29,434
Share of taxation charge of JE (Bt & X R T I8
associates 734 965
Share of taxation charge of EhEEERIE
joint ventures 152 130
886 1,095
Cost of inventories recognised as EERRBERACZTFE
expense DN 237,113 703,516
Note:  During the current year, in respect of Covid-19-related it RAFEE - ¥ R2019F % Z 106 #
subsidies, the Group recognised government grants of BE - REEER TKE BB ESLEE
US$320,000 relating to Employment Support Scheme in Z/#7320,000% 7T B BT AL © 2 E/E
Hong Kong. Such subsidies were deducted from related BER 1B e AR B 618 B AN P HIBR » Ut
expenses in staff costs in the profit or loss. In addition, gh - R2019TB M ImERE - A EEE
the Group’s contribution to social insurance benefit in A [0 7 R i 4 I B9 5K & T Y
the PRC was reduced by US$2,933,000 following the B IRER BRI TR T 2,933,000
local government’s social insurance concession policy JL °

due to the outbreak of COVID-19.
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FEMKHRERME

14 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 14 EERTEZBRSHHMALTZ

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS [, [

The following was the emoluments paid or payable NTRENKENNA(ZZE—NEF :
to each of the 9 (2019: 11) directors of the T DEECEEMSE -

Company.

2020 —E-—TE

Non-executive Independent Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors Directors

yfEs FUTES BukufEe

Teo Chan Teo  Chung Tan Kwa  Cheng Lau Ho
Siong  Kwok Tiou Pui King, Chor Wee FuKwok,  HoKit, Teck

Seng  Leung Seng  Rebecca Kee Keng David Ivan  Cheong Total
RNE RER 9B ERR REE  AEE B%E  dURk  @ES ag
US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 USH000 USS000  US$'000  US$000  US$000
Tin  TEn  FER TEn FEn fEr TEn FEr TEn FER

(Note ¢)
(e
Fees ik 50 2 2 2 3 36 49 51 26 321
Other emoluments: s :
Salaries and other benefits 54 R &8 403 n - 258 - - - - -1
Contrioutions foretirement  RAEH| A3
benefit scheme 20 17 - 12 - - - - - 49
Performance related RERTIE
incentve payments 7hEs - - - - - - - - - -
473 44 2 296 3 36 49 51 26 1,402
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REMBHRRME
14 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 14 ESERIEREEFMALZ
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS & )
(Continued)
2019 —E-NF
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
gz Fingz Bukangs
Teo  Chan Teo  Chung Tan Kwa  Cheng La Ho
Siong  Kwok Tiou  PuiKing, Kuan Chor Wee FuKwok,  HoKi, Yang, Teck
Seng  Leung Seng  Rebecca  KimKin Kee  Keng David lvan Victor - Cheong Total
FE RAR RHE  BRR BRE REE ARE  UBE  AUK  BEH  WEE 4%
US$'000  US$'000 US$000  US§000 US$000 US$000 US$000  US$000  US$000  US§000  US$000  US$000
Tir TEr TEr TEr TR TEr TEr TEr TEr TR TEr FiEn
(Note ) (Note ) (Notec)  (Note d)
(Wita) (W) (Wiste) (ko)
Fees e 55 29 29 29 19 3 19 4 53 24 5 340
Other emoluments: Ao - - - - - - - - - - - -
Selaries and other benefits ~ HE RE R 466 386 = 253 = = = = = = - 1106
Contributions to refirement KR
beneft scheme 23 17 - 12 - - - - - - - 52
Performance related 2ERI(ERRES
incentive payments - 55 - 38 - - - - - - - 3
544 487 29 332 19 3 19 47 53 24 5 1,590
Notes: KiaF -
1) Kuan Kim Kin was retired as a non-executive director of (@) L ERZFE—NFANA=Z1T~H
the Company with effect from 26 June 2019. REFRRNAIFFHITESE -
(b) Kwa Wee Keng was appointed as a non-executive (b) HEELLER=ZFE—NFNA=1+~H
director of the Company with effect from 26 June 2019. EEZERBANFIIFHTESE -
(c) Yang, Victor was resigned as an independent non- (©) BEHEER-ZE—NFEA+RAE
execultive director of the Company with effect from 15 FARRBIBIIENTTESE -
July 2019.
(@) Ho Teck Cheong was appointed as an independent (@) MESELFER-_FE—NFTH-HEE
non-executive director of the Company with effect from EERBERNAIBUIHHTESE -
2 October 2019.
(e) Teo Tiou Seng has resigned as an executive director of ©) RBELER —FE-——F=H+—HE

the Company with effect from 11 March 2021.

EXRFHTES -

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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mEMBBmRMEE
14 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

The executive directors’ fees are for their services
as the directors of the Company and their other
emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

The above analysis includes 3 (2019: 3) directors
whose emoluments were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 2
(2019: 2) individuals whose emoluments were
among the five highest paid individuals in the Group
and which have not been included in directors’
emoluments above are set out below:

14 EERLEBBREFMALZ

[ EAC )

SRINEBRATIANRNE HEITHARE
NEFRBEZMECBRMEERERTT
BAAEFRRHENRE 2T -

HATEZZMENERARRIESR
HRFHBE - E R EAMBE o5
REEEARARAREEHHEBN
REME - LAFRITESRELIE
HTESZIMENMERARRRIZES
PR ARFS B & -

ERDFEERAREERLERREH
MALTFEFZ2=2(CF-NF: =
REE - ARESME(CT N5
MEB)BAEBERERSFMALZ
5 MABINALBEEMEARNZ A
T HAFBEFB0T

2020 2019

= =i = 7

US$’000 US$’000

FEx Tt

Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMmEF 286 462
Retirement benefit costs RIRE R R 12 17
298 479
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

14

REMIE|RME

EERTEBEERSFMALZ
M€ &)

BEzME I E TS E

2020 2019
—EB-EF —hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
US$127,582 — US$191,373 127,582 7T — 191,373% T
(Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) (1,000,000 7T -
1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000) 1,500,000/%8 7T) 2 1
US$255,164 — US$318,955 255,164 7T — 318,955% 7T
(HK$2,000,000 — HK$2,500,000) (2,000,000 7T —
2,500,000/ 7T) - L
2 2

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was
paid to directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals during both years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement scheme for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These scheme are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested upon
an employee ceasing to be a member shall be used
to offset subsequent employer’s contributions.

15

RAFHAEEYERAESEKAER
SHEMA LN ERME  ERMNE
K 70 0 B2 7S S [ s ) B R S 1 A BE R
B fE(E o

ﬁ%hﬂ1m
R-EEEFET-—A—AH  AEE
BAETESRARY R EHKER
S8 o L EH B T R R A B
GBI - Z BB 2 EETH Bl
BUSHARBRESD - RIEHE
A EEXREEESARMARE
2t R AR B - 118 B TR
WAEE - IR KRS 2 SRS
IR A LE S B A B 2 3 -

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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e BRRMEE
15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

(Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme are
borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit
or loss representing contributions payable by the
Group to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong
and the retirement benefit schemes in the PRC
amounted to US$971,000 (2019: US$3,858,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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RIFBREEE KRR BEREE
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A ORUR R SR BN 2 PR TR

ERBEZKERREE TS+ BB
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RAREEHSE T AP LRI S
R o thEt 8 e EEAE BT EK
FaE -

BERmMNER ZRINENERIIASE
BN TZEEBERILZBERE
AREPEZERRAEZHK - &K

971,000& T (ZZF— L4 : 3,858,000
ETT) °
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16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as
there was no taxable profit during the both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the

Group operates.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

16 Fif5
AREEMEEL EEERRF - &
W EmEHHEEBFER o

BIER

b B b ¢ 5 7 T3 DA F 70 o T A 2R
HAEAE BN EEEE 2 R
CESIE &

2020 2019
- 3l T NF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current tax: REFERIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR TS
- Current year - KEE 3,541 18,284
— Prior years overprovision - AR Z B E - @)
3,541 18,282
Deferred tax (note 43): EIERE IR (F2F43) -
— Current year credit - AFEEERR (1,102) 6)
— Withholding tax on - RO BLFEA BT
undistributed profits 681 (1,638)
(421) (1,644)
Income tax expense for the year REFFABHIBR 3,120 16,638

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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mEMBRRME
16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 16 FTEHBEREX®
2020 2019
= sl — < 7
US$’000 US$’000
FExn FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BREE AR R (E518) 7,870 (94,159)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25%  AB AT & 525%
(2019: 25%) (ZZ—NF : 25%)5tE 1,968 (23,540)
Tax effect of share of results of FE(REEZ AR Z CaF)
associates BRI E (413) 207
Tax effect of share of results of EEEEREZ BN BB
joint ventures T (102) (32)
Tax effect of expenses that are TE 5t & FE R T8 F s T 7%
not deductible in determining BR T 2 BT
taxable profit 5,627 12,415
Tax effect of income that are Rt EERTUR A B
not taxable in determining A WA BB E
taxable profit (5,362) (3,089)
Tax effect on tax losses arising in RAFE B AR VEMRR 2 T
the current year not recognised BEMGETE 3,466 17,071
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AT F & R EMRR ZFTE
previously not recognised BENETE (2,992) (2,671)
Over provision in prior years BIFE Z B E - @)
Withholding tax on undistributed R BE R B B9 R A
profits 681 (1,638)
Tax effect of deductible temporary R {EHERR Z AI K 0 & A 14
difference not recognised ER BB E 181 144
Tax effect of disposal of subsidiaries HEM B R A 2 ST E
(Note) (Biat) - 17,614
Others H 66 159
Tax charge at effective rate for BARFE B W R A
the year MIA 3,120 16,638

Note: PRC Enterprise Income Tax on disposal of subsidiaries Wist - HHERE Al B R AR E R E
is calculated at 10% of the difference between E11E BT E 2 5] 7 Bl g i & K B

consideration and the registered capital of the relevant

subsidiaries in the PRC.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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17 DIVIDENDS

REMIE|RME

17 KRE

2020 2019
= i = 7
UsS$°000 US$'000
TR T

Dividends recognised as distributions AT AR EE 2K S

during the year:

Final dividend in respect of the FFESREBER 2K
previous financial year, nil (2019: KRE -\(ZE—NF -
HK7 cents) per ordinary share BAREBART L) - 21,654

Special dividend in respect of the FR L ENE A AR E
disposal of subsidiaries, HK13 B EBR13E(L
cents (2019: nil) per ordinary share  (ZZ— 14 : #&)

40,537 -

No final dividend in respect of previous financial
years was paid during the year. A special dividend
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries of
HK13 cents per ordinary share, amounted to
US$40,537,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019, was paid during the year.

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020 was proposed by the directors of the
Company, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

REERBINEARLEFVBRFE
KEBRBE - HE_T—NAE+_-A
=+t HEFEBRALEWEB QA
BRI S SR EBRISEIL - A5t
40,537,000F L ERAFE LT »

AANEFTRAREBE_F-F
FT=A=+—BLFEHRER
8 - BRERERARIE A R
s -

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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REMIE|RME

18 ZRABR (&)
AR FREMEAEEA RS EREF
(B58) TH iR A T gt 8 -

18 EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

2020 2019
il 5
US$'000 US$'000
TER =R

ENER) :

Eamings (l0ss):

Profit (loss) for the purposes of calculating BUGEEAREEGREMN

basic and diluted earnings (I0ss) per share (BR) 22 (58 4,576 (110,230)
Number of shares: RIGEE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares M st BEA K #EFR AT
for the purpose of calculating basic and (B18) 2 LRRMETHEE

diluted earnings (loss) per share 2,416,919,918 | 2,416,919,918

The computation of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2020 does not
assume the exercise of the Company’ s outstanding
share options, as the exercise price of those
options are higher than the average market price
per share for the year, and therefore, was anti-
dilutive to the earnings per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2019 did not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise would result in a decrease
in loss per share.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

19 Y% - KBERKRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Plant fittings and
and site and office Motor Construction
improvements  machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total
HETH B %E
LEF R#AZE
Rit¥E HERRE % RE  EBIRE g
US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000
1 i Tt T3 ¥ FEn
Cost 7
A 1 January 2019 RZE-N45-A-H 4321 248343 15550 13,111 28514 560839
Translation differences BEER (182) (98) (10) 6) - (295)
Additions AE 925 3782 593 125 2773 33159
Disposals (& (7.451) (3,695) B (1,179 - (12327)
Disposal of subsidiaries (ot 450 HEMB R W2 451) (1770400 (190326 (11602 (8513 (6,883  (394,364)
Write of i - (17559 (358) (17) (4,118) (22,200
Transfer &g 3440 36,164 1,304 89 (41,797) s
At 31 December 2019 R_E-NE
+-A=1-H 84,013 76,617 5472 4,260 3450 173812
Translation differences MEER 810 454 35 % = 1324
Addtions AE 191 896 of 11 8743 9,032
Acquisition of a subsiciary ot 4] WE—MBAR (44 9,302 - - - - 93
Disposals 3 - (1,312) (1) (476) - (1789)
Disposal of a subsidiary frote 458)  tHE-MBLARHiH450) (14329  (13377) (316) - - (28022
Wrie off it - (56) (145) (10) - 1)
Transfer &g 3127 3506 255 47 (6,939) =
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE
t=A=1-H 83204 66,728 5,301 3,857 5258 164,438

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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REMIE|RME

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

19 Y% - HBERREE

EQUIPMENT (Continueq)
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Plant fittings and
and site and office Motor Construction
improvements machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total
gL Ba- %8
58 2 R#AZ
RisdR HERRE EL RE  EBIR he
US$000  USB000  US$000  US$000  US$O00  US$000
TEL Txn TEr FEn TEr  TEr
Accumulated depreciation and ZERNERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-A 65,833 126,243 7,221 7,834 - 207,181
Translation differences HEES (86) (52) (10) 6) - (153)
Charge for the year TEEHE 8,128 15,008 950 895 - 2491
Eliminated on disposals {H & (1978) (2,540) () (678) - BA0Y)
Eiminated on disposal of HEMBARE
subsidiaries (note 43(b) (Hi4st) (35,969  (77,751) @or) (M) - (12329)
Eiminated on wrie off it Y - (18379 (127) (145) - (13651)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
TZA=+-H 35,93 47,529 3,958 2,190 - 89612
Tranglation differences BhEES 443 267 % 18 - 754
Charge for the year TERHE 3143 5517 213 154 -8
Impairment loss recognised in BANER  HESE
profit or loss - 2400 - - - 2400
Eliminated on disposals HE - (951) (1) 427) - (1379
Eiminated on disposal of HE B AR
asubsidlary (note 49a) (iit450) (B441)  (11,327) (277) - - (20,045)
Fiminated on write off ity - (33) (134) ©) - (176)
At 31 December 2020 et 23
tZA=1-H 31,080 43,402 3,845 1,926 - 80,253
Carrying values FEEE
At 31 December 2020 gt - 2:3
tZB=t-H 52,124 23,326 1,546 1,931 5258 84,185
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE
tZA=1-H 48,078 29,088 1514 2,070 3450 84200
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REMIE|RME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 19 Y% - MBERRESE
EQUIPMENT (continueq)
Loss on property, plant and equipment and right-of- —E-NFTZA=T—HLEFE
use assets written off amounting to US$8,549,000 8,549,000F LT sH % ~ S RRE
and US$8,694,000 respectively during the year 2 5B LA 12 8,694,0003% JT 7 S5 A &
ended 31 December 2019 were mainly attributable BEZEBEIEZZRYPEIBFTE
to demolition of certain terminal facilities as KA B bR R LLWF BRI ©
requested by the local government in the PRC.
The carrying value of land and buildings of the AEEM LT REFZREED T
Group is analysed as follows: s 8
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019
-t T — S
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Leasehold land and buildings (Note) T & £ b X185 (K 7%) 21,155 12,152
Site improvements TR R 30,969 35,926
52,124 48,078

Note: Included in the leasehold land and buildings, there is a
property with carrying amount of US$11,710,000 was
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowing of
US$8,384,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
treated as property, plant and equipment.

Wt BT -_FTF+_F=+—HIF
B EHELTHMREFTA  H—WEK
H£EA11,710,000F 5T » HUEAR
% [#]8,384,0003 7T R7T 18 5 HIHELR °

THREFHOTH L REFHRD

EAN T EBFTEORAISEDE -
%‘é1 HMOBBREDE - HE LK
e

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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REMIE|RME

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continueq)

In view of the unsatisfactory financial performance
of a CGU of the manufacturing segment during the
year, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on recoverable amount
of certain property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amounts of US$12,032,000. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of one CGU of
manufacturing segment to which the asset belongs
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, including owned properties, the
related right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
US$915,000 which are not impaired individually as
the fair value less cost of disposal is higher than the
carrying amount and allocation of corporate assets
when reasonable and consistent basis can be
established.

The recoverable amount of CGU amounted to
US$29,926,000 has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management of the Group
covering the following 5 years with a pre-tax
discount rate of 12.3% as at 31 December 2020
(2019: 12.9%). The annual growth rate used is
3% (2019: 4.6%), which is based on the industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using 3% growth rate (2019: 4.6%).
Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is
determined based on the CGUS’ past performance
and management expectations for the market
development. The growth rates and discount rate
have been reassessed as at 31 December 2020
taking into consideration higher degree of estimation
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve and volatility in financial markets, including
potential disruptions of the Group’s operations.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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ZRINFAREER D H— EHRIUR
TEMMPBRETERLE  AX&EEE
BESLABRAEFTEREDNR
I FEREEE 12,032,000 7T A HF
EME - HBERZRENT KD S EE
TTRENE - EEEEBEMER
BEMAKESER  ASEEMGHZ
BEMBREXBSH —ERDIR
BB EEE  BEEEYE -
METRAEEE (BRE$E /915,000
XL BRAABEREEXNANS
REEE SR - FE B ERXE) KT
ARVAEN —BNERNBERTY
FEHEE o

BRReBEMHATKEEREER
29,926,000( L EREFAEETE
EF ZirTEFAMNBASRERIE
RAEEEEEH ARAEEZ —T—
ZF+ A=+ —BHMATFIR =X
12.3%(ZF—NLF : 12.9%) AR E
FHHREE - FHANFEEEXEAB3I%
(20194 : 4.6%) ' ZFHERETIER
TEHEETEN  BTEBBEEITERD
REBFHHEER - AFHEMNB LR
EFEMAIN(ZE—NEF  4.6%) HIERE
EHE HETRHEENS —HEER
BREEEEENE ZEMNEERE
HERRESBEUMATRAKEEREY
MBERMNEHMET - EEEAN
2019 AR TR B N 1T 7] BE A9 38 B AR
FUREMMENDE(BREAEE
BEEBEENTE M TSI BAF
EESREMNGETREENE  AltE
FETHRE_E-_EE+-_A=+
—HAEREMITIRE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continueqd)

Based on the result of the assessment,
management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than the
carrying amount. The impairment amount has been
allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment such that the carrying amount of each
category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use
and zero. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, an impairment of US$2,400,000
(2019: nil) has been recognised against the carrying
amount of plant and machinery within the CGU. The
carrying amounts of the owned properties including
the related right-of-use assets have not been
reduced since the fair value less cost of disposal is
higher than the respective carrying amounts.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

REMIE|RME

19 Y% - MBERRESE

BREFHER  A5BEEEERTER
RREEMMAIKESBEREERR
TH o RESBHCIRESEDE
MERERE UEREEENRER2
BIrgRLEZ2EREARBERLESE
KA -HERAEERZEZFNES
B REFAEENTEMDAE @ 48
ARINIReEAPHERERENERT
EEE ERRE2,400,000F L (ZF—
NWE &) - BHREBEVENAAREE
BEEXKANESESNEREOSHE -
it EEMENREE(BERBENE
REEE)WRBD -

20 FHAEEE

Leasehold lands and

FREEE

Carrying amount

properties
HET R
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2020 2019
SE 1 ==
US$’000 US$'000
FTERx FET
38,755 43,986

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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REMIE|RME

20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

20 EREEEM

Depreciation charge

Expense relating to short-term
leases and other leases with
lease terms end within 12 months
of the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16

Expense relating to leases of
low-value assets, excluding
short-term leases of low value
assets

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

For the For the
year ended year ended
KWL oY 31 December
2020 2019
B=E HE
it ek 2: T — S
+=A +—H
=+—A1 =+—H8I1t
FE FE
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FZE7T
HEEHA 3,727 4,453
RMERE NS BN R
fERB B BRELER
%16 582 HER#E121E A
NEHz M ER
HEEA 400 1,095
EKEBEEEMNHEBEE
EREEBREEN
REHEIEERRIN
4 8
REERS R 2,914 3,474
1 A& EE N 1,811 543

For both years, the Group leases for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to five years, but may have extension and
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.
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MEMRE AEEHSEXBHEMR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for certain premises and office equipment. As at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases, after considering
the disposal of subsidiaries in the year ended 31
December 2019, is similar to the portfolio of short-
term leases to which the short-term lease expense
incurred during the year.

During the current year, lease liabilities of
US$1,811,000 (2019: US$543,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets attributable to
new leases entered into/lease modified. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor and the relevant leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes. In addition, certain lease agreements
were early terminated and therefore certain right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities were derecognised
without significant gain or loss. These are major
non-cash transactions of the current year.

20

REMIE|RME

FRAEEE#

o AREBEHRBAETENEER
MATHITERENBAEF - AE
lﬁh%%%%\@ﬁmﬁﬂfiw)
MR A - ERAMEL — XM
m&k&¥£EYi_¢b%@§§ﬁ§)\° EES;EHEE1¢
MRIERBA EHRE FEMET
MEfim% > BB o

AEBTEMRRLENERPRERME

ﬂjﬂﬁﬂ‘oﬁ Z_ZTF+_-H
=t+—BAR-FE-AFT-A=1—
B EHEE @AE%FU@i_?

—NFE+t-_A=+t—HEEFRADE
AEFENEHREEXENEHEE
Hamu -

NAREE  ©£% 451,811,000 7T(=
T —NE : 543,000 ) WHEERE
MEREEERANFEZTINEE

EiEmEEHEMER - BRTHMA
ARBENHEEENERERI - M
EME I ENERNEMAOTE - WAE
BEHEEETSREEENER - 1t
Hh REHEHZIRAIARL - ALE
¢KE§FHﬁﬁE§f§fﬂﬂﬁff§3ﬁaaz%§ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%i
ﬁﬁmiﬁﬂ°ﬁgﬁﬁigmi
RS

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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A MBHRRMET
21 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21 REYE
US$'000
F=T
FAIR VALUE nfEE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—H—H 18,068
Change in fair value NAEEE 436
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—N&F+_-_A=+—H 18,504
Change in fair value AREEES (569)
Exchange adjustment M 931
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_EHF+=-HF=+—H 18,866

The Group’s property interest held under operating
lease to earn rental is measured using the fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using income capitalisation approach. The
income capitalisation approach is calculated by
capitalising the rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due provision for any
reversionary income potential.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21 REYE®
(Continued)
The investment properties are categorised into REDNEPERARBEIBEELRDN
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and below is a B TRERTEBE-ZZT_ZTF+
table which presents the significant unobservable —FEA=F—HRZE—NFE+A
inputs as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December =+—HEKRTABRMNEA -
2019.
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
fhER % EXTAHENGA gt
Investment properties  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking into account the A slight increase in the capitalisation rate
in the PRC capitalisation of rental income potential, used would result in a significant decrease
nature of the property, and prevailing in fair value, and vice versa
market condition, of 7% — 8%
(2019: 7% — 8%)
R EnRENE  RAEAL ERLET%-8% (ZF—NE : BRcREHEMEER AL BE
7%-8%) ZEESMARNERNME - BERD  R2HA
MEEERBETHER
Monthly market rent, taking into account A significant increase in the market rent used
the differences in location, and individual would result in a significant increase in fair
factors, such as frontage and size, value, and vice versa.
between the comparables and the
property, at an average of RMB29 to
RMB39 (2019: RMB33 to RMB36) per
sgm per month.
GAMGHE  ZRIMENER mRmSEENBEZEMEERARER
SARAT B 2 B R MBERE - R
BE - fImEEAAN - THEA
FEHRARK20TEIIT
(Z2-N%F: ARBBTET) °
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during PRREREEEEANEBLE=

both years. & o

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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mEMBBmRMEE
22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22 REENTZER

2020 2019
TECTF ek
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares and investments: EEM 2D RIEE -
At cost b dDN 61,381 61,381
Share of post-acquisition reserves,  FE{EUREE 1R (1
net of dividend received B E W iR F (16,569) (17,599)
44,812 43,782

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2020

and 31 December 2019 are set out below:

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Name and operation
R/ 2R

£ EENY

Modex Holding Limited (“Modex’) British Virgin
Islands/
Singapore and
Norway

ZERANE/
A R B

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. ("NVC") # PRC
ERREERERAR(ERRE]) e

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020

Group’s
equity interest

AEE A RE

44.6%"

40.0%"

R-B_FFF+_H=+—RHAEK=F
—NFt+-A=1+—B X&EEZx
BEENRZHBOT

Proportion of voting Principal
power held activities
P RRRELL Bl IEXH
2019
—T-NF
44.6%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Leasing of
(Note) (Note) offshore
(irz9) (Hiiz) containers
IR
HE
40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%"  Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
REEERMR
AT
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REMIE|RME

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REBEQNTZERE)
(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration Group’s Proportion of voting Principal

Name and operation equity interest power held activities
R/ 2R

£ EENH AEEfERE Fris &R iELL Bl TEEH

Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd.* Thailand 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%"  Provision of
= container

storage and
repair services

RHEERE

s R IR

Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container PRC 35.0%" 35.0%" 28.6%" 28.6%" Provision of
Co., Ltd.* i container
EMREBRRERERAR storage,
repair and
trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
REERMA
7 0
HER
HEUMRH

ALS Singamas Logistics Limited India 30.0%" 30.0%" 30.0%" 30.0%"  Provision of
0E liouid tank

logistics
Operation
fRit R EatE
BORER
Qingdao Singamas International Logistics PRC 42.0%" 42.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
Co., Ltd." (‘QSIL’) i container
BEEBRERMTAR AR storage and
repair services
REEER
BRER
®ERH

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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REMIE|RME

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
* Associate held directly by the Company
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations
In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital

Note: On 9 September 2019, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company purchased an additional 2,696 shares of
Modex at US$2,144,000. Such transaction increased
the Group’s interest in Modex from 42.9% to 44.6%
with no change in proportion of voting power held.

Summarised financial information of material
associates:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associates are set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial

22 MREENT2ERE

. AREIEZEFHEZHERA]

g WRIEBREOIRAETRA B 72
==

. BB ET R EMBARZ LB

HaF : RZF—NFNAANA  XRE]—F &
BB F 2 ]2, 144,000 7T 8851 BEA
Modex 2,596K & 17 - ZX Z <K%
FModexBI IR 1E 1 42.9% 12 175 44.6% -
BTFF 2 RBELL BB 15 T2 o

BEABERRINMEERRE

BREASEERB L AR 2MEER
BMEHINWT - THRZMBEERBRE
SREBEBEVHRELRENOT
BRZBMERNRUBRRPATZE

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. N
The associates are accounted for using the equity BERNANAEEBLEVMIERERER
method in these consolidated financial statements. PETRIENER ©
Modex NVC
BERRE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=R=+—H Rt+t=-A=+—H
2020 2019 2020 2019
—v—qu _HE —7—7q5 _j-LﬁE
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TEx FTEx TEn FTEx
Current assets MENEE 19,491 21,457 5,272 4,070
Non-current assets FERBEE 139,328 151,173 26,655 25,967
Current liabilities mEa R (14,519) (25,209) (2,647) (3,186)
Non-current liabilites ~ FEREN B & (82,232) (85,565) (290) (194)
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REMB MR T
22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 RBENT2ERE
(Continued)
Modex NVC
BERRE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLFE BE+=-A=t—-HLEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
=il T TR —TNF
US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TER FTET TEn =
Revenue LERE 38,520 44,060 12,108 12,413
(Loss) profit for the year £ A (E518) % 7 (68) (9,453) 1,749 5,131

Other comprehensive ~ FREMEME
(expense) income for (S H)WE
the year (442) (3,189) 1,079 (297)

Total comprehensive ~ FRZE (2 H)
(expense) income for  Wizi4A%EE
the year (510) (12,642) 3,728 4,834

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR 241
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REMIE|RME

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 NBENTZER#E

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

bt B A5 B R R B AR S B RS AR
MR B2 N R AR E E 2 $I8R

Modex NVC
BRRE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BW+=R=+—H R+=A=+-H
2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEF EEmESayEE —T_TF Eetaykcd
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TER FTET TEn =
Net assets of the BEABERAZ
material associates BEFE 62,068 61,856 28,990 26,657
Proportion of the ZFE BIREAHE
Group’s ownership NCIWA: Y=L
interest in material ez 2 el
associates 27,664 27,569 11,596 10,663
Goodwill B 4,034 4,034 - -
Other adjustments HE AR
(note) (Hizt) (4,503) (4,509) - -
Carrying amount of $’§ BREAEE
the Group’s interest NS £
in material associates ~ BREI{E 27,195 27,100 11,596 10,663

Note: The other adjustments mainly relate to the difference
between the consideration for 12.4% equity interests
and the Group’s share of the net asset value of the
additional 12.4% equity interests of Modex based on the
carrying amounts of Modex as at the date of acquisition.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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mEMBHRRME
22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REtENTZRERE
(Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not EERIEE B E A RINERE R -

individually material:

2019
il T F
Us$’000 US$'000
FXx TR

The Group’s share of profit for REEEE 2 AFE R

the year 981 878
The Group’s share of other REERGEzEMEE KR

comprehensive income 229 -
The Group’s share of total AEEREGZE2ERERRE

comprehensive income 1,210 878

Aggregate carrying amount of the R+ZA=+—B&%
Group’s interests in these e 2B AR RREE
associates at 31 December 6,021 6,019

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELECHES

2020 2019

b Sl 220 —T—NE
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET

Unlisted shares and investments: LMz RH RIZE
At cost LR 6,757 6,757
Share of post-acquisition reserves,  FE{RUEE1Z #E -

net of dividend received B E AR A 924 598

7,681 7,355

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR 243
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REMIE|RME

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

23

Particulars of joint ventures as at 31 December

2020 and 2019 are set out below:

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Name and operation
R/ ERE

£ EELY

Dalian Singamas International Container PRC
Co., Ltd. (‘DSIC") ** #

REBREREERERLR"

Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd.*" PRC
RNBHERERAFN i
Guangxi Singamas Container Co., Ltd. PRC

(‘GSCL) *e H

RRBREERARAR

Group’s

REELEZERE

R-F_F

FR-_ZF-NAF+-HA=

B AEEZTEAENEEE
m :

equity interest

A B RE

40.0%

55.0%

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020

40.0%

55.0%

Proportion of voting Principal
power held activities
Frfs R LBl TEER
2019
ZT-NE

33.3%

40.0%

57.0%

33.3% Provision of
container

storage and

repair services

AL RAG
7 R B RS

40.0% Provision of
container

storage and

repair services

Ty

TE{/\?K%‘UFH
e R aE RS

57.0% Provision of
container

depot and

related

logistics services

AL RAG
B5EBR
REMRRS
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REMIE|RME

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 INTERESTS IN JOINT
(Continued) VENTURES (Continuead)
Place of
incorporation/
registration Group’s Proportion of voting Principal
Name and operation equity interest power held activities
R/ ERR
£ EELY KRB RE Frfs R Ll TEER
2020 2019
ZECEF el
Shanghai Huasing International Container PRC - - - - Provision of
Freight Transportation Co., Ltd.* " i (Note) (Note) container
(“Huasing") (Hzz) (W) depot and
SEERRERERERRAR" related
**EJ) logistics services
AL RAS
EHEER
REDRRS

Equity joint venture established in the PRC in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations

Based on the legal form and terms of the contractual
arrangements, the investment in GSCL is treated as a
Joint venture because major decisions relating to relevant
activities require consent of the Group and its joint
venture partner.

These companies are accounted for as joint ventures
as at respective period end date as in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of the companies, major
financial and operating policies of these companies
require the unanimous consent of all directors of the joint
ventures.

#

@

R B BE DI RAER 2 B 2.2 s
BEDE

WRIEE R B %I AR+ GSCL
HREWEBEBLF  AREERE
BERNEANARTERNEERESE
PREBHFAE -

WREENAIAEEHEER LN F]
EEABMHREEAEREBELEA
B ELERAN T B BEEEREF
ELEPRTREFHAE -

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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mEMBBmRMEE
23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)
Note:

In October 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 40.0% interest
in Huasing to a third party for proceeds of RMB97,000,000
(equivalent to US$13,753,000). This transaction has resulted in
the recognition of a loss in profit or loss, calculated as follows.

23 REELEHERE

iz -

RZFE—NF+A FEBUELHEARE
97,000,000.2 (1512 13,753,000% 7T ) H1 & # £
DEL40.0%RET—FE=F - AR 55/ R Bz
KRB —EEBER BT -

US$’000

F=ET

Proceeds of disposal LEMSES 13,753
Less: carrying amount of the 40% investment on the date B MR EFRIES 2 B40%%ENREEE

of loss of joint control (13,484)

Release of exchange translation reserve EERONE T E E (1,467)

Release of general reserve BR—REE (12)

Loss on disposal of a joint venture (included in other expenses)  HE&E—AATCENGEE(BIREEMER) (1,210)

Summarised financial information of material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

23

REMIE|RME

REEBELECERE

BELENAKEGRAMBHREARA

DSIC REBHBERELXETR QA
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF ke
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current assets MEEE 4,038 3,489
Non-current assets EMENEE 15,579 15,463
Current liabilities mENEE (4,375) (4,137)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE - (574)
The above amounts of assets and M EERBEESED
liabilities include the following: BIELATHIESR -
Cash and cash equivalents HekZERIRE 2,286 1,588
Current financial liabilities mBM B aE
(excluding trade and other (TBEEEMNER R
payables and provisions) H{h FE {<F BR 0 R B 8) (120) (109)
Non-current financial liabilities JERBI B aE
(excluding trade and other (TBEEEMNERKR
payables and provision) H e R B 1) - (574)

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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REMIE|RME

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELEHERE

(Continued)
DSIC (Continued) REBMERELEEETR QA
6=
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=+t—BLEE
2020 2019
= =id = 7
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET
Revenue = X 8,335 11,742
Profit for the year F @A 1,031 796
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEERE (L)
(expense) for the year 989 (237)
Total comprehensive income FAZEW=ERTE
for the year 2,020 559
The above profit for the year M FER NS BHE
include the following: LATNEYIER -
Depreciation expense WEEH 634 634
Interest income FEHBA 13 6
Interest expense FERZ 5 70
Income tax charge Fre i i 366 290

248 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020



23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMIE|RME

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 NEELEZERE

(Continued)
DSIC (Continued) REBWBERELEETR QA
(&
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BER B E RS B mERT
information to the carrying amount of the interest MR RNEBMBIREEXBEFRA A
in DSIC recognised in the consolidated financial RESAREE CHR
statements:
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—8
2020 2019
- XY T NF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Net assets of the joint venture BEMEZEETE 15,242 14,241

Proportion of the Group’s
ownership interest in DSIC

Other adjustments

7N 5= E 70 RS2 s o B B
SERBEERRARZ

Fra R 2 Ll 5,616 5,247
H A (85) (85)

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in DSIC

7N £ (3] A R 338 s D B B
SRBEERAFZ
R EREE 5,531 5,162

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMIE|RME

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELEHERE
(Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not FEAREBZAELENEGEALER -
individually material:

2020 2019
SE S =
US$’000 US$'000

F %57 FET

The Group’s share of profit for NEB IR 2 RFEE &

the year 28 165
The Group’s share of other REERGEZEMEME

comprehensive income (expense) e () 148 (339)
The Group’s share of total AEEREGEZEZA

comprehensive income (expense) Wezs (2 H) #2858 176 (174)
Aggregate carrying amount of R+-—A=+—HBA%

the Group’s interest in these joint Blhz e ELFEREE

ventures as at 31 December 2,150 2,193
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24 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI

REMIE|RME

24 BRANEBEEFAEMEZEK

mZERTHA

2020 2019
= =i = 7
US$’000

UsS$’000
FTXx TET

FELHRES

Unlisted security

26,156 18,997

The Group’s unquoted equity investment
represented 14.0% (2019: 14.0%) equity interest
of Xiamen Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain
Development Co., Ltd., a logistic company in the
PRC.

The directors of the Company have elected to
designate this investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding this investment for long-term
purposes and realising its performance potential in
the long run. This investment is not held for trading
and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future.

AEEFBEZIFELMEFRKERFG
EfREREHEREZTRRODERA
A14.0%(ZF—NF : 14.0%) Ik #&
B ZB—RPEEE YRR
ET °

ARRAEFERERZREBER/ER
REEFAEMEE K 2D T
B ERANARAABEZHERRZ
EFRENDABENEHENER
EARESRERNFEZSTNER
EHREREEBEERRORBAN - %
KREYFFEEEARRH I IERNT
AR E o

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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mEMBRRME
25 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL 25 BAAREBEFTABRRZEH
BE
At 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial asset RZE_ZTF+_A=+—8 &%
at FVTPL represents investment in an unlisted BiZAnBEFTAEBERZEREER
investment. The investment is classified as financial RRERFELTMERE - ZIRERIE
assets at FVTPL at initial recognition and measured BREIBAEAABETFABRZ
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The CTRIEE  WERSHRUAAEE
directors of the Company considered that the fair AR - ARFREERALEESKRE
value of the unlisted investment is determined with REBEEEREENAREEELE
reference to the fair value of the underlying assets EHLTERRENAAEE - HREAR
and liabilities as reported by the fund manager. AESRAERTIBERHEEZ Ly
No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact RS AEEmMEHMARE - BitkR
of changes in the relevant unobservable data as BERGRRMEDIT o
the directors of the Company considered that the
exposure is insignificant to the Group.
26 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 26 FRBEEERSE
ASSETS
2020 2019
—ECEF —hE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Deposits paid for property, BETE - #2R
plant and equipment (Note) B (/3/7&) 299 775

Note: At the end of the reporting period, deposit of
RMB1,951,000 (equivalent to US$299,000) (2019:
RMB5,404,000 (equivalent to US$775,000)) had been

paid for the purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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mE

Bt 5 R AR P R

INVENTORIES 27 FE&
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE _j_l_,ﬁz
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FZET
Raw materials R 35,249 46,651
Work in progress RS 11,234 8,288
Finished goods 2K mm 13,424 21,197
59,907 76,136
The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at N_E-TF+-_A=+—RHE_ZF
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are —NE+ZA=1T—HHNBFEZE
expected to be recovered within the next twelve HEEEHEAIERAKR T @A RHE
months. 1k °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 28 EUWERR
2020 2019
—ECEHF —NE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables JiE IS BR 53X 62,710 34,049
Less: allowance for credit losses B ERERER (86) (699)
Net trade receivables FEUS R KB 62,624 33,350
A defined credit policy is maintained within the AEEEHTE—ERBIEERE

Group. The credit terms are agreed with each of its
trade customers depending on the creditworthiness
of the customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days
(2019: 30 days to 120 days).

EEHABOREI20RTF(ZE— 1

F : H30KRE120KRTF

ZIEEME °

BT RF

“ECTEEW c BWEBREXERAA
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mEMBHRRME
28 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28 EWERF &)
The aged analysis of trade receivables, net of REIEBHRINRERBRERZEK
allowance for credit losses, which is prepared RRAEBRZFH 2 BEB W AR
based on invoice date of each transaction which )\EEE HEMRA - SRR EEE
approximated the respective revenue recognition LRI -
dates or date of rendering of services, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:
2020 2019
—_ 7 _ qE _j_l_,ﬁz
US$’000 US$’000
FEx F=7T
0 to 30 days FTE=TX 40,344 21,055
31 to 60 days =T—EXTX 14,737 7,337
61 o 90 days At—EA+E 6,041 3,293
91 to 120 days Nt+—ZE2—B=Z+X 87 832
Over 120 days —B_TARMNUE 1,415 833
62,624 33,350

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates and the

creditworthiness of the customers.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of US$12,697,000
(2019: US$7,555,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date. Included in the past due balances
of US$1,569,000 (2019: US$1,619,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default on the basis that these are long term
customers with on-going business relationship with

the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade

receivables are set out in note 47(b).
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REMIE|RME

29 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

29 FEAFNKRHMEWFIE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
“ETF Emeiayiics
US$’000 US$'000
FExn FET
The Group’s prepayment and NEETER K E b FE IR
other receivables comprise: BIE
Consideration receivables HEKTB A R EWERE
in connection with disposal of (Htit45)
subsidiaries (note 45) 53,432 39,456
Consideration receivables in HE—& B EEIKE
connection with disposal of RE
a joint venture 6,319 6,811
Advance to suppliers RS ERE 47,451 8,594
Others EAh 14,107 12,381
121,309 67,242
Analysed for reporting purpose of:  AIREAE DT
Amount shown under non-current FERBEEIAE &%
assets 31,678 29,090
Amount shown under current MEEEIHE T28
assets 89,631 38,152
121,309 67,242
Details of impairment assessment of other H b fE W R IBR E R A F B H A B aE
receivables are set out in note 47(b). 47(pb) °

SESREER o BALRCEERAT
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REMIE|RME

30 AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) 30
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The general credit term for trade balances with
immediate holding company is 60 days (2019: 60
days).

The aged analysis of amount due from immediate
holding company, net of allowance for credit losses
of US$20,774,000 (2019: US$7,315,000), which is
prepared based on invoice date of each transaction,
which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period

R (M) EEZER D FRIEA

HERRANNE HEH EEH—R
RB0KR(ZT—F : 60K) °

R EBMRNBRERBXRER
20,774,000&L(ZZE— N4 : 7,315,000
EN)ZEWERERARFEUUER
RPZEZHFE - WEARBBKAER
HHEIRBAY) 2 BRER AT T -

is as follows:
2020 2019
—ESF etk
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+XK - 2,072
Over 120 days —B_TARMNUE 94,347 103,530
94,347 105,602
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AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO)
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
(Continued)

On 4 November 2020, the Group and immediate
holding company entered into the settlement deed
(the “Deed”), pursuant to which the Company
and immediate holding company conditionally
agreed to the settlement of the Trade Balances
with Related Companies in accordance with a
repayment schedule. Pursuant to the Deed, the
Trade Balances with Related Companies shall
be repaid over a 10-year period with interest (the
“Repayment Proposal”). Details of the Repayment
Proposal are disclosed in the Company’s Circular
dated 24 November 2020. The Repayment
Proposal was approved by the shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting on 11 December
2020 and will be effective subject to certain
other conditions precedent are satisfied. Upon
the Repayment Proposal becomes effective, the
existing Trade Balances with Related Companies
will be derecognised, and a new financial asset
with the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
Repayment Proposal (“Modified Asset”) will be
recognised at fair value at the date of such asset
modification. The details in relation to the progress
on the conditions precedent to the Repayment
Proposal subsequent to the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 53.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, amount
due from immediate holding company with
aggregate carrying amount of US$94,347,000
(2019: US$103,530,000) was past due. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. In
addition, for the trade balances in relation to sales
of containers overdue, a 4% of interest per annum
is charged to the immediate holding company. The
overdue interest was charged up to the date of the
Repayment Proposal was introduced.

30

REMIE|RME

FE W (FE ) B IR R A RFKIR
(4)

RZZE_TF+—HAMNA - N&EBEEH
BEEERAAGZHERE(RE])
Bt - ARBEEEERARBGMY
WEEREERREARGSTEBE A
AIME BT -  RBEERE  HE
G AR EBESHRBERE +FANERF
BEE(ENTE]) - BRFTEIMEF
BEER_ZFT_TF+—HA=-_+HNz
MK BEFFEE_T_FTF+=AH
T—HORRFIARE LESRER
o WEERAEEEEMEGNER
THEK - —BERFE A - B
RAWNESHREFHIVERER - T8
Fetal(#E R EE]) P RERIGK
MEMHNFTeREERTCUHEEZE
ZEBURARBETUAER BRHRE
HERBEENGTENEHEEERB
SUEVARED - PSR FESS o

R—_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—8 2%
HHEREEREER AR RERAER
/594,347,000 L (=& — NLF :
103,530,0003E7T) © A5 BN Mt 5% 45
BRI AEEMERM o o - HREE
SREEFENARE ZHBUNER
ERABIA%MEFE o mEAF BB 5T
RESIEERGTEZA -
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mEMBHRRME
30 AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) 30 FEW(EM) BEEZEZERARRE
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (&
(Continued)
Details of impairment assessment of amount due FE U B 4% A A B SR IR MR B R A FF
from immediate holding company are set out in ME KT FE47 (D)
note 47(b).
The non-trade nature amount due to immediate ENERZERAREZEERIER
holding company is unsecured, interest free and EEA  REMLBERBEEERAY -
repayable on demand.
31 AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) 31 FEWR(EN)RERMKEQRRKIE
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
The general credit term for trade balances with ARAMNEARNESEEEEH—
fellow subsidiaries is 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 MBEI0EB0K(ZZE—NF : 30E60
days). R) °
The aged analysis of amounts due from fellow RS HARHNBR (= A 18 < %E456,227,000
subsidiaries, net of allowance for credit losses of EL(ZF—NF : 2,236,000E7T) 2 fE
US$6,227,000 (2019: US$2,236,000), which is WRRMBARFIEAERR S ZER
prepared based on invoice date of each transaction, HEtE - WELBREUARER B B 2
which approximated the respective revenue BRI DATIAT -
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:
2020 2019
= i = T
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+K 196 838
31 to 60 days =t+—FEXRTX 35 214
61 to 90 days ANT—E=N+X 1 635
91 to 120 days AT+—FE—AZtRX 1 157
Over 120 days —B-t+ARMNUE 28,043 30,425
28,276 32,269
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amounts of US$28,080,000 (2019: US$31,431,000)
were past due. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. In addition, for the
trade balance in relation to sales of containers
overdue, a 4% of interest per annum is charged
to fellow subsidiaries. The overdue interest was
charged up to the date of the Repayment Proposal
was introduced.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
in the opinion of the management of the Group,
these balances are not expected to be repaid within
the next twelve months and therefore presented as
non-current asset.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries are set out in notes 30 and
47(b).

The non-trade nature amount due to a fellow
subsidiary are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATES

Non-current portion of amounts due from
associates included a non-trade balance of
US$10,000,000 (2019: US$10,000,000) bearing
interest at 7% per annum, unsecured and repayable
on demand. The remaining non-trade balance is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Both amounts are not expected to be repaid within
the next twelve months and therefore presented as
non-current assets.

31
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FE U (FE1Y) B A Bt I 2~ Rl K IE
G-
R-ZE-_ZTFE+_A=+—H 2%
HRERKRRMNBARIRBELAERR
8 428,080,000k (= — N7 :
31,431,000 7T) - AEE W EREZF
EHRFEEMETRR o b - HRHE
EERMEENEHRE S REREF
EZMBRRI4%FRE - @EANEE
FTIRES|EENGEIZH -

R-_ZF_FF+_A=+—HE=%
hEF-A=+—8  AEEEE
ERAELBEESTRE+ (@A
NEE - BB BERDEE -

JE U R K BT /BB A B SR IE B BB &E il A
AHE BT 30K 47(b) ©

EN—RIRXMBRRIEEZMEERIA
SEAR  RERREETEENRA

FE B & 1 R SRR

FEWHE & N B RIBRIERBF D BIE
JEE 5 #:%10,000,000E T (ZE—Hh
% : 10,000,000%7T) ' LEFE7%ET
B \EEERSEREEREE - F
BRHEEIHRTEAERR 2B K%
EETERBE - Bt EmMEREY
TEERRT_EAREE A2
WABERBEE -
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RAMIBHRERME
32 AMOUNTS DUE FROM 32
ASSOCIATES (Continueqd)

33

Current portion of amounts due from associates
represented trade balance of US$3,678,000 (2019:
US$8,421,000), net of allowance for credit losses of
US$43,000 (2019: US$98,000). The general credit
terms are 30 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 90 days).

The aged analysis of trade related amounts due
from associates, net of allowance for credit losses,
which is prepared based on invoice date of each
transaction, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

JE UN B & N T FRIE (2

EWHENRRENREIMNAE
5 &5 %:3,678,000E T (ZF— NLF :
8,421,000%7T) * MKk ERBREE
43,000E T (ZF— N5 : 98,0003
Jo) ° —MRIEEHA30EOAR(ZE—
L 30E90K) ©

RBEHRINRERBRER 2RI
RERNRESHEBERRUNERRSZ
LHRAFE  TREARKARREH
) ZREDHTAT

2020 2019

= i = 7

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days TE=+X 310 505
31 to 60 days =+—ERTX 52 69
61 to 90 days ANT—EATRK 6 540
91 to 120 days AT+—ZE=—BZ+X 14 306
Over 120 days —BZTRNRE 3,296 7,001
3,678 8,421

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due
from associates are set out in note 47(b).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 1.50% (2019: 0.01% to
2.75%) per annum.

33
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34 TRADE PAYABLES 34

Included in the Group’s trade payables at 31
December 2020 are bills presented by the Group
to relevant creditors of US$5,422,000 (2019:
US$1,608,000) which are for future settlement. Al
bills presented by the Group are aged within 365
days and not yet due at the end of the reporting
period. The following is an analysis of trade
payables by age based on invoice date of each

REMIE|RME

FEAS BR K
AEER-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—H
MENERTERESEEREEARR
#5,422,0003 7T (20194 : 1,608,000
ENRE  BEZREBERANKKRER -
REERRWATE EEHIEI65KAE
H - MARERSHERKIE - BN
ERAERR G2 EZBHE) 2RI
ST -

transaction.
2020 2019
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days EE=+X 24,767 12,667
31 to 60 days =+—ERTX 12,150 4,455
61 to 90 days ANT—EATRK 4,903 1,851
91 to 120 days N+—ZF=—B8=+X 2,691 433
Over 120 days —BZTXRNRE 6,469 5,442
50,980 24,848

The average credit period on purchases of materials
is 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEMHNTHEEHA30E0X -
AREBE B E R R E IR ROk g
RIIBNFTOEERYRA -

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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mEMBRRME
35 LEASE LIABILITIES 35 HESE
2020 2019
b 20 T NF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEaRE
Within 1 year —F R 1,345 2,270
Within a period of more than 1 year i —F{ERF AR
but not more than 2 years 1,050 739
Within a period of more than 2 years EBiBMFEEBRF AN
but not more than 5 years 371 457
2,766 3,466
Less: Amount due for settlement B ARTZEAREE
with 12 months shown W RB B E 2 A
under current liabilities THE (1,345) (2,270)
Amount due for settlement after BARTZRAKRER
12 months shown under WHRIERE B EZ WA
non-current liabilities k| 1,421 1,196
36 ACCRUALS AND OTHER 36 EFERARHEMEMERR
PAYABLES
Accruals and other payables consist provision of Bt ERAREMENERBEREK
staff cost, selling expenses, construction costs of REFE - HEXH  IRBEEKR
new factories and upgrade of facilities, and other BHEAL AREMEFERX
accrued expenses. H oo
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37 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

38

39

mE

37 FAWERR

2020
g St

US$’000
TXx

Advances from customers from
sales of containers

HESK

A EFEU AR R

11,170

Bt 5 R AR P R

2019
—NF
US$'000
TET

18,259

Advances from customers at 1 January 2020 were
fully recognised as revenue in the current year (1
January 2019: fully recognised in 2019).

When the Group receives a deposit before the
commencement of the production activity, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract.

ZEF A —HMBBERR
EEARBACE-—NEF—A
75/\\\ f hiﬂz_gﬁﬁgum °

|+I> A

| Bk X

i
B :

IR ok

$%Eﬁrﬂﬁé$§%§bﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ
'EH ERFARBEEERE

o

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 38 ENBMEATAREELE
AND JOINT VENTURES IE
The amounts due to associates and joint ventures EREBE AR REELEREBEL R
are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest free and B5ME  EERF  2EBERKLE
repayable on demand. EEERHEE -
BANK BORROWINGS 39 RITHER
2020 2019
et 2 — T — f|F
US$’000 US$'000
FExn FET
Bank borrowings comprise RITEREEATAR -
the following:
Secured 1K 8,384 -
Unsecured AR 19,200 23,584
27,584 23,584

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMIE|RME

39 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the above loans contain
repayment on demand clause (shown under current
liabilities) and repayable within one year.

The Group’s secured bank borrowing had been
secured by the pledge of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with the carrying amount of
US$11,710,000 as at year ended 31 December
2020.

All bank loans are mainly carry interest at LIBOR,
HIBOR or borrowing rate offered by the People’s
Bank of China plus certain basis points and are
repayable within one year (2019: within one year).
Interest is repriced every one to six months.

The ranges of effective annual interest rates for year
2020 on the Group’s bank borrowings were 1.36%
10 5.22% (2019: 1.89% to 5.22%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank
borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

39

RITRER®

LSRR SEA S IREBRG
HRABHEEIIR) - BR—ERE
}%0

AEBMESRITERER  UAER

HETHEEFAER HBHE2_F—
TZF+_-_A=+—H8  ZWEZER
£ %3/511,710,000% 7T, °

P SR1TE R E 2 A BURTT A 297
B BRRTAFXRFEXTEARR
TR Z BRI BEMFTE
ZHBERAER —FRER(ZE—

F:—FR) -MNEEF—E2XEAHE
1EfE -
R-ZB-ZFF  AEERTERZE

BEFEIRBED B A1.36%E5.22%
(ZZ—HF : 1.89%Z%E5.22%) ©

RBEHR  NEE 2 ARERNAFE
j]’ﬁ%‘é%%%foEfﬂﬁ?MDT :

2020 2019
US$ ooo US$’000

FEx FET

HKD BT 8,384 =
RMB AR - 701
8,384 701

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020




40

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

At 31 December 2020, the Company entered in
several foreign currency forward contracts relating
to the purchase of RMB and the sale of USD
at contract rates ranging from RMB6.5440 to
RMB6.5985 per USD with future maturity dates
ranging from 19 January 2021 to 17 June 2021, at
an aggregate notional amount of US$30,268,000.

At 31 December 2019, derivative financial
instruments represent the fair value of two interest
rate swap contracts, with notional amounts of
US$40,000,000 and US$70,000,000 that the
Company entered to minimise its interest rate
risk exposure arising from a US$40,000,000 term
loan and the US$270,000,000 syndicated loan
respectively, by fixing the monthly LIBOR at 0.90%
and 1.57%. These two interest rate swap contracts
were matured on 30 March 2020 and 24 May 2020
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
gain on change in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts amounting to US$109,000 (2019:
loss on change in fair value of the interest rate swap
contracts amounting to US$382,000) had been
recognised in profit or loss.
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PTEEMIA

RZEZFTF+ZA=+—H ' &R
AERBENEARBAARBREET
HINEIRHAIGH - BREXHBTIET
H6.5440 \R¥EZE6.5085 AR - K
RIMEBR-_FT-Z—F—HA+HILAZE
:gz—iﬂﬂ+t5'%%%$%
/430,268,000 7T, ©

RZZE—-HAE+=—_A=+—8 97
eI ARARABTRERTE
HIE 40,000,000 TR ¥ EE
270,000,000 JT T & 2 # &
ERMAIVHAMHEZESES B A
40,000,0003 7t K% 70,000,0003 7T 2 F|
REBEHNNAREE  NEEEA
RBUERTTRIZEIF B A0.90% % 1.57% °
ZMDAEEPEOEDIR =
EF=ZA=ZtHAEK-ZT=ZTFRA=
+P0 B E 8 -

RZE—_EF+_A=+—HIEFE
N INBEREAEHNMEENAREE
HFEUW = 109,000E T (ZF — NF
FEBHEHON AR BEEEFSHEIR
382,000%7T) ' ERBmPER o
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mEMBHRRME
41 SHARE CAPITAL 41 BR
Number of shares Share Capital
RG%A kx
2020 2020 2019 2019
ZRCRE CECTE ey Sy B
US$'000 HK$'000 US$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tén TEn T
lssued and fuly paid: ~~ EETRER :
Atbegiming andend of ~ FAIRER
the year 2,416,919,918 | 2,416,919918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513
There was no movement in the Company’s share RRER @« NEBRAZEEE -
capital during both years.
42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 42 LRAX

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1 June 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors of the Company
and eligible employees of the Group, and may
be terminated by resolution in general meeting.
Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to qualifying grantees, including
employees or directors of the Company and/or the
Group. The share option scheme was in force for a
period of 10 years commencing from 1 July 2010
to 30 June 2020. The outstanding share options
subsequently lapsed on 1 July 2020.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
2,610,000, representing approximately 0.11% of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date. The
total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the adoption date, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors of the Company in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is
payable by each qualifying grantee on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised within the
option period (must not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant option) which shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at
the time of grant. The exercise price is determined
by the board of directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.
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REMIE|RME

42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42 MR (#)

Details of the outstanding share options as at 31 BHE_FT-_ZTFRER-_FT—-NF+=AH
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: =+ —HERITEABRENFEN
T
Number of options Vesting period Exercisable period
BREHE BE & H#A TEH

Option granted on 1 July 2010 (exercise price of HK$1.38):
RZZE-—TF+ A - ARHNBEREGTEERBT1.38) :

2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
—E-TFLH—RAE —FE——FEtA—R=E
—E——FHA=1H —E_TFRA=TH
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
—E-ZEF+A—RAE —E——_F+tA—RA=E
—E—_FRA=TH —ETFRA=TH
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—E-TFELHA—HZE —E-=ZFtH—HZE
—E—=FA=+H —EFTFAA=1H
The following table discloses the Company’s share TEREZRREE(BEARTES) MFA
options held by employees (including directors of NEIEREZFE

the Company during both years):

Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Forfeited at 31 Lapsed at 31
at 1 January during December during December
2019 the year 2019 the year 2020
R=B-1% R=B-1% R-BZ2E
—A-8H +=A=+-8 +=ZA=t-H
HATE FRERK HARTHE TS Ief K AT 6
'000 ‘000 '000 '000 ’000
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hizta) (Hiztb)
Directors ) 2,572 (240) 2,332 (2,332) -
Employees E8 278 - 278 (278) -
2,850 (240) 2,610 (2,610) -
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REMIE|RME

42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of

42 LRz
TEUBTHAFEBEAR ) BEARE

the Company’s share options by the vesting period

during both years.

I WERED

Outstanding Forfeited Outstanding apsed Outstanding
1 January during 31 December during Decembe
2019 the year 2019 e yea 020
RZZ-1F R=B-NE e 3
-F-A TZA=t+-H ; £
HRTHE  FRRRK e R AT 6 Rk S ARATH
'000 '000 ‘000 000 000
(Note a) ote
(Hita)
Granted on 1 July 2010; RZE-SEtA-ARE:
- with vesting period of -HEHm-E-5F
1 July 2010 to tA-BZ-%—-%
30 June 2011 ~AZTH 333 (80) 253 (253) -
- with vesting period of -REBm=F-TF
1 July 201010 tA-B2-Z-——F
30 June 2012 ~NA=1H 1,217 (80) 1,137 (1,137) -
- with vesting period of -BEHm-_E-2F
1 July 201010 tA-BE-%-=fF
30 June 2013 ~NAZTH 1,300 (80) 1,220 (1,220) -
2,850 (240) 2610 (2610) -
Exercisable at the end of RERA F17{E
the year 2,850 2,610 -
Weighted average exercise MEFITEE(ET)
price (HK9) 138 138 138 138 -
Notes: Kat -
1) The forfeiture represented the share options granted (@) WRINIER F AL AlA BIEEFERER

to the eligible directors of the Company of the Group,

which were forfeited upon their resignations.

b) All share options granted on 1 July 2010 lapsed on 1

July 2020.

No share option expense was recognised for both
years in 2020 and 2019.

BEZFALRBIBF ORI -

b)) R-F-ZFFELA-HARHAZHEER
BR-_F_ZFFLHA-FXH -

RZE_EFER_E-NFIEER
S H R o

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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FEMKHRERME

43 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, US$1,596,000
(2019:US$402,000) deferred tax assets have been
offset with deferred tax liabilities. The following are
the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

Revaluation

43

of Accelerated

Investment

EEHIEEE
REIRGEMBRRAEME -
1,596,000 7T (ZF — N.F : 402,000
EN)EEHEEECHELEHEBEAEE
B - TEERAFERAFEHAN
SERAREENBEEE(AREE K
HEHMOT :

Fair value
gainon
equity

tax Undistributed instrument

properties  depreciation

RENE  NERE
B4 0% AoOEER  HEER Bl St 2E
US§'000 US§'000

profits Taxloss  atFVTOCI Others Total
BARER
FARBRE
li6abd 3
TEZAAE

US/000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§o00  US$000

eI TEn TEn eI TEn En TEL
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n&-A-H (4,783) 437 (8,042) - - (399 (12,787)
(Charge) credt o proft or loss BitABRZ(EH)

(note 16) B2 hite) (109) 129 1638 = = (14 1,644
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF = (326) 4024 = = 575 4973
Reversal of withholding taxupon ~~ HEAREREH B

distribution [ - - 382 - - = 382
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&

+ZA=t-A (4892 240 (1999) - - 162 (6,489
(Charge) credit to profitor loss Bt AR (i)

(note 16) B hie) ©2) (17) (681) 826 = 385 41
Deferred tax lioiity on fair value gain &A% BEGF AL M2 E

on equity instrument at FYTOC YaBEIEY

DA EEREN
EREHARE - - - - (1959) - (1,955)
Reversal of withholding taxupon ~~ FIEAEEREHAZ

distribution m& - - 317 - - - 37

At 31 December 2020 RZ82%8%
+-p=t+-A (4,984) 23 (2,36) 826 (1,955 1 (7,708)
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$681,000
(2019: credit of US$1,638,000) on the undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$157,647,000 (2019: US$176,454,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately US$3,304,000 (2019: nil) of such
losses. The remaining tax losses has not been
recognised as deferred tax assets due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The Group
is not entitled to future benefits from certain tax loss
following from the disposal of subsidiaries (note 45)
during the current year. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of US$7,826,000,
US$6,341,000, US$7,722,000, US$15,108,000
and US$13,282,000 that will expire in 2021, 2022,
2023, 2024 and 2025 (2019: US$3,976,000,
US$13,336,000, US$16,998,000, US$11,881,000
and US$18,303,000 that will expire in 2020, 2021,
2022, 2023 and 2024) respectively. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of US$3,496,000
(2019: US$2,772,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

43

AR EME
EEHEBEEE®)

BREBEFECEMSHE  PEMRBA
A BERRRAGELEAZZTTN
F—A—HERIAEMNERINKE
i 0 681,000 L2 BEER B H (=
T— N4 : 1,638,000 THER)EFTA
—E-EFE+-F=+—HItFERE
=EBTEKBAR  BEQRKRE
BELERRERMNZBELERIBS L -

R_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H  &&E
B AARERATIEEE157,647,000
E(ZE—HNF : 176,454,000%E 7T)
AHEAENRB& 2R ET - 1874
E518 493,304,000 T (ZF — NF :
BIMNBELECHRBEEEDHER - AR
RERF)E A AT TR & - B ik 3 Bt
FAMIBEEERERECERIBEEE -
AEERAFERLENB QA
FI45) ME\BERFE LT IBBEEES
AEAME - EARBHERZHIEEE
"7,826,0003 7T * 6,341,0003 T *
7,722,000% 7T ~ 15,108,000% T &
13,282,000 LA IR =T = —F -
e S S e
MEZZE_RAFIHNEH(ZZTE—NEF :
3,976,000% T * 13,336,000% T
16,998,000% 7t * 11,881,000 7T &
18,303,000X LA RN =T =FF
T —F - ZFE-_—_F.FT-=
FROFZEFEE) - EaEEAIR
EIRHAEA o

REmERR  AEEAERNEET
=2 53,496,000 T (= — NF :
2,772,000 7T) © AR T A AJ8EH FERR
oA ARETENEREEE
H R EMZEANENEREEZERE
RIEERIEEE ©
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mEMBBmRMEE
44 ACAQUISITION OF AN ASSET

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
A SUBSIDIARY

On 24 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire 100% interest in Leading
Joy Limited at a consideration of HK$72,800,000
(equivalent to approximately US$9,396,000).
Leading Joy Limited holds an office property in
Hong Kong. The completion of the acquisition was
on 2 November 2020.

The Group elected to apply the optional
concentration test in accordance with HKFRS 3
Business Combinations and concluded that the
property are considered a single identifiable asset.

Consequently, the Group determined that
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset and concluded that the acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

4 EBRBWE-HNEBIRWE—
HEE

RZZT_TF+tA=-+WA ~5HE
HE-BUE=LEIJEEHZE  UR
& 72,800,000/ 7T (X948 % 79,396,000
% 71) W B Leading Joy Limited 100%A%
# - Leading Joy Limited)‘i’\i?%?—irﬁf
MAEYE - ZRER T _F+
—AZHZEK -

AEERBESMBGHRELRFEIRE
BEMHERRAERESHE R AL
HEHLZMER BB AIHRREE

At - XEBREMBANBEED
RABELTEEEEP R — @03
AEE  WHELZEEN—RIE
BMEES T RER

US$'000
FET
Assets recognised at the date of RWEEEANEENT :
acquisition are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment e T YL 9,392
Other receivables H b W FRIR 4
9,396
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of U f#Leading Joy Limited
Leading Joy Limited: HEFRE
Consideration paid in cash EXMRERE 9,396
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd.
(“TPCC”"), a subsidiary principally engaged
in container manufacturing business in
PRC, to two independent third parties for
a cash consideration of RMB132,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$19,469,000).
The net assets at the date of disposal are as
follow:

REMIE|RME

45 HEHEBRAF
@ RZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H
FFER  AEBURSRE
132,000,000 A R ¥ (FBE R 4
19,469,000k ) HE—FER
PRENELEEEEREBHTFA
AREXNTFEBEBBR AT (XRZE
KENDZHRETREBILE=
B RNEEBHRRFEENT ¢

US$'000
FET
Consideration: RE :
Cash received during the year EWEHIR S 5,308
Cash consideration to be received AR IR SR E 14,161
Total consideration HMRE 19,469
Analysis of assets and liabilities over EEAEHEZEER
which control was lost: =R il

Property, plant and equipment WIS - R RERE 7,977
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 3,989
Inventories B8 21
Prepayments and other receivables TR R H Ath FE W kI8 1,125
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKEIAS 47
Accruals and other payables JEETE A R EMEMRR (823)
Tax payable FERT IR (1,460)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 10,876

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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n'l-\éﬂzti%ﬁiﬁpﬁ-a

45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

45 HEHBAT @

@@  (Continued) @ (#&)
US$’000
FET
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE-KMBARZWE :
Consideration received and receivable B UE & & I ER B X (B 19,469
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (10,876)
Loss on non-controlling interests acquisition Ut B JE 2 A A SR AE %5 &5 18 (136)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EBARMkE 8,457
Net cash inflow arising on disposal R-B-TBF+=-A=t+—H
during the year ended tFERAHEEEZ
31 December 2020: BHESERA -
Cash received WHUR & 5,308
Less: cash used in non-controlling interests &, : Al AU BE FEHE AR AR BR
acquisition (note) IR e (HiE) (582)
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of &l : HEZRIT&EBNIES (47)
4,679

Note: On 3 February 2020, the Group acquired the
remaining 3% interest from non-controlling
shareholder for a cash consideration of
RMB4,064,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$582,000) as a condition precedent for the
disposal of TPCC. Accordingly, the related loss
on acquisition is included in the calculation of
gain on disposal of subsidiaries.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group disposed of its entire issued
registered capital of five of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely, Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., Qidong Pacific
Port Co., Ltd., Qingdao Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd.
and Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai)
Limited (together, the “Disposal Group”),
to an independent third party for a cash
consideration of RMB3,502 million (equivalent
to approximately US$493.2 million) as at
date of disposal. The Disposal Group are
incorporated in the PRC and are engaged
in the businesses including manufacturing

REMIE|RME

45 HEHBAT @

b MN-TE—-—hAhE+-_A=+—H
IEFEARN AEEUBRERE
35.02 B AR (BE m%4gm
BET)LELBMEEHMBR
( %Wi%mm/#ﬁﬁﬁ@

CBRAFEEBERAR
%%Kiﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂ~$ﬁx
FTEEERARNLEBEHEES
B(EBARAR(ABIEER
A EHEBRITHEMELRT
—BUYE=F - HEAFINRFEH
TR - ﬁ%¢l%$2%%
@%%ﬁ%%# SE =TS
NS RERME 12 ﬁﬁ#%ﬁﬁ”ﬁi
%%u&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%L&ﬁ&

of dry freight, specialised and refrigerated RS - RIEE BHMFEE
containers, provision of terminal services wmr
and provision of technical and development
services of container manufacturing in the
PRC. The net assets at the date of disposal
are as follow:
UsS$’000
FET
Consideration: RE:
Cash received during the year ended RZE—-NF+—A=+—
31 December 2019 IFEFEARE KRR S 454,284
Cash received during the year ended R-ZZE-_TFT+-_A=+—H
31 December 2020 LEFERERBAEE 4,601
Cash consideration to be received A IR 2 KB 34,306
Total consideration BRE 493,191
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REMIE|RME

45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

45 HEHBAT @

(Continued)
(b)  (Continued) b)) (&
US$’000
FEIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over CEERAEZEFIRZEER
which control was lost: BESH:
Property, plant and equipment ERR: PG T 271,069
Right-of-use assets EREEE 40,357
Gooduwill EiS 3,589
Deposits for non-current assets FERBEERS 17,502
Inventories FE 156,568
Trade receivables JE W BR X 105,905
Prepayments and other receivables TR K EoAth fE WK 48,110
Amount due from immediate holding W BB AR A ) /TAIE
company 76,839
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE UL [5] Z Fft B A RI IR 13,752
Bank balances and cash WRITEHR KA S 47,802
Trade payables E‘EHEE#A (142,354)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H A ERTER K (51,920)
Advances from customers TEUAR K (24,519)
Lease liabilities HEARE (2,009)
Amounts due to Singamas group Fﬁﬁ%ﬁ SEKIE (11,458)
Amount due to an associate JEAST— Bt & R R FRIB (18)
Bank borrowings RITEE m (69,858)
Tax payable FERTTE I8 (950)
Deferred tax liabilities BRIEBIARE (4,273)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 474,134
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAR ZWER :
Consideration received and receivable £ YCER K 5 R B (B 493,191
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (474,134)
Expenses attributable to the disposal HEMEENER (11,296)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & BT B~ B B Wz 7,761
Net cash inflow arising on disposal R-ZF—-NRF+=-A=+—H
during the year ended LtEERHEERERZ
31 December 2019: FBEHERA -
Cash received YWER & 454,284
Less: expenses attributable to the disposal & : HEFEANE A (11,296)
Less: payment of settlement of current B ENEEERF O
account balances (note) (Baz) (79,133)
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of il : HEZRITEBNIES (47,802)
316,053
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

Note:  Settlement of current account balances is one of

the conditions of settlement of the consideration
by the buyer.

The Group also stuck off two subsidiaries
with total gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of US$10,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019. Details of the assets and
liabilities over which control was lost are not
presented.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, lease liabilities and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

45

46

SABRMEME
HEHEB AT @
b &

Kiat : REAFPOFGAEHAER

Btz — o

RZEBE—-—NEF+_A=+—HF
EASEETHETRRWBER
A HEMNBARNRKEZEA
10,0003 7T ° K AR EE
MaENFRESILLZT -

EXEBREE
AEBEBAERAARRAEBET
ERCRSBELLE RN BBE
EEBRBA 2 T & BRREREA
B4R - ANz BERRMAAL A —F
RAERL -

AEBZERGEBRBRRTEN - H
ERERARABEREGER(BRED
BITHRA - REha M kB ) o

ARREZBFFERENGRE  (F
REZ—HD  ARRAEFEEEE
ARAEEBFERNNRAR  ERAR
FEFZHAER L AEERBBEX
IS -~ BITHBRARBETHENED
RBEBEBATEHERENER -
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47 E@TH
a. Categories of financial a. SRIAEZEH
instruments
2020 2019
= i = 7
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BAREBEFAEM
FElE ERZTA 26,156 18,997
Financial asset at FVTPL BARBEAEBRZZ
CEEE 3,027 -
Financial assets at amortised cost IR S AT ER S R
BE 315,734 361,973
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMT A 109 41
345,026 381,011
Financial liabilities Eo-N=Ri-
Amortised cost B SH R A 89,101 66,639
Lease liabilities HERE 2,766 3,466
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instrument at FVTOCI,
financial asset at FVTPL, derivative financial
instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, other payables,
bank borrowings and current accounts
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and bank balances and cash. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group
entered into derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency
risk and the directors of the Company
manage the risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the currency rates.
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 47 EmI B

b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Market risk (Continueqd) 5 8 B (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEpEE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s R HE - REE SN
foreign currency denominated KB EBEEREY
monetary assets and monetary BEZEARENT
liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE &8fE
2020 2019 2020 2019
e T T el — T NF
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TEx FTET TEx FTEr
RMB ARE 107,490 152,100 57,275 29,871
HKS$ BT 2,811 4,095 8,631 454
Sensitivity analysis R T
As HK$ has been pegged to US$, the RRE TR EETHE -
Group is mainly exposed to exchange rEEFERMHARESH

fluctuation of RMB relative to US$.

The Company entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations of the RMB denominated
receivables and bank deposits against
USS$, its functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes non-
derivative monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies which are different from
the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities. If RMB depreciates by
5% (2019: 5%) against the US$ and
all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax profit for the current year
will decrease by US$712,000 (2019:
post-tax loss for the prior year will
increase by US$4,365,000), and vice
versa. This is mainly attributable to the
exposure outstanding at the end of the
reporting period on RMB receivables,
bank balances, bank borrowings
and payables assuming they are
outstanding for the whole year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings, variable rate bank
balances and pay-fixed/receive-
floating interest rate swaps. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk
arose from fixed interest rate lease
liabilities. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due
to short maturity.
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk on non-derivative financial
instruments is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR, HIBOR and
borrowing rate offered by the People’s
Bank of China arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings.

In order to minimise the Group’s
interest rate risk exposure arising from
a US$40,000,000 term loan and the
US$270,000,000 syndicated loan, the
Company entered into two interest rate
swap contracts, with notional amounts
of US$40,000,000 in 2016 and
US$70,000,000 in 2017 respectively,
to fix the monthly LIBOR at 0.90% and
1.57%. These two interest rate swap
contracts were expired on 30 March
2020 and 24 May 2020 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and excluded the effect on
interest rate swap as the Group’s net
exposure to interest rate risk from the
derivative is insignificant. For floating
rate bank borrowings, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point (2019:
50 basis point) increase or decrease in
interest rate represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020
would have decreased/increased by
US$115,000 (2019: post-tax loss
would have increased/decreased
by US$117,000) attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable rate bank borrowings and
pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate
swaps.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investment in an
unquoted equity security and price risk
from unlisted investment recognised
as financial asset at FVTPL. The Group
invested in an unquoted equity security
for investee operating in logistic
industry sector for long term strategic
purposes which had been designated
as at FVTOCI at the end of the
reporting period. Sensitivity analysis
for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within
level 3 were disclosed in note 47(c).
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade receivables,
bank balances, amounts due from immediate
holding company, fellow subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and other
receivables. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates)

Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates) (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on
the amounts due from immediate holding
company and its fellow subsidiaries, which
totally account for 39% (2019: 38%) of the
financial assets at amortised cost. These
amounts are past due and considered
to be credit-impaired. The management
of the Group has continued to follow up
with the repayment status and reported
to the board of directors of the Company
regularly. The management of the Group,
as part of the monitoring measures, also
requested information from the immediate
holding company to obtain understanding
of its operating and financial performance,
operation update, the debt restructuring
plan and other relevant market factors,
which enable the directors of the Company
understand the repayment ability of the
immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries, and accordingly, determine the
best estimation of the amounts that cannot
be recovered. Other than trade balance with
related parties, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 31.6% (2019: 15.7%) and
72.2% (2019: 53.0%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the manufacturing
segment. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals.
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates) (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or collectively. Except
for significant balances or credit-impaired
amounts which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables
are grouped under a collective assessment
based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due
exposure for the new customers. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of these trade
receivables is not significant.

As part of the Group’s credit risk
management, the Group used an internal
credit rating by assigning an individual loss
rate to each of its debtors with significant
balances and collective assessment for
the remaining debtors. The estimated loss
rate are based on aging of individual trade
debtors as well as historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by
reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Majority of
the bank balances are placed in banks with
credit ratings of AA and A. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.

Amounts due from associates

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates. The Group’s
credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the value of the assets held by
these entities and the power to participate
the relevant activities of these entities. In
determining the ECL for amounts due from
an associate, the management of the Group
uses internal credit rating based on the
past due information and adjusted for any
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, as appropriate. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, reversal
of credit loss of US$41,000 (2019: credit loss
of US$98,000) was recognised.
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. As at 31
December 2020, the Group assessed the
ECL for other receivables and allowance for
credit loss of US$3,000 (2019: US$11,000)
was recognised.

The Group applied internal credit risk
grading assessment comprises the following
categories:
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

b.

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

ST HE @z
b.

(&

REMIE|RME

M¥EREEBEREK

1= B /21 B2 2 6l 1B 5P 1 (4

Trade receivables,
trade related amounts
due from immediate
holding company,
Internal fellow subsidiaries and ~ Other financial assets
credit rating Description associates at amortised cost
R - ElES
BRAT BANMEAR  EBEHATED
RBEEFR fi RBELREZARIE HAfteREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not ~~ Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
have any significant balances past-due over 30 days not credit-impaired
EmkR RPUFENERREEREEMBMNANEALE FEIRAGREX-  1EAAEREREX
REGEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
settle in full after due date not credit-impaired
BRLE ERAGRANSFERER  ERFEIAAR FEMRSGEREX-  12ERRBEREX
2HLR REEEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL =
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
RERK BRANIRENERRINTERNSHERUR - FEORSOEREL- GEREHERRX-
FERREZLEN REEEHE REEENE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-mpaired  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL =
credit-impaired credit-impaired
Ei REBRAREERERENE FESERERRX-  REREHEREX-
FEHE {EEHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
it REBRARKARRBENGBRSE 15825  SEOKTH SRO S
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47 <@t B #®)
b. Financial risk management b. HMERBREEBEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (#)

1= B /7 iz K 6l 1B P A (48)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the maximum exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables, trade related amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and associates, non-trade
amount due from an associate and other

NREREBRKER - BKRE
i3 el NI IRCTEN )= PACTINE
LRANE S RERUR - R
LNRIIEE S RERURA K E M E
WHRIRHRAEERER - I
FREAEZS -

receivables, which are represented by their
gross carrying amounts.

2020 2019
- 2l T NF
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
AEEETR IREASHE EEEEEE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables (significant or Low risk 12,286
credit-impaired balances 1B R B2
assessed individually) Watch list - 8,248
JRE L BR 3K BREE
(BEARSHAERIFTh{E B EERTE) Doubtful - 1,214
Loss - 701
g
51,526 22,449
Trade receivables (not credit-impaired Low risk 6,254 6,387
and assessed collectively) 1B R B2
JE W BR K Watch list 3,310 3,445
(BERAXERASENG) BREE
Doubtful 1,620 1,768
Loss - -
BB
11,184 11,600
62,710 34,049
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment

47 WM IH#E

b.

RE B RRME
PEEEE B ERBER

1= B /21 B2 2 6l 1B 5P 1 (4

assessment (Continued)
2020 2019
“—E T F miayiics
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
AEETR IREASHE EEIERECERE
US$’000 US$'000
FTErx FET
Trade related amount due from immediate  Loss 115,121 112,917
holding company (credit-impaired and B8
assessed individually)
B EEER AR E SEBRIE
(EH xia )SUI%IJ AH)
Trade related amounts due from fellow Loss 34,503 34,505
subsidiaries (credit-impaired and B8
assessed individually)
FEW R XM E AR E SEBERIE
(ERX1ERERIFTE)
Trade related amounts due from Doubtful 3,721 8,519
associates (assessed individually) RIZER
JEW & 1~ 7 B 5 1R 518 (8 51| 5T 4k)
Non-trade amount from an associate Doubtful 13,892 13,154
(assessed individually) RIZER
JFEWLEE & 1~ 71 3E B 5 18R 518 (8 51| 5T k)
Other receivables (assessed individually) Low risk 59,765 50,307
H b & W 3k T8 (18 Bl 714D EWEN

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMBRRME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

As part of the individual assessment of
the lifetime ECL for each significant trade
balances (including those with immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries)
and other credit-impaired trade receivables,
the management of the Group has obtained
an analysis on the counterparties’ credit
risk characteristics by reviewing the trading
history and historical settlement pattern
with the Group. Such analysis also include
operational update and financial position, to
the extent the Group is possible to obtain
such information or from the observable
data in the market. The management of
the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL individually based on expectation
on cash flows after assessing the credit
risk characteristics of individual debtors,
which taking into consideration of historical
settlement record adjusted to reflect current
conditions and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available
to the directors of the Company without
undue cost or effort, and are updated at
each reporting date if considered to be
required. For credit-impaired Trade Balances
with Related Companies, the management
of the Group also considers the expected
timing of the Repayment Proposal becomes
effective and the estimated fair value of the
Modified Asset in determining the lifetime
ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The remaining trade debtors are grouped
based on similar loss patterns and provision
rate is applied using the historical observed
default rates of the trade balance taking into
consideration of forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available
to the directors of the Company without
undue cost or effort, and are updated at each
reporting date if considered to be acquired.
Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess
both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The increase in the loss allowance made
for amounts due from immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries is to reflect
the credit-impaired status during the current
year. Other than this, there is no significant
changes to estimation techniques and
assumptions made during the current year.

Movement in ECL by different class of
financial assets is disclosed in the below
table.
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 47 EmI B

b. Financial risk management b. HMERBREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Credit risk and impairment 1= B 7 fR R 6 {8 7718 (&

assessment (Continued)

Trade related Trade related
amount amount
due from Traderelated  duefrom Trade related Trade related  Non-trade
immediate amountsdue  immediate amountsdue  amounts amount due

Trade Trade holding ~ from fellow holding ~ from fellow ~ due from froman Other
receivables receivables  company subsidiaries ~ company subsidiaries associates  associate receivables
(not credit- (credit-  (not credit-  (not credit- (credit- (credit-  (not credit-  (not credit-  (not credit-

impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired) impaired)
EhEE RYEZ  ERER  EWRR  RUBE  EUBe

BRAR  WEAY  EBRAY KWEAR  AFER  ARFES 0

BYEY  RUER EZRESE ERRESE ERRESE EZEERE RERE RERE BURE

(BEEZE) (FRXE) BERXE) BERXE) (FRXE) (FRXE) (BER¥E (BRERZR EERXE)

US$ 000 US§1000 US§'000 US$000 US$ 000 US§1000 US§'000 US$'000  US§000

TEL SE e i TEL = Txn Tt T

Asat1Januay 2019 R-F-NE
-A-H 381 618 1,077 332 - - 151 - -
Mlowance for credit ~~ FBAEHEE
losses recognised for  EFBXER

newly originated

financial assets 76 - - - 6,531 1,922 55 151 1
Transfer to EVERERYE

credit-impaired - - (784) (314) 84 314 - - -

Alowance forcredit ~ BREREE - |

losses reversed on BRZE-NE

financial assets at —-R-BHEE

1 January 2019 BEEREX

due to settlement R

during the year (366) - (293) (18) - - (108) - -
Tranglation difference  BEZE - (10) - B B 3 i} B B

Asat31 December  RZZ-NE

2019 T-R=1-A 91 608 - - 7,315 2,236 % 151 1
Mlowance for credit ~~ EREXER
losses recognised - - - - 13459 4,063 - - -

Alowancefor credit ~ FEALBEE

lossesrecognised for ~ (EREX R

newly originated

financial assets 81 = - - - - 12 14 4
Alowancefor credt ~ AREREE - @

losses reversed on Bi-2-%%

financial assets at -B-HHLE

1 January 2020 BEZEREX

due to settlement b |

during the year (86) - - - - (12 (67) - (1)
Write offof provision ~~ BE 84 = (608) = - - = = - -
Asat31December ~H-E-Ef
2020 +-A=+-H 86 - - - 20,774 6,227 ] 165 14

294 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off trade receivables when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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REMIE|RME

47

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

47 EWMIHE#E

Financial risk management b. HMERBREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Liquidity risk (Continued) B ELREREE)
2020 B-EF
Weighted  On demand Total
average orless than 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months tolyear  1-5years  cashflows amount
MERY EREEED AHR
BRRE JR-fR -Z=fR =fRZE-F -21F REMEHE REEE
) Us$'000 Us$1000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000  US$000
57 Tin i &7 TEn 57
Trade payables ERE - 6,363 18,396 25,721 - 50980 50,980
Other payables iR - 5,023 3,735 1,284 - 10042 10,042
Amount due toimmediate B ERERAF
holding company B - 189 - - - 189 189
Amount due to a fellow ER-RZNE
subsidary NE - 53 - - - 53 53
Amounts due to assoclates  EREHEARIZIE - 241 - - - 241 4
Amounts due to ERAELEFE
joint ventures - 12 - - - 12 12
Bank borrowings H/IAER
~ interest bearing -HERE
borrowings* 1.68 27,668 - - - 27,668 27,584
Lease liablties HEEE 500 232 256 958 1472 2918 2,766
39,781 22,887 27,963 1472 92,103 91,867
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e VR R EE
47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 47 S€®RITE &
b. Financial risk management b. HMERBREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Liquidity risk (Continueq) HEBELRERE
2019 —TNF
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orless than 3months undiscounted Camying
interest rate Imonth  1-3 months to 1 year 1=5years  cashflows amount
METY EXBEERY RER

ERHE OB -EZEAR -BAE-§  -ERF HaREAE®  KEoW
%  USS000  USSOO0  USS000  US§000  US§000  US000
e e e e E I

Trade payables ERE - 5,875 6,667 12,306 - 24,848 24,848
Other payables EfENERS - 14410 3299 40 = 17,749 17,749
Amount due toimmediate  ER B
holding company G - 103 = = = 103 103
Amount due to a fellow ER-RZHE
subsiclary NTE = 14 = = = 14 14
Amounts due to assoclates  EREHEARIZIE = 265 = = = 265 265
Amounts due to ERAELEE
joint ventures - 76 - - - 76 76
Bank borrowiings B/ITER
~ interest bearing -HEEE
borrowings* 345 19,927 3,159 567 - 23,603 23,584
Lease liabities HEEE 5.00 216 433 1,738 1,244 3631 3,466
40,886 13,568 14,651 1,244 70,339 70,106
* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, * BAEFZEEEMNE RE
the weighted average interest rate at the end of IR 2 IREF 9 BB TR
each reporting period is used for undiscounted KIERB R B 2 TEZW °
cash flows analysis.
The amounts included above for variable AEEEHENREHRET
interest rate instruments for non-derivative FMRMEATEE - FlREaE
financial liabilities are subject to change if FTEEMARBZ T BN
changes in variable interest rates differ to o

those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR 297
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REMBRRME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c. Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for the fair
value measurements.

° the fair value of equity instrument
at FVTOCI is determined by the
independent valuer using valuation
techniques including earnings
multiples (based on the historical
earnings multiples of comparable listed
companies) and discounted for lack of
marketability.

° the fair value of financial asset at
FVTPL is determined with reference to
the fair value of the underlying assets
and liabilities as reported by the fund
manager.

° the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is made of discounted
cash flow analysis using the
application yield curve and forward
rate for the duration of the instrument
for non-optional derivatives; and

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding equity
instrument at FVTOCI, financial asset
at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The following table gives information about
how the fair values of this financial instrument
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

REMIE|RME

47 WM IH#E
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TRIAZAREBE®R

BREEMEERTEXEEH
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FEMKHRERME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47 €T E &)
c. Fair value of financial instruments c. ERMIAZAAEBE®R
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial BEEMEERTELEE
assets and financial liabilities that HWEMEENEMEMEZ
are measured at fair value on a NAEE (B
recurring basis (Continued)
Fair value
Fair value hierarchy ~ Valuation technique and key inputs
MEE MEEER HERERIZHE
2020 2019
2l 3
US$'000 US$:000
T e

Financial assets

SREE

Unquoted equity investment 26,156 18977 Level8 Market approach*
at FVTOC The key inputs are:

(1) price-to-eamings muttiples of comparables and
‘ \ (2)  discount for lack of marketabilty.

FINRERARDAEE =4 Ak

AR EAE Bamgn:
() ALRDAHREEA
@ @zmEk -

Derivative financial 109 - Level2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based
instruments on forward exchange rates (from observable forward
(Foreign exchange exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and the
forward contracts) contracted exchange rates, discounted at a rate that reflects

the credit risk of various counterparties \
f48IA £28 BB AIEARRERDRAASER(\ELY
GMERHRR) ANTBZREER) RAEEE - BRRERHHFEE
BRERIAH -

Derivative financial - 41 Level2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based
instruments (Interest rate on forward interest rates (from observable forward interest
swap contracts) rates at the end of the reporting period) and the contracted

interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk
o of various counterparties
i 4HIE 528 FEELRE - ARBORERAMBERINEELY
(H=EHa4) ANATBREANE) ROENE  RRMERFHFEE
ARERIH -
Financial asset at FVTPL 3,027 - Level3 Share of the net asset values of the investee, determined with
reference to the fair values of underlying assets and liabilities
\ \ and adjystmqnts of releted expenses, fany.

RARBETABSZ $=8  BERBEENEERENEORE RAREAENAR

tREE MALBENREBER WA)NERNER -
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

*

Significant unobservable inputs
include:

- price-to-earnings multiples
of comparables, taking into
account of the scale of the
business of the comparables
and other individual factors such
as dividend yield generated by
the comparables at 7.5 times
(2019: 8.11 times). A slight
increase in the price-to-earnings
multiples would result in a slight
increase in fair value and vice
versa.

- discount for lack of
marketability, taking into
account of the results from the
finnerty option pricing model
of 19% (2019: 17%). A slight
increase in the discount for the
marketability would result in a
slight decrease in fair value and
vice versa.

The management considers that the
exposure of fair value in relation to the
unobservable inputs of the unquoted equity
instrument is insignificant. No sensitivity
analysis is presented accordingly.

There were no transfers between Levels 1
and 2 in the current and prior years.

RO B IS MR M
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c. EWMIBEZAREBE®
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* TEAABRENEEE
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REMIE|RME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of unquoted equity

47 @I H®)

c. EWMIBEZAREBE®
FFHRIEREENAEE
FFAEMEE K EE =R

investment at FVTOCI AR EETTEH R
Financial
assets
at FVTOCI
BAREE
ST AHA
ZHEREH
TRMEE
US$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2019 RNR—_E—NF—H—H 17,482
Fair value gain in other comprehensive REMEERZEN AR EE
income Wz 1,515
As at 31 December 2019 Z-NF+HA=t—H 18,997
Fair value gain in other comprehensive B/\\, EERENAREER
income W e 7,159
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-EHF+=-A=+—H 26,156
Included in other comprehensive income REAMEHRFEBRSEEM
is an amount of US$7,159,000 gain (2019: 2HK=EANAF7,159,000F TTLH
US$1,515,000 gain) relating to unquoted Wz (ZZE—NF : 1,515,000

equity investment classified as equity
instrument at FVTOCI held at the end of the
current reporting period and is reported as
changes of investment revaluation reserve for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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FEMKHRERME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial asset at

47 WM IH#E
c. EWMIBEZAREBE®

BRAAEETSABEZ LM
BEF=RMALEETTE

FVTPL ¥R

Financial
assets
at FVTPL
RAREE
FFABEN
TREE
US$’'000
FET

As at 1 January 2019 and RZE-NF—HA—8K
31 December 2019 —FE-NF+ZA=+—H -
Addition during the year FREIIE 2,825
Fair value loss in profit or loss REERH AR EBEEE (38)
Exchange adjustment b 5 240
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-Z2F+=H=+—H 3,027

During current year ended 31 December
2020, US$38,000 fair value loss relating to
financial asset at FVTPL is charged to profit
or loss.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values, determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

BHE_T-_TF+HA=1T—H
IEFE BAnBEFAABRZ
LRI EER38,000E T AR EBE
Eigst A B o

RABEFETAB/NEE M wEK
ENERMEERSREE 2 #H
REEEREAAEEBENES R
BIFRESRENN KRERE
BEXOEEENEE °
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REMBRRME

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Financial instruments subject
to enforceable master netting
arrangements

The Group has entered derivative
transactions that are covered by the
International Swaps and Derivatives
Association Master Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with a bank. These
derivative financial instruments are not offset
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy so that the
Group currently has no legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts.

As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount
of derivative financial instruments that
are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements are US$109,000 (2019:
US$41,000). No deposit was placed with
the counterparty. No further disclosure is
provided as all the outstanding derivative
financial instruments as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 were entered into with one
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount

48

due to Amount

immediate due to

Bank holding afellow
borrowings  company subsidiary associates jointventures  payable liabilities Total

Ay

L3

EEER -FENE

BOER  DAWE QAR
US§000  US§o00 - US000
Tt T T3En

REMIE|RME

METHELENEBYHER

TRENEEAEARERDHES
WEl  BREASRIFRSHEIL -
MELRPEENAGBRERSRED
RIBEEARENGERERER
AOBERBMELRBDELZHER

Amounts  Amounts
due to dueto  Dividend Lease

EfBE  EfRE

RAME  LRME ERRE  REARR 4

USS000  USBoo0  USS000  USB000 - US§000
. TR TRn TEL TR

M1lauay 2019  R-B-NE

-A-H 380,436 - - 63 9 - 9102 389,610
Disposal of HENBAR

subsidlaries (Hiz4s)

(note 45(b)) (69,858) - - (18) - - (2,009 (71,889
Fiancing cash flows  BAB 4% (286,994 109 14 20 6 35 2T [(31236)
New leases entered/ #1318 E/BE

leases modified % - - - - - = 543 543
Farly termination of ~ REFIHHE

lease - - - - - - (1,913 (1,913
Dividend declared ~ E2ERE - - - - - 235 - 23514
M31December  RZE-NE

2019 +-A=1-A 23584 103 14 265 76 - 3466 27,508
Finencing cach fows BB 4% 3987 8 ¥ %) 64 @64 PRSI0 (39,664
New leases entered/  ¥3]HAE /&

leases modified % = = - - - = 1811 1811
Early termination of ~ REHIFHE

lease - - - - - - ] (1)
Dividend declared ~ BEAERE - - - - - 41,164 - 41,164
Fxchange HERE

realignment 13 - 2 12 - - - 27
At31December ~ RZE-AF
2020 +ZR=t-H 27,584 189 53 24 12 - 2,766 30,845

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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REMIE|RME

49 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 49 EREE
2020 2019
= i = 7
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BRI AR AR & B 5 3k
the acquisition of property, BEBAME  HER
plant and equipment contracted B BT H
but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements 796 2,556
Capital injection in a joint venture BRI AR ARG B Sk
contracted but not provided for BB H—B8BEDRHEL
in the consolidated financial AE
statements - 14,441
Capital injection in an associate BRI AR R 4R E B ISR
contracted but not provided for B H—BERRIZ
in the consolidated financial FE
statements 3,925 3,925
3,925 18,366

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
joint venture partners entered into an agreement
to deregister the joint venture, and accordingly the
capital commitment related to capital injection in
that joint venture contracted but not provided for is
released in the current year. At 31 December 2020,

the deregistration is in process.
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OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as Lessor

The Group leases out properties under an operating
lease with rentals payable monthly. The leases term
is 11 years. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value of guarantee and/or lessee’s option
to purchase the property at the end of lease term,
and contain market review clauses in the event the
lessee exercises the option to extend.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as
lessor had contracted with tenants for the following
undiscounted lease payments receivable over the
non-cancellable periods:

50

W

REMERE

AEEER/EAS

B BRRME

AEEBUREHESALEYE &
AXftiEs  HEHRRNEFE - HE
ARTBEERROEEN SHAEA
EHENNRBEEENERE X
BEABATETEHESZZENER T

BEMHEEMRNK

RBEHR  AEEFE/RLEET DA
B sA,’JEATT%&%HﬂF‘aﬁH&HXT LR

PR HE IR

2020 2019

—E-BF —hF

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET

Within one year RE—F 1,714 1,897
In the second year MRE—F 1,646 1,714
In the third year RE=F 1,675 1,767
In the fourth year REINE 1,675 1,800
In the fifth year RERF 1,724 1,800
After five years FERF % 6,088 8,303
14,522 17,281

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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e BRRMEE
51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51

The balances with the related parties are disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and notes 30, 31, 32 and 38. All trade balances
with related parties are subject to normal credit
terms of 30 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 90 days).
Details of transactions between the Group and
other related parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following trading transactions with related parties

that are not members of the Group:

EBREATRS
BEREBELNR 2 EHRE RGP
RN MFE30 - 31 32K 38WE - FiA
HEBEBARMNESIRENE —KREE
ERETE © ABUAS0EOR(ZZT—H
F : 30290K) - AEBEEEMEFE
ZREFBREWMT -

2020
=24

—_—

Us$’000
TXx

Sales to immediate holding company
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note)

Sales to associates (Note)

Interest expense on lease to a fellow
subsidiary (Note)

Short-term lease expense to a fellow
subsidiary

Interest income from immediate
holding company

Interest income from a fellow
subsidiary

Interest income from an associate

A EEERARHES M

RIEES = PNCIE g
(Htat)

RS RARHE S m#E)

m—RRNBARNEE
NEER R

iR ZRK B A R R
HEZEM

QE=R:323 NCILE:
A BIWA

[7) [R) 2 Ff /&8 2~ =] e ER
FBIA

[ — Bgp & 1% B R A B

2,767
1,572

14

2,204

602
712

REAR - AEERBAEQRGEARSE
BRE)ERATERRS -

2019
—ENF
US$'000
TEx

29,140

3,727
4,242

219
3,945

1,207
710
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REMB MR T
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51 BBEEQATARZ @)
(Continued)
Note: Htat -
The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd., R R E Rl B FHH(PE)BERL A - X
PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific International Lines (H.K.) FEEHE)FERAA - XFHHEE)EGRA
Limited, Mariana Express Lines Pte. Ltd. and Strategic Times Al + Mariana Express Lines Pte Ltd. X Strategic
Limited, in which PIL, a controlling shareholder of the Company, Times Limited * A FMFBR 2 E] — KR E]ZH#
also the immediate holding company of the Company, has BRIBRREBEIZRAGF] — HBZSEAF IERE
controlling interest. 7 e
The associates are the subsidiaries of Modex, including Modex & o a] BModex#I 1B 2 &] + H#EModex
Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd., Modex Energy Services Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd. -~ Modex
Limited, Modex Middle East FZE, Modex Australia Pty Ltd., Energy Services Limited * Modex Middle East
Modex AS and Gauthier Homes, Inc.. FZE + Modex Australia Pty Ltd. * Modex ASHl
Gauthier Homes, Inc. °
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered REZFE-NFF+ZA=+—HIEFE  FEEFH
into a new lease agreement for the office in Shanghai with a —XEIRWB R AT T — I E 5 (E R
fellow subsidiary for 2 years. Except for short-term lease in FEER - BRI2E o [RANEEEHBERAE
which the Group applied recognition exemption, the Group WERIHE ) - KEBE R EFEEEMNEE
has recognised an addition of right-of-use assets and lease B &7 5150 T 381,000 7T #1381,000% 7T °
liabilities of US$381,000 and US$381,000 respectively. As at 31 R-E-_ZFEFF+_F=+—H ZHEEEA
December 2020, such lease liabilities amounted to US$222,000 222,000 (ZF— 4 : 331,000%7T) °
(2019: US$331,000).
Compensation of key management FTEEE AB Z RN
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and AEEEERAMETEEBAB IR
other members of key management during the year Bz -
was as follows:
2020 2019
= i = 7
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Short-term employee benefits HHIE TR 1,480 1,972
Post-employment benefits ZEE B E A 57 71
1,537 2,043

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EERAMETEERABZRHMEA
FHZEeRBEBAARRETISBEE

ALK

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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R TR KM EE
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARQAFZETEMBATZF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY i}
a. General information of a. MEBARIZ—RHEESR
subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 RZEZTFERZFT-NF+=
December 2020 and 2019 are set out below: A=+—8 XRRZHWBAF
ZEEWT
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRAR
Ri/ #ERR/
HEARER dfes  AARMEZRELS B4RE IERH
2020 2019
i cF
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
EAEEARAR Bk HK$1,000,000 container
Lak storage and
1,000,000 7 repair services
RESEMER
R&ERS
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KREREEERAR &b HK$300,000 holding
Lak RERK
300,008 7
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEBRBERRAR Bk HK$3,000,000 container
LEKR  storage, drayage
3,000,000 and repair services
RS
18 REBRS
Huizhou Singamas Energy Equipment PRC 100% 100% US$25,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. * A G 25,000,000% 7 of dry freight and
ENBREREEERAR A specialised containers
RERERN
REEBEERH
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mA RN
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AATZITEMB AT 2t
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®E

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRIR
R/ #ERR/
WEARER AR RARMEZREL BaRK IEXR
2020 2019
- 7 —-% $ :g_ﬂvi
Leading Joy Limited * Hong Kong 100% - Ordinary Property holding
& | (Notee) HKS$1 VEST
(Hizte) Lak
14T
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * A PRC - - US$20,000,000 Manufacturing
ERATERARAA A Gl (Note g) 20,000,000% 7 of dlry freight
(Hita) and specialised
containers
BERERA
REBEEM
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0% RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. A i AK%20,000,0007 of offshore
BRBEMBIREERARA containers
NERTEER
Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. A PRC - - RMB154,000,000 Provision of
BRATABBRARA . (Notea) AR%154,000,0007 container
(Hiita) terminal services
Tﬂ/\xg;ﬁdﬁ(
BB RS
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment PRC - - 1US$220,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd, 4: Noteg) ~ 220,000,000% T of oy freight,
BRI mau REARAA A (Hiita) specialised
and refrigerated
containers
HEGREN
" EE#
RRREERH

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR 311
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subsidiaries (Continued)
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REMIE|RME

52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

General information of

Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiaries registration
R/
WEARER %
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Lid." A PRC
ERATEERRAF A kel
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Gontainer PRC
Co., Ltd.# i
HERWATERERA
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC
Co., Ltd. ™ i
FEATEREEERAR
Shanghai Resferco Container Co., Ltd. * PRC
HEBRRREEERAR" i
Shanghai Singamas Container Integration PRC
Co., Ltd. * A i

LEBIERRBERAR A

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2020

52 ARFZEEMBARZF
(1C
a. HEATZ-REZH®
Issued and fully
Proportion of paid share/
ownership interest held contributed Principal
by the Company capital activities
BRTR
BRRH/
AR A2 RELA BaRE IEXH
2020 2019
il TNF
- - US$126,605,700 Manufacturing
(Notea)  126,605,700% T of dry freight
(Hiita) and specialised
containers
RERERN
REREAH
11.2% 77.2% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
25,300,000 T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
g S KA
REBEEM
64.9% 64.9% 1US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
26,000,000%7  of tank containers
HERR
100.0% 100.0% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing
22,000,000% 7T of refrigerated
containers
HERRERA
100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Manufacturing
(Note ¢) 2,000,000%7T of specialised
(Hiite) containers
HERRERA
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REMIE|RME

52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

a. General information of

subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries registration

R/

HEARER it S

Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. ** PRC

BRREIZARAR i

Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai) PRC

Limited * A i
BREEER(LE)ERAR A

Singamas Depots Holdings Limited * Hong Kong

iy 2o NG &

Singamas Management Services Limited *  British Virgin

Islands

ZBRAHE

Singamas-Modex Limited Hong Kong

BRERRERAR &

SESREER o BALRCEERAT

52 ARFZEEMBATRZF
(]G
a. MEATZ-REZH®
Issued and fully
Proportion of paid share/
ownership interest held contributed Principal
by the Company capital activities
BRIR
BRRH/
AR RELA BaRK IEXR
2020 2019
“ECEE ek
75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
5,100,000% of collapsiole
flatrack and
specialised
containers
BRBREEN
- - US$5,000,000 Provision of
(Note g) 5,000,000%7T technical and
(Hiita) development services
of container
manufacturing
RESSMRE
GRS
100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment
HK$10,000 holding
LRk RERR
10,0087
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
1,000%7T management
services
REEERE
100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment
HK$200,000 holding
Lak RERRK
200,000 7T
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mA BN
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AATZIEMB AT ZE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEATRZ—RHEER®)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
R/ #RRR/
WEARER dfeE AR RELA BaRE IEXH
2020 2019
“ECEE gk
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision
BRR (B8 ERAR B 5,780,000 of container
storage and
repair Services
RESENRER
REERH
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. * A PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
B (R2) BRAF" A i 6,500,000 7 container
storage and
repair Services
REEEERE
REE R
Singamas North America, Inc. ® USA - - 1US$500,000 Marketing
E35) (Note b) 500,000% T containers
(Wiitn) in the USA
EXREEHERN
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7 holaing
ZBRUES REZR
Singamas Terminals Holdings Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
ABRAES REER
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mA RN
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AATZITEMB AT 2t
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®E

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
R/ #ERR/
WEARER AR RARMEZREL BaRK IEXR
2020 2019
“ECEE ek
Singamas Terminals (HK) Limited British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RBRAES REER
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BRERER (R ERAT Bk HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
Lak services

500000087  RAEEFTRIEERE

Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company  British Virgin - - US$1,000 Investment
Limited Islands (Note d) 1,000%7 holding
Bhek(L8ERAR ZBRAHE (Wiitd) RERR
Superb Gain Holdings Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property
Islands 1,000% 7T holding

ZERAHS WERE

Taicang Modex Energy Engineering Ltd. A PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,500,000 Manufacturing
RERMBHRIRERARN kel 2,500,000%7 of offshore
containers

BERTEER

Teamwill International Limited” British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000% 7 holding

RBRAES REER
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mA BN
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AATZIEMB AT ZE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEATRZ—RHEER®)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
R/ #RRR/
WEARER dfeE AR RELA B4Rx IEXH
2020 2019
“ECEE gk
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. *# PRC - 97.0% 1US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
AEATRERRAR ! B (Note ) 25,700,000 of dhy freight
(o) and specialised
containers
BEG SRR
RERERS
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. * A PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBRERARAA A i 2,000000%7  container storage,
repair and trucking
senvices, and
serving as a
freight station
REERERE
BE  HER
SEURH
Well Key Limited* Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BRARAR ) HK$1 human resource
Z@K  management service
iy REANER
BRI
Welmass Group Limited British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000%7 holding
ZBRAHE REER
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REMIE|RME

KRB ZEEMBRATR 25

MEBQR .z —REER @

Issued and fully

paid share/
contributed Principal
capital activities

BRTR

BRRG/
BaRK IEXR

52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY B
(Continued)

a. General information of a.
subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/  ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company
R/
WEARER dfes  AARMEZRELA
2020 2019
il TNF
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0%
Co., Ltd. * A i
EFATERRERRAR A
Yixing Singamas Metal Products PRC 95.0% 95.0%
Co,, Ltd. *# G
HEFREBRDARAR

Subsidiaries held directly by the Company

i Equity joint venture established in the PRC in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations
Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in
the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations

@ Represented common shares held by the
Company

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above,
except for those companies incorporated in
British Virgin Islands which are incorporated
for investment holding purpose.

US$23,000,000 Manufacturing
23,000,000%7T of dry freight
containers

RELERN

1US$200,000 Manufacturing
200000%7T  of container parts
e R

AREEEIFH ZMERF]
WRIZE BEE DI R ER F BIK
ZHEBEELFE

WRIZE BEDI R A ER B
ZEI BRI

HELXREfFH ) EER

BRI SR BE LB B AL AR R
BEBARSN BB RRIKE
Kz TEHEER FICPRE 2 K
3 M B AR o

“ECREEH « BWERECEERAT
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REMIE|RME

52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

a On 2 August 2019, the Group disposed the
Disposal Group, to an independent third party.
Please refer to note 45(b) for details.

b A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Singamas North America, Inc., was struck off in
November 2019.

@ A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shanghai Singamas Container Integration
Co., Ltd., was incorporated on 30 May 2019
and engaged in manufacturing of specialised
container in Shanghai, the PRC.

d A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company
Limited, was struck off in May 2019.

e On 2 November 2020, the Group acquired the
entire equity interest in Leading Joy Limited.
Please refer to note 44 for details.

f On 3 February 2020, the Group acquired the
remaining 3% equity interest of TPCC and
disposed the entire equity interest to two
independent third parties on 30 September
2020. Please refer to note 45(a) for details.
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N
15 &

A2 EEMBERRZFF

MEBLRz —RUEERE

ERAFIERARBESTRRY
AEBzBNREEBEARE
WEBMBAR - ARAEEE
RBRFEEMM B AR ZFER
SIEFEREAR -

BEAFEL - XWRBEMMNE
RABRERZEBES

s -

a R=ZF-NFNAZH ZFEEF
HEHERFTF—BLE=T -
FHAEZ RN iE45(0)

b AR E]—2 &M E 2 5]Singamas
North America, Inc. » ER —ZF—
NF+—Hits o

@ LB MERREFRAA] - B
ARal—E2ERERA] R
E-NFRA=1+HETIHRE
B P& 1 F IR R A £ -

d AR —2EW B L A BME
(EB)ERATGER-F—NEF
AHFH -

e R-FE-FFEF—H—FH  F%&
Y f# T Leading Joy Limited#
2ERIE - FAED BN 44 o

f R-FE-_FF_H=H AXiA
W B K2 KT F#43% AR HE I R
—E-—FEAA=FAEZER
BHETHEBLE=T o FH
AR iE45(a)
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REMIE|RME

52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARAFZETENBATZF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY B

(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEEARFEZERBRFAER
subsidiaries that have material ZIEZEHRBZHE QA
non-controlling interest 15
The table below shows details of non-wholly THRETASEHREEARIFER
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have BRERIEZERBZHBA
material non-controlling interests: AJRYFEE

Proportion of Profit (loss)
Place of ownership interests allocated to Accumulated
incorporation/  and voting rights held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary registration non-controlling interests interests interests
FERRREREEN wH (582 EZ RatEER
HWEARER R/ RERFRELSI FERBRES RRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
M+=A=t+-H BET-A=t-H Rt=A=t+-H
2020 2019 2020 2019
mEi T T F
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000
TEn TEL TR TET
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific PRC 22.8% 22.8% 2,993 (524) 22,307 19,582
Container Co., Ltd. i
HEEWRTREBRAR
Shanghai Pacific International PRC 35.1% 35.1% (2,576) (799) 8,387 10,963
Container Co., Ltd. i
EEATERSEERAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 5,400 6,352
with non-controling interests
ABHERRR R 2 B
FEAMERT
36,094 36,897

SESTEEH o WHHELRARAT
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FEMKHRERME
52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AQATZEEMBLR 2
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 &
(Continued)
b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEEARFEZERBRFAER
subsidiaries that have material ZIEZEHBZHE QA
non-controlling interest (Continued) =316

ATER TR SRETER BRI
HxHx%TZé s 2R BERA 2B

REIZMBEMEE - I
BRI R S AEEAREHEAZ

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents BFE o
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
Shanghai Shanghai Pacific
Baoshan Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
IBELATER IEATERER
BRAR BRAR
2020 2019 2020 2019
—?—7$ :g_ﬂﬁ —7—7$ :%T_j-l.,i
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$000
S TEn S Txx
As at 31 December Bn+-A=1+—H

Current assets MEBEE 101,765 81,112 30,600 34,859
Non-current assets FnBEE 18,813 17,154 12,932 17,230
Current liabilities nEEE (25,362) (16,155) (13,600) (14,827)

Equity attributable to owners of N7 BIAR R G 25
the Company 72,909 62,529 21,545 26,299
Non-controling interests FEERR RS 22,307 19,582 8,387 10,963

Year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—H
Revenue EER 116,740 103,488 16,886 33,830
Expenses 25 (103,635) (105,785) (24,216) (36,109)
Profit (loss) for the year AEE RN (BE) 13,105 (2,297) (7,330) (2,275)
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b.

Details of non-wholly owned

REMIE|RME

52 AATRZETEMBAT 2
162,

b. EREAFEZERRRERS

subsidiaries that have material ZIEZEHRBZHE QA
non-controlling interest (Continued) HiE®)
Shanghai Shanghai Pacific
Baoshan Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
FRELATER IBATEREE
BRARA BRAA
2020 2019 2020 2019
RO ikl —T-TF ek
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$000
TERT TEn TER TET
Year ended 31 December BEt-A=1—H
Profit (loss) and total AARIRE & T
comprehensive income (BB k2Bl
(expense) attributable to (i) 4z
owners of the Company 10,112 (1,773 (4,754) (1,476)
Profit (loss) and total IR RS
comprehensive income wA (BB K2 HE
(expense) attributable tonon- ez () 4%
controlling interests 2,993 (524) (2,576) (799
Profit (loss) and total KEERMN (BB R
comprehensive income 2EMEF )
(expense)for the year k] 13,105 (2,297) (7,330) (2,275)
Net cash from (used in) operating & % EZ &5/ (FT#E)
activities Be 8558 | (2,081 3,008 (298)
Net cash (used in) from investing  #% & /& &) (FT#%) {5
activities Be5E (3,293) (3,323) (13) 1,472
Net cash from (used in) financing B2 & EEHFT {5 (FT#E)
activities R 1,401 300 (2,428) (4,413
Net cash inflow (outflow) FERERA(RL) 6,666 (5,102) 657 (3,239)

SRoREEH o BEKECKARAA
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e BRRMEE
53 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The repayment arrangement under the Deed
entered into between the Company and PIL as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 24
November 2020 shall be effective on and from
the date on all conditions precedent are satisfied.
Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 3 March 2021, the sanction of the
PIL Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court of
the Republic of Singapore has been sanctioned
on 3 March 2021 pursuant to section 210 of the
Companies Act (Chapter 50). As at the date of
these consolidated financial statements being
authorised for issue, the only outstanding condition
precedent to be satisfied to the consummation
of the repayment arrangement under the Deed is
the completion of the investment by one or more
entities managed and controlled by Heliconia into
PIL on terms to be agreed between those entities
and PIL (or waived, as the case may be). Pursuant
to the terms of the Deed, the Company and PIL
agreed to extend the long stop date for satisfaction
of such condition precedent to the implementation
of the repayment arrangements under the Deed
from 31 March 2021 to 30 June 2021.
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AARBEAFMBE_T_TF+—
A+t BRARBERHEMNZLOR
EMENRLZE  BREMAEKRNGCH
BEM - 2BRAFN_ZT-_—F=H
“H®MRAE - BEC(AENE) (FBE50E)
F2101& « FNE EFE & E AR R
TR —F=-A=ZE#ETKEMB
ML HRE - BHEELS HT R
REERTZH  W—FEABREBERY
TERERLHEHNRAEGLEFZ - B
Heliconia’g 12 F112 Hil 6 — Bl 2k % & B 58
ERELEERECTIMBEENIERK
TEREH A TFMEHIRE (HME - RiE
MME) o RBEZAGK - ARIEKF
M5 R B A B L AR P e E &
FEIRMB-_E-_—F=A=+—~8”
ERE-ZT-_—FXA=1+H " U#H
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REMIE|RME

54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 ZARDT) 2R RRERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
2T ek
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I - HER KRR R 127 783
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE 157,114 167,828
Investments in associates TR TZ&E 260 260
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WS BT /B 1 R RIE 224,945 183,567
Amount due from immediate holding B B #Z IR A _JT/\IE
company 3,648 3,945
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FEU —[F Z M B A 7 FIE 1,808 1,207
Equity instrument at FVTOCI Tﬁ’&ﬁﬁﬁ?)\ﬁiﬁﬂiﬁ
Wz Em T A 10,242 7,439
Other receivables H fth fE 5K IE 31,678 29,090
429,822 394,119
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables &1 & H fth & 1451* 25,320 17,006
Amount due from immediate holding &Y & 1A% A &) IE
company 2,500 -
Derivative financial instruments TTHEemT A 109 41
Bank balances and cash IRITERNIE S 11,065 79,334
38,994 96,381
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET & R K E fth FE T BR X 4,821 3,766
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A~ BT /B A R 5RIE 5,925 1,070
Amount due to immediate holding B B &I A FIFIAE
company 189 103
Amounts due to associates AR N Bzl 112 101
Bank borrowings RITIE 27,584 22,883
Tax payable JEI I8 - 9,396
38,631 37,319
Net current assets REEEFE 363 59,062
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABEE 430,185 453,181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRM T
54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 ARFZHBMRRKERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF (&
THE COMPANY (Continuead)
2020 2019
= el — T F
US$’000 US$'000
TER FET
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital N 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits 5t A 154,361 179,901
Other reserves H i 6,907 5,131
429,417 453,181
Non-current liability FRBEME
Deferred tax liability RIERIR A S 768 -
430,185 453,181
The Company’s statement of financial position was RNANBZHBERARERA NG ESFTE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZEBEZ—F=A -+ B ELRK
directors on 26 March 2021 and are signed on its BES - WAH NI AQNRIESKEKS
behalf by: 2 .
Teo Siong Seng Chan Kwok Leung
RINE FR B £R
Director Director
EF EF
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W

B BRRME

54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 ZARFEZHMBARRNKRERRK
POSITION AND RESERVES OF (&
THE COMPANY (Continuead)
Investment Share
Movement in the revaluation option  Accumulated
Company’s reserves reserve reserve profits Total
KRRz ERED REEMERE ERERE LS L
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000
TET TEL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—-A—H 4279 282 123,655 128216
Profit for the year RER RN - - 771,877 71,877
Fair value gain on equity instrument K2R (B TEWKE
at FVTOCI, net of tax effect PENE ER
(TDWM%%%)Z
R BENE 593 - - 593
Total comprehensive income for ER2ENREE
the year 593 - 77,877 78,470
Dividend paid to owners of IRAERARERE
the Company - - (21,654) (21,654)
Share option forfeited BIRERS - (29) 23 =
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
+-A=t-H 4,872 259 179,901 185,032
Profit for the year RERRN - - 14,738 14,738
Fair value gain on equity instrument K2R (E TEW\H
at FVTOC, net of tax effect PENE ERT
(TDWM%%Z’S)Z
DA EERE 2,035 - - 2,035
Total comprehensive income for FRE2ENREE
the year 2,035 - 14,738 16,773
Dividend paid to owners of IRADRRERE
the Company - - (40,537) (40,537)
Share option lapsed BRER AR - (259) 259 =
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF
t-R=1-H 6,907 - 154,361 161,268

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2020, calculated under section 297 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounting
to US$154,361,000 (2019: US$179,901,000).

RIBERB R GUEHIFE 297K E
AN —_E_EF+_A=+—Ha#
ik 2 154,361,000 T (ZF —

JUEE :

179,901,000%7T) ©

CECTEFR o BWEELEEXBRRA
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEMERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-AZT-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-0E ZEN\E ZE+tF ZE-R
% % % %
Sales Mix HEHS
(as apercentage of sales)  (AHEBARL )
Manufacturing: HELHK
Dry freight TR 68 64 78 84 64
Refrigerated containers REERM - 13 6 3 9
Tank containers 5 6 5 4 4 6
US domestic containers FERESER - 6 4 9
Other specidlised containers ~ EftEEEERK
and container parts SRERM 16 11 4 3 8
90 96 98 98 96
Logistics services ik 10 4 2 2 4
Total Fat 100 100 100 100 100
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBRE
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 20 6
mt it 2l —T-NF -\ FtF ZE-RX
US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 us§ 000
TEn TEx TEx Tin TEn
Revenue EEE 274,305 712,209 1,807,819 1,476,670 916,433
(Loss) profit from operations 4% (& 12) &7 (9,337) (95,960) 35,031 70,652 (49,638)
Finance costs HBER (799) (14,515) (18,549) (14,434) (11,060)
Investment income REWA 7,381 9,629 7,515 2,765 2,764
Change in fair value of derivative $T42BTAZALE
financial instruments Bz (B8) 109 (382) 47 756 376
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M BA Az WS 8,457 7,771 65,604 - -
Share of results of associates ~ FE(REEE AR 2 & 7
(&%) 1,651 (829) (2,512) (1,745) (1,201)
Share of results of joint ventures (5 R &% 2 &7 408 127 37 398 410
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR (B R) 7,870 (94,159) 87,173 58,392 (58,349)
Income tax expense FiEfiER M (3,120) (16,638 (13,791) (14,952) (3571)
Profit loss) for the year REFEN(ER) 4,750 (110,797) 73,382 43,440 (61,920)
Attributable to: FEff
Owners of the Company NS|E 4,576 (110,230) 72,252 41,452 (59,434)
Non-controling interests AR RS 174 (567) 1,130 1988 (2,486)
4,750 (110,797) 73,382 43,440 (61,920)
Earnings (loss) per share BRET (F1])
Basic 2K Us0.19 US(4.56) US2.99 Ust.72 US(2.46)
centEAl centsE Al centsE Al centsE Al centsFAl
Diluted g Us0.19 US(4.56) US2.99 Ust.72 US(2.46)
centZ{l cents3E 1l cents3E 1l centsfll centsAl

ZECEFEHR o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Five Year Financial Summary

L EHERE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZECEE “ET-NE “2-N\F “T+F —E-R
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn e e TEn S
Assets and Liabilities BERES
Total assets BEE 657,349 673,412 1,399,983 1,634,455 1,225,627
Total liabilities BafE (123,663) (110,705) (704,204) (1,013,862) (647,807)
Net assets FEE 533,686 562,707 695,779 620,593 577,820
Equity i
Fquity attributable to ARARREGER
owners of the Company 497,592 525,810 656,697 574,199 533,014
Non-controling interests FERRRER 36,094 36,807 39,082 46,394 44,806
Total equity Enes 533,686 562,707 695,779 620,593 577,820

Note: There is no restatement of prior years financial information upon — ffzt : R=-F—NE—FH— HEHZE B EREERE

application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 and HKFRS 9 16 RR-_E—N\F—HA—HERZENHK
and HKFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018. EERE 9 K BB IR BRI E 15550 - &

B BHFRYFER -
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SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED
19/F, SUP Tower, 75-83 King's Road, Hong Kong
HBHEEE75-835 S LA E 1942

Tel 5 1(852) 2598 7831

Fax8E  :(852) 2598 7847

E-mail B : info@singamas.com

Website #8141t : http://www.singamas.com
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